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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
i nE T WA AT AR BT BEREET

Consolidated income statement 47 &t 2
for the years ended 31 March B3 31 H L4

Revenue A 1,034.8 706.3 692.5 805.5 767.6
Net (loss)/profit for the year T (E51R) T (402.7) (81.6) (106.5) 51.1 473.3
Interim dividend paid BRI E - - - - -
Final dividend proposed R AW - - - - -
Consolidated balance sheet HEEREAMAE
as at 31 March 3H31H&HE
Assets i 1,705.9 1,357.8 1,182.0 1,063.1 1,428.6
Less: Liabilities and W B
non-controlling interests T P i 1,175.5 870.3 803.9 639.0 522.0
Shareholders’ funds R &4 530.4 487.5 378.1 4241 906.6
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$

i T i o BT

Per share data BB R

(Loss)/earnings (ls18) / F A (0.385)  (0.0783) (0.102) 0.0485 0.4521

Interim dividend paid EIR PR E - - - - -

Final dividend proposed R AW S, - - - - -

Shareholders’ funds R E 4 0.507 0.466 0.361 0.405 0.866
1 STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

The directors of the Company (the “Board”) submit their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 40 on
pages 166 to 169 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s businesses for the year ended 31
March 2024 and an indication of likely future development in
the Group's businesses are set out under Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 26 to 32.

There were no important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of FY2023/24.

Stelux is a company that cares about the way it does business,
the way we engage with our customers, our employees, our
suppliers, and others in general. Certain core principles underpin
the way we achieve our business objectives. We engage our
business partners and treat our employees in a fair, honest
and responsible manner to deliver sustainable results to our
shareholders.

Our vision to “Beautify and enrich lives through our products and
services” underscores the way we engage with our customers.
From our lifestyle products, ranging from trendy watches and
smart watches available at our physical and online stores, we
strive to deliver a personal shopping experience to our customers
engaging them through traditional and social media.

Customers looking for a wide brand selection will enjoy shopping
at multi-branded retailer “CITY CHAIN”, appealing to customers
who enjoy fashionable watches.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

As for the Group’s watch wholesale business, (in addition to
selling to CITY CHAIN), our customers comprise of a large
network of independent dealer stores spanning, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Malaysia, Macau and Brunei. Many of these dealers
have been doing business with the Group for an average period
of over 25 years. Some of our watch dealers operate at least 2
points of sales.

With older workers delaying retirement and younger workers
joining the workforce, the Group is aware of the challenges
brought on by these underlying structural changes and also
higher employee expectations towards work life balance and
work fluidity. We continue with our mission to grow, respect
and reward our employees as they progress their careers with us.
More details on the Group’s employment and labour practices
can be found on pages 195 to 201 of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report.

The Group’s suppliers are an important component of our
businesses, ranging from upstream component vendors,
assemblers and manufacturers to downstream third party
brand principals and distributors, where third party brands
are sourced. Some brand principals have been partnering the
Group for over 20 years. Credit terms granted by the Group’s
suppliers range from 30 to 90 days. More details on our supply
chain management are set out on pages 201 to 202 of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

Businesses require stable relationships with their lenders.
Without exception, the Group maintains strong and active
communications with its lenders who provide important trade
and other short and long term credit facilities. These lenders
range from local banks with strong local connections to regional
and global banks with solid reputations.

The Group faces certain principal risks and uncertainties,
described below (in no order of preference):
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

Due to the challenging business environment, cash flow
management was strengthened with appropriate measures
adopted to improve liquidity. For more details, refer to the
“Finance” section of the Management, Discussion and Analysis
on pages 30 to 32.

As inventory levels impact sales, profitability and cash flows and
with long production lead times for some products, effective
inventory management is important. Systems are in place to
ensure key functions including merchandising, store operations
and finance closely monitor metrics like, inventory levels, aging
and turnover ratios. The Group adopts a conservative approach
to ordering and purchasing stock with increased monitoring due
to the adverse business environment. There are also measures to
fasten stock turn and to facilitate disciplined capital management
including flexible cross regional clearance initiatives.

Securing the right store location at an appropriate rental is
another principal driver of performance and affects Group
turnover and profitability. Leasing, store operations, finance and
senior management review and assess location suitability using a
checklist of pre-agreed criteria. A dedicated leasing team focuses
on leasing strategies and activities in our major markets.

Product sourcing impacts Group turnover, gross margins and
inventory levels. CITY CHAIN being a multi-branded retailer,
sources a proportion of products from third party brand
principals or distributors and there is no assurance that supply
will continue on terms acceptable to the Group. CITY CHAIN
has a dedicated merchandising function to focus on sourcing of
non-house branded products and maintaining good relationships,
particularly with principal suppliers. We look to form medium
to long term strategic brand partnerships with our suppliers,
working closely with them to facilitate the sharing of fashion
trends and market information. To stay attuned to customer
tastes and preferences, market research on social media trends,
competitors’ offerings and market visits are carried out regularly,
and customer feedback is closely monitored.

The Group's financial risks and relevant management policies
can be found in the “Finance” section under Management,
Discussion and Analysis on pages 30 to 32 and Note 6 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Laws and regulations governing consumer protection,
employment and personal data have a significant impact on the
Group's retail businesses.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

A non-exhaustive list of these laws are:

o Environment (see page 176 to 177)

o Employment (see page 177 to 179)

J Products and Service (see page 179 to 180)
o Business Ethics (see page 180 to 181)

A non-exhaustive list of relevant applicable consumer protection
legislation for each territory where the Group operates are as
follows:

Mainland China:

J Law of the People's Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests

Hong Kong:

o Control of Exemption Clauses Ordinance 2018
o Sale of Goods Ordinance 2018

J Trade Descriptions Ordinance 2022

Macau:

o Consumer Rights and Interests Protection Law

Malaysia:

° Consumer Protection Act
. Sale of Goods Act

Singapore:

o Consumer Protection (Fair Trading) Act

J Consumer Protection (Trade Descriptions And Safety
Requirements) Act

J Sale of Goods Act

Thailand:
° Consumer Protection Act B.E. 2522 (1979)

The Group has an in-house legal function and where necessary
seeks external legal advice and training to keep abreast of latest
developments in different areas of law. There was no material
non-compliance with the above laws and regulations for the year
ended 31 March 2024.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

Climate change and other social issues may at times impact our
business decisions and actions. Our environmental policy is
based on 3R’s — to reduce, reuse or recycle whenever feasible or
practical so as to reduce our environmental impact. Changing
the way we consume the earth’s resources requires the collective
efforts of individuals and businesses together with supportive
and progressive environmental policies enacted by governments.
The different regions where we operate in have varying degrees
of commitment to environmental friendly legislation, regulations
and practices, and in places with less awareness, there are more
constraints on our performance.

Further reporting on environmental matters can be found on
pages 186 to 194 of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 are
set out in the consolidated income statement and statement of

other comprehensive income on page 45.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2023: nil).

The directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: nil).
DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of HK$192,500.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2024 are
set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 1 of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 March 2024, the distributable reserves of the Company

available for distribution as dividends to shareholders amounted
to HK$32.737 million (2023: HK$32.737 million).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws in Bermuda.

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(Vice Chairman and Executive Director)

Joseph C. C. Wong
Suriyan Joshua
Kanjanapas
Wallace Kwan Chi Kin  (executive director and CFO)
(resigned on 24 November 2023)
(executive director and CFO)
(appointed from 24 November 2023)
Jeff Ho Chi Kin (independent non-executive director)
Ricky Lai Kai Ming (independent non-executive director)
Honnus Cheung Ho Ling (independent non-executive director)

Kelly Liao Ching Mei

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 110(A), Mr. Jeff Ho
Chi Kin and Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling will retire by rotation
at the Company’s forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin and Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling have
expressed their intention as they would like to devote more time
on pursuance of their own business commitment and therefore
will not to seek re-election as independent non-executive
directors. The Company confirms that Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin and
Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling have no disagreements with the
Board and nothing needs to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company due to their retirement.

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong, Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas and Ms. Kelly Liao Ching
Mei are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong
during the year and up to the date of this report are: Mr. William
Hui Kin Wai, Ms. Stella Chow Yin Oi, Mr. Johnny Chan Koon
Kiu and Ms. Carrie Hui Ka Wai.

No director has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

The Company’s directors have formal letters of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment.
During the year, Mr. Suriyan Kanjanapas and Ms. Kelly Liao
Ching Mei. was eligible to an annual bonus determinable under
the terms of a KPI based executive bonus scheme with respect to
their management of the Group. Provision for the bonus under
the executive bonus scheme for the year ended 31 March 2024
was HK$807,000. Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong did not participate in
the executive bonus scheme for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Apart from the foregoing and continuing connected transactions
and related party transactions (disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements) the Group, no other
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s businesses to which the Company’s
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a
director of the Company and the director’s connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chumphol KANJANAPAS (aka Joseph C. C. WONG), aged
64, was appointed an executive director of the Company in
1986. Mr. Wong undertook his tertiary studies in the United
Kingdom. He graduated from the University of Bradford with
a B.Sc. in Industrial Engineering (First Class Honours). Mr.
Wong also holds a M.Sc. (with Distinction) in Operational
Research from the University of Southampton. Mr. Wong is the
Founding Honorary Patron of the HKU Foundation for Education
Development and Research and has been serving the Board of
Directors of the Foundation for over 20 years. He was awarded
an Honorary Fellowship by the University of Hong Kong in
2012. He is the father of Mr. Suriyan KANJANAPAS (aka Suriyan
Joshua KANJANAPAS), Vice Chairman and Executive Director of
the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Vice Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Suriyan KANJANAPAS (aka Suriyan Joshua KANJANAPAS),
aged 32, was appointed a non-executive director of the Company
on 20 October 2021 and re-designated as an executive director
of the Company in April 2024. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration and Law, a Bachelor of Laws and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong. He also
holds a Master of Science in Development Management from
the London School of Economics and Political Science. He has
been a practising barrister since 2018, with a predominantly civil
practice, specialising in construction law and company law. Mr.
Kanjanapas has also been a non-clinical lecturer for contract and
land law at the University of Hong Kong since 2019. He was
admitted as a Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in
2021. He is the son of Mr. Chumphol Kanjanapas (also known as
Joseph C.C. WONQ), the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company.

Executive Director and CFO

Ms. Kelly LIAO Ching Mei, aged 45, joined the Stelux Group in
2006 and had served as the Company Secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”) from 1 November 2021 until 24
November 2023, the date of her appointment as Executive
Director and Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Liao also serves
as director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Liao
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds
a Bachelor of Business Administration Degree in Professional
Accountancy. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She has more than 20 years of
experience in financial management, having previously worked
at an international audit firm.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Directors

Mr. Jeff HO Chi Kin, aged 55 was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 28 August 2020.
He holds a MBA from Hawaii Pacific University and a BBA
from the University of Hawaii. Mr. Ho is a qualified accountant
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in the operation
and development of online social platforms, online advertising
service business and mobile online games in Mainland China.
In addition, he has over 20 years of experience in wealth
management services in Mainland China, Hong Kong and USA,
providing independent financial consulting services for high-
end customers, focusing on corporate restructuring, mergers and
acquisitions and assisting domestic clients with managing assets
in their overseas listings. Mr. Ho was an executive director and
chief executive officer of Smartac International Holdings Ltd
from December 2019 to April 2021. Prior to that, Mr. Ho was an
executive director, and chief financial officer of Daohe Global
Group Limited, (HKEX stock code: 915), from 2018 to 2019.
Mr. Ho began his career as an accountant at Tang and Wong
CPA in Hawaii in 1993. From 2000 to 2005, he was a principal
for audit and assurance at CCP C.P.A. Limited where he served
clients in the property, manufacturing, construction, trading and
retailing, hotels and financial sectors. From 2005 to 2016, Mr.
Ho was founder and managing director of TAKA International
Corporation, a professional firm for corporate restructuring,
company secretarial and accounting services in Mainland China.
TAKA International Corporation was acquired by the Vistra
Group in 2014.
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FIRTS2E - Wdk - @EEE B REE - WE R
SRATERNET o H20054E 220164 - fi5e4:
%5 TAKA International Corporation AJEIHEA K&
A > 55N T B — BTE R R B A 2
A AFRE R ER R EZEAT - TAKA
International Corporation 142014 4F-# 5 25U £ [#
Wi
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Ricky LAl Kai Ming, aged 53, was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 31 August 2021. He
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Lancaster
University, Certificate of Business Sustainability Management
from University of Cambridge and Certificate in ESG Investing
from CFA Institute. Mr. Lai worked in several international
banking roles with Standard Chartered Bank, Deutsche Bank and
HSBC in London, Tokyo and Hong Kong in relation to corporate
banking, risk management and compliance. Mr. Lai’s last position
was at HSBC where he was Head of Client Management, Global
Banking and Markets in Hong Kong. Mr. Lai was the Chief
Executive Officer of FWM Group from December 2016 to April
2022, a multi-concept hospitality group operating restaurant
concepts, including Morton’s of Chicago, Morton’s Grille and
The Butchers Club in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Hong Kong,
Shenzhen and Taipei. Mr. Lai had been instrumental in building
up FWM Group’s restaurant network across China, with over 24
new units opening during his tenure with the FWM Group. Mr.
Lai was the President of Red Lobster China, a seafood concept
chain of restaurants which has over 750 outlets worldwide,
from April 2018 to April 2022. Mr. Lai has been an independent
non-executive director, the remuneration committee chairman,
the audit committee member and the nomination committee
member of i-Control Holdings Limited (HKEX stock code: 1402)
since 31 May 2022.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

EERSREBABNBEFE W)

Ex#)

BRI SEA: » 5358 A20214F8 H31 HAEZAT &
AN EVBALIEATEE S o BUTAERA R ITRER
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Directors (continued)

Honnus CHEUNG Ho Ling, aged 52, graduated from the
University of Queensland (Australia) with a Bachelor of
Commerce degree and with an Master of Business Administration
degree from Kellogg School of Business Northwestern University
and Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. Ms.
CHEUNG is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and Certified Practising
Accountants of Australia. She is also a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors (“HKloD”).

Ms. CHEUNG has served as Co-Founder and Chief Strategy
Officer of On-us Group since 2020. She has been the
Independent Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of Mobvista Inc.
(listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK”) with stock code:1860) since 2022, and an
Independent Director of VS MEDIA Holdings Limited (NASDAQ:
VSME) since September 2023. Moreover, she was the INED and
Audit Committee Chairman for iClick Interactive Asia Group
Limited (NASDAQ: ICLK) from 2017 to 2021. Prior to that,
she was the Chief Financial Officer, Asia Pacific and General
Manager, China for Travelzoo (NASDAQ: TZOO) from 2007 to
2019 and Regional Finance Director for Yahoo! Asia from 1999
to 2007. She built both Travelzoo Asia and Yahoo! Asia business
from zero to multi-billions. Prior to working for Yahoo!, Ms.
Cheung held various professional positions at American Standard
and PricewaterhouseCoopers. She has over 20 years’ experience
in financial and management functions in listed companies.

EERSREBABNBEFE W)

Ex#)

SRR et o 52 B BRI RIS -
P ERER LB > MAE P AL BRI A 1 AR B X A
WERL B K B AT TR A B B o R L R
W RHIT 2 (HKICPA) KUY € st il A & 1) T
E P AEFEEFZG(HKIOD)ERE H -

et H 2020 EAEIET On-us 2 3 1014 A1 46
N KCE RIS T « 0% H 2022 4EEIEAT B AL
PR B (E A s 6 38 5 T A BR 28 ) (14 s
L) M BT B HE  1860) 1M 7 FE L
THESF > LKL H 2023 49 H L VS MEDIA
Holdings Limited (44} 5 © VSME) 1 37 # 5
AN > BRI 2017 4E 2 2021 TS EE T
oy 55 A A BR S A (43T 5 ICLK) 8 57 9
WATHEERFZZ B G T o L2 >
2007 4 % 2019 4F & T Travelzoo ( 44 7 # 7 :
TZOO) 58 A I 15 i 75 B 3ife v B e A 4 3 > 3l i
1999 4F 25 2007 A& AT 55 5 I [ BA TS 0 B - %
# Travelzoo Asia Sl B2 55 I 1 SEM 18 25531 8
TAE I o AR TAERT > o Lo Aot 95 BIAR RN
T e B2 K G TR SR S AT AN [R] BT A
B TN R B M A B AR O A R
T ER AR o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not set up or operate any
share option scheme for the year ended 31 March 2024 and up
to the date of publication of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the
directors, and the Company’s chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:

(@)  The Company - Ordinary shares

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of shares

BB

AN ) B ELHE S F R 8 E20244F3 31 H R4
FE K B B AR T 5 H S 4 w57 BOE T AT
JREHERT ] -

EEvER

202443 H31H » AR AR BERS F5 SO0 & 1k
B ([ 585 25 S B )) 26 3 5 24661 BEA7 2 8w fit
FTrcsk - EHFHMARRN T Z BT BN B4R 7
I H AT AT I 0 ) (2 5 5 B 0] B e 1SR X VTS 2
FEFR) 2 By ~ MBS KBS A 2 S &
WA BUREE LTS N ESIE TR RET S 2
HE Sy JI) 111 2B B AR S T S A8 i 2 R R SR A
o

(@ AwE]—EEk
REDTAZBRORABERD ZFE

Approximate

RIZER percentage of
Personal Family Corporate/ Other the. t(ftal shares
Name of Director interest interest  trust interest interest Total In Issue as at
31 March 2024
20244
3A31A42E
=E|/ BETR?D
EENE AR XERER SR HeitREs my i3 SR
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 548,474,814 11,000 855,200 ~ 549,341,014 52.49
ARG A (Note 1)
(zE1)
1 3 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued) EE B )

Notes: st -

(1) As at 31 March 2024, Yee Hing Company Limited held 855,200 (1) JA2024%3A31H » FEBA B2 w70 2 H b &
shares of the Company through its subsidiary Active Lights /s Active Lights Company Limitedd§ A 428w
Company Limited, 55% of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee 855,200/ © Klayze Holdings Limited PAfE
Hing Company Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, which LI ERE ((ERE)) 2 ZREAN S A 7B
is the trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C. A RN A 2R T BT S W2 55% M o Al
Wong is a beneficiary of the Trust and was therefore deemed to be Sl BEREZ 2 am N > WO 2y i A SR 2
interested in 855,200 shares of the Company through the Trust’s A B 7] 2 HE i 1T HE AT A3 W 855,200 R 173 HE
interest in Yee Hing Company Limited. fil ©

(b)  Subsidiaries — Preference shares (b) BB F — B

Approximate

percentage of

the total

Number of shares preference

BHEE shares in issue

Corporate/ a; at 31

Personal Family trust Other Ez'larc q2£024
interests  interest  interest Interest Total V2024537
31EEEEE

3. RITERR

BAREZ ZEEz FrEs Hiofx By BrEsk

(i) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares'
City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited —f& 56/

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 200 - 208,800 - 209,000 99.52
vk bl

(i) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares?
Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — #8552

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 600 - - - 600 16.67
RIS

(iii)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited — Preference shares®
Stelux (Thailand) Limited —f&5&/5>

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 5,100 - - - 5,100 100
HOAIH SR

OB () A RA TR 14
2024 AFAEHR



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued) BB A

Notes: BFRE -

(1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the (1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited %7/ 7l
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right BRI BB 2 ] o B S I A 1 SR B A AR Y (8]
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. FERLE,  RLSTG SERE A 43 BUAT: ] oAt 232 )

2) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the 2) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited 242
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right A B A R o BB B A SR AR
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. 1] 5 FRCJR, > (BN R 4 AT AT HLAt 2 ) o

(3)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited is a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. (3)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited % A2\ &) (4 B 8§ 28 ) o
Joseph C. C. Wong is entitled to approximately 8.6% of the voting TR AR A R I 28 W BT REA 195,100 LB o
power of such subsidiary and an annual fixed dividend by virtue JBe = A % B0 Ja 2 ) R A8 . 6 %0 150 22 HE T 4 47 Y [i]
of the 5,100 preference shares held by him but not to any other FERLE, B3I SR S A AT HE A ) o

profit sharing.

Save as disclosed above, no directors, chief executive of B L SCRr g4 A - MRIEA A AR IERE S KON E
the Company or their associates have any interest or short A A5 565 3 5 2 A6k T "B A7 8 e T L Bk A 2 ] R
positions in the shares or underlying shares and debentures S PITAR b TiT2 F A T R 5 A By I AR HE ST ]
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within PR > AN RIS - R AT BN B ER S
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register F1% Mt 28 N\ ML S T A 2 ) A A A B 35 T (4
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise 8 I7 N 3 B R 91 55 XV BT ) 2 28) 1Y J% M4 BSORH B
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the 3 B A5 vh A AT AT HE 4 BRIR A ST A ) A T
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed HZ R AR SRR

Companies or no such interest or right has been granted or

exercised.

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT REZHFRPEXRHIATURE ZRRER
TO THE SFO

As at 31 March 2024, the following persons had interests in the R 8 25 2 3 B R 491 2 3 3 oAk 1T B A 2 6w it e
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the FiEk o DU ALIR20244E3 431 HIRA L E 2 R
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 3 SRR B e B A A

of the SFO:

1 5 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT BERSERPEFRHETFUREZRRER )
TO THE SFO (continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company REABRZRBREBRG 2T
Number of shares Approximate
RoEE percentage of
Personal Family  Corporate/ Other the total shares
Name of Shareholder interest interest trust interest interest Total In issue as at
31 March 2024
20245
3A3TRMERE
3 BRITRA

RERM A B ARz KE#E ErtiER Hituhgzs L ZBHNBEDL

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 548,474,814 11,000 855,200 — 549,341,014 52.49

A et (Note 1)

(Htat1)

Notes: W& -

(1) As at 31 March 2024, Yee Hing Company Limited held 855,200 (1) 202443431 H » F8HA B2 v 78 1t 5 K} e
shares of the Company through its subsidiary Active Lights /v 7] Active Lights Company Limited A7 42 7]
Company Limited, 55% of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee 855,200/ By © Klayze Holdings Limited A2
Hing Company Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, which — M ERE (MFRE)) 2 ZRE NS A A
is the trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C.C. PR T2 BT M 18 B 2 55%ME 6 o B A8 4G
Wong is a beneficiary of the Trust and was therefore deemed to be AERAEREZ Z N > SO A i (5 RE R FE AT
interested in 855,200 shares of the Company through the Trust’s PR ) 2 M f AT 7522 71855, 20047y

interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

OB () A RA TR 16
2024 AFAEHR
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT
TO THE SFO (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of any
person (other than a director or chief executive of the Company
or his/her respective associate(s)), who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO as at 31 March 2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 62%
— five largest suppliers combined 79%
Sales
— the largest customer 5%
— five largest customers combined 7%

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong, an executive director and a controlling shareholder, was
beneficially interested in less than 30% of the shares in one
of the Group’s five largest suppliers. Save as disclosed above,
none of the directors, their respective close associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares)
have any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of

the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the directors of the Company, at least 25%
of the issued share capital of the Company was held by public
members as at the date of this report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following continuing connected transactions are based on
normal commercial terms agreed after arms’ length negotiations
between the relevant parties and are in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group. The continuing connected
transactions are subject to the annual review, reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and exempt from
independent shareholders” approval.

The Group’s internal audit function conducted an audit to verify
compliance of the following continuing connected transactions
with the Listing Rules and a summary of the audit findings were
presented to the independent non-executive directors as part of
their annual review of the continuing connected transactions.

Continuing connected transactions of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 March 2024

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the
following continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
all these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and
(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

RADNRERE

RRIEA L R AL 28 PRS2 B0 BB A Y R 55 f
H o RAER A HIIA R R E BT IRA P R D25%
HARNLEFRA -

FEBRHR S

AT 45 268 B W6 58 7 T B TR A T 4045 O 581
A T ) — R T SR > Sl A AR 4 B — M S H
HEBSAAE T o FRAERR I 2 ) R Y A v I
BT AT R mleE 2 BRI (T B A D) 56
TAATEA B AF LA B ~ R e iRl > I
FR RIS R HLHE o

AT Y A ST IRAEAT T AL I NI
TR A R i 2 oy B E T LRI 5 BAVE o A 2R
ML O SRS 8 S DR AT B A 5 A B B 4 4
BH 58 22 2 B —F 0 o

AEEHZE2024F3A31B LB BEE2EER
BR5

PR ETT RS 14A. 550 » AN F 8 IEATIE
W OEMU N RIEFEBRT S o e R

LEMNITEZELY

(@)  IAAEE K B EERSRAR T E S

(b) R RS R ET L 5 K

() ARHRNLE %% 52 50 0 AH T e 24 - 00
A R SRS B3 O kT o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BERBRS ()

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s AR s 2 LA ) e s B S 5 YR B
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the 3000%% (BERT) [ 50 B 15 ERH 38 A% B0 ) AL Sh 2
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) W TR 28 BB il W55 74058 [ 7 s L il
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews IR E 1) 45 48 BRI W 28 2 B A R bR 4 ) > AR )
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to A5 BT L 52 W S A 0 B 45 A R W 22 2 A L s o
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Y > IR BT RSS 14A 5616 - AX R
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by S 2 A A B 1 AT 98 0 ) A R W 58 ) % A
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PRE SR o AR ) 2 1) A v T 32 T £ (1A% B
The directors confirm that the Company’s auditor has issued FT ) - A o

an unqualified letter in respect of the continuing connected

transactions disclosed by the Group below in accordance with

Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter

has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange.

Summary of the continuing connected transactions: FrAE BRI S A 2L

1. Renewal of leases or licensing of office premises, 1. EFHESEHFAERARLIEST - FY

storerooms, parking spaces and warehouse spaces E-EURREE
(expenses)/
Connected persons Nature of transactions income Annual Caps Notes
BABEA L REMHE (XZH) WA FELER By
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT

Mengiwa Property Investment Limited Leasing of properties and (7,281) (7,400) (i), (i)

(“MPIL”) as Landlord/Licensor Licensing of Storerooms & (vi)
W3 SE R A BRA R (THIE]) T 4y 2 T ) 25 2]

[ E S (IPN
MPIL, as Licensor Licensing of parking spaces (406) (500) (i), (iii) &
R TLIDN BNLFFA] (vi)
Active Lights Company Limited (“ALCL”)  Leasing of a warehouse and (194) (200) (i), (iii)

as Landlord licensing of parking space & (v)
Active Lights Company Limited (TALCL)) #0454 & K e {37 &F 7]

ERET
MPIL as Principal Provision of management and 2,580 2,838 (iv) & (vi)
B - S ERREAN property agency liaison

services
PR AL T R SE A
Tt s M s
1 9 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes:

All definitions in the notes below have the same meaning as referred to
in the Company’s announcement dated 24 March 2023 unless otherwise
indicated.

(i)  Leasing of properties and licensing of storeroom and parking
spaces

On 24 March 2023, Stelux Holdings Limited (“SHL”) and
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited (“TSWCL”), wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, each individually as tenant/licensee,
entered into the Stelux House Tenancy Agreements, Stelux House
Storeroom Licence and Stelux House Carpark Licence with MPIL
in respect of the following properties:

Premises A: whole of 27th floor and portion of 28th floor of
Stelux House

Premises B: office unit number 2206A on the 22nd floor of
Stelux House

Premises C: portion of 21st floor of Stelux House

Storeroom: storeroom 6A on the 6th floor

storeroom 6A on the 16th floor
storeroom 1B on the 17th floor
storeroom 6A on the 18th floor
storeroom 6A on the 20th floor and
storeroom 6A on the 22nd floor
Carpark: nine carpark spaces at Stelux House

For a term of one year from 1 April 2023 up to and including 31
March 2024.

The total monthly rental for Premises A, B and C amounted
to HK$584,347.5 (exclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges). The total monthly licence fees for
Storeroom and Carpark amounted to HK$24,840 and HK$36,100
respectively (inclusive of rates, government rent and management
charges). All rents and licence fees are payable monthly in
advance in cash by the tenants/licensees on the first day of each
and every calendar month.

The monthly rents of the above-mentioned premises and
storerooms were determined on an arm’s length basis taking
into account a rental valuation conducted by an independent
property valuer dated 24 March 2023 and as such reflected
the prevailing market rental values/licence fees of the subject
premises and storerooms. The monthly licence fee for the Stelux
House Carpark Licence was determined on an arm’s length
basis taking into account prevailing market rates for carparking
spaces in the vicinity of Stelux House. Accordingly, the directors
considered the Stelux House Tenancy Agreements, Stelux House
Storeroom Licence and Stelux House Carpark Licence were on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

RERBR S ()
BeE

Bk 55 A 51 W3 40 > AR B RE T A R 8 A 36 B AR A8 DR
20234E3 724 H B FI3E 2 885 Pl HAR R R 28 -

() HEEVERBUERENFT

R20233 H24 H » AN A2 E MA@ EIEE
3 CEFED AT PR T (TSHL) B3 ok 8 £ A7 FR A 7
(MM )) (% B RAE BT T ) 5
BHEERT . EDE 2 PO B e - B
= KB Wk > REABLTY
ES

YA - B L2 7 A K28Rk —

oy
YEB : EOLRIEE 0 2212206A%E Z WA
AT

L/E o BRSO 2 T — 34

W= oA E
16M6AREM E
1781 B =
18H6ARY =
2086 AT % I
2216 AT =

BV B2 L LR EE

FHAEY 202344 A1 HE20244£3A31H (5
EezH) > Bl

WIZEA ~ BRCHIAE A & BB 584,347.5
IC (LG 2 ~ BUR AL R B FLER) o = K
B0 A H FFa] A 2 AR A A B s 24,840
JE 36,1000 (LFE 2= ~ BN HbFl & 8 38
) o FTA AL A S R R A AL T A
AR IS A B A& TS -

bl 3 K Rk A A LA T AR IR N F DA e
FE o AT BB Y EAG (R 20234F3 H24 H
VEH T A E > HaZfh (B % 3 K b
FEWBATIT S E R A - B
R R ARG S (7T P S LR B PN /N
TR RIRERE > S ET A B R 2 PO B B A 2 B
T4 o NIk > EHBE > TeiES.OM
Bk~ BOERE PO W 2 AT 1 ek %
e 2 b BN Ao A B e ) — O o SRR EET
S JBATA I MR A A R R B A
ﬁﬁ_ o

OB () A RA TR
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(i)

Leasing of warehouse and licensing of parking space

On 24 March 2023, Active Lights Company Limited (“ALCL”")
(as licensor) and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as
licensee), entered into Warehouse Licence with respect to the
following warehouse in Hong Kong:

one warehouse unit and one car parking space at an industrial
building in Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Kowloon Bay
Building”).

for a term of one year from 1 April 2023 up to and including 31
March 2024.

All licence fees are payable monthly in advance in cash by the
licensee on the first day of each and every calendar month.

The monthly license fees were determined on an arm’s length
basis taking into account the prevailing market rates in the
vicinity, which indicated that the licence fees were favourable
to the Group. Accordingly, the directors considered the
Warehouse Licence was on normal commercial terms and was
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Group has been using the subject office premises, storerooms,
warehouses and parking spaces primarily for office, administrative
and storage purposes generally over a long period of time. In
order to avoid possible disruption to its business due to relocation,
the Group intends to continue to lease/licence the subject
office premises, storerooms, parking spaces and warehouses
following the expiration of the relevant leases/licences. The
directors consider it to be in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole for the Group to continue with use
as long as the relevant rental/ licence fee and other terms are on
normal commercial terms or better to the Group so as to avoid
relocation and refurbishment costs which otherwise the Group
will have to incur.

The continuing connected transactions as set out in (i) to (ii)
above, have been aggregated for the purpose of classification
in accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, and the
aggregate annual cap for the financial year ended 31 March 2024
was approximately HK$8,100,000.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

FEBBRS A
BEE © ()

(i)

(iii)

HERBEREMT

202343 H24H > Active Lights Company
Limited (TALCLI) (fF 2 #F T ) Be AR 24wl —[H] &2
R A ) (R 2 M RT ) BT 7 8 R R e B
o AR, N BB

{327 75 0 UL — K (T L
1) — S — R =

FHAEY 5202344 A1 HE20244£3A31H (5
ez H) > Bl

A B 2 o T A T A B LA
G -

B A A 2 s AP IR A E o R
AL Z BAT IR A i B BER 8Y AT T AT 1)
PACEIAE AR o R - HIRGRS o FFAl T
Wik T4 — MR SE MR S > SRS B - AT
BT R 2 BB A 2 o

AYEINE R — E RN A BRI A EYE - G
WE -~ FERA . —BRIEARAE - 7B
Yy o e OB T AR BB R R
S I B BRAELAY 7 mT D 1 A AR
A BRI AEYE - YE - B -
HERRS > NS B A G F el 2 K A
AN — BT 2 M B e A AR S T A ) B
(AR B T O AL RO S A BT AR A
T LT S A A m RO 2 B A 45

Mg EATBLHIEE 14A.8146 > DA E ()2 Gi) Tk i =2
b BB A R 2 R B R Y T E 2024
43 131 H 1k BB BE R4 L IRARER A B s
8,100,0007T ©



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

Provision of management and property agency liaison services

On 24 March 2022, Stelux Properties Agency Limited (“SPAL”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as agent, renewed
the management and property agency liaison services agreement
(“Service Agreement”) with MPIL, as principal, for a term of three
years from 1 April 2022 up to and including 31 March 2025 for
the provision of the following services (“Services”):

(@) contract administration with respect to contracts entered
into between MPIL and third parties from time to time;

(b)  property agency liaison and tenancy management;
(c)  management of the property manager of Stelux House; and
(d)  other miscellaneous administrative services.

SPAL has been providing the Services with respect to Stelux
House since 1998 and has accumulated relevant knowledge and
experience. MPIL is satisfied so far with the Services provided
by the Group, whilst the remuneration received by the Group
is enough to cover the relevant costs incurred by the Group in
providing the Services. As such, SPAL continued to provide the
Services to MPIL following the expiration of the preceding service
agreement on 31 March 2022.

Monthly remuneration was set at HK$215,000 per calendar
month (in the year ended 31 March 2024) payable in advance in
cash on the first day of each and every calendar month. Parties
to the Service Agreement shall negotiate and agree in good faith
to increase the remuneration on an annual basis for the third
year by not more than 10% over that in the preceding year with
reference to the actual increase in costs (including but not limited
to the related staff salaries) incurred by the Group with respect
to the provision of the Services. In the event that no agreement is
reached between the parties in negotiating the remuneration for
the next year, the remuneration shall remain unchanged.

The remuneration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and with reference to the estimate of the costs
to be incurred by the Company with respect to the provision of the
Services in the financial year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly,
the directors considered the terms of the Service Agreement were
on normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Provision of management and property agency liaison services
(continued)

(iv)

(continued)

With reference to the monthly remuneration under the Service
Agreement, the Annual Cap Amount for this continuing connected
transaction was set at HK$2,838,000 for the financial year ended
31 March 2024.

Relationships between counterparties

FEBBRS A
ByEE - ()

RHUEERMFENEBERE (8

(iv)

()

2 ARE IR ok 2B 1 B4 > s B =
ZHE202443 A31 H1E W BRI 2 4% FRR&
FHRE B HETE2,838,0007T ©

HXSH T ZBE

(v)  ALCL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Yee Hing Company Limited (v)  ALCLAFEBARAR ([588]) 2 EME A -
(“Yee Hing”). The Trust, of which Mr. Joseph C.C.Wong, is a ARG e T AR AT IO RE R PO BT IR
beneficiary, holds 55% of the total issued shares of Yee Hing. HIBZ 55% o TR ek AR A RS >
As Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong is a director of the Company, ALCL is ALCLZ BRI e 2 B A8 ) - ke » A
an associate of Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong and hence is a connected SR AR N E 2 BN
person of the Company.

(vi)  MPIL is a 30%-—controlled company (as defined under Rule 14A.06 (vi)  IHFER AN o A B S A MR 30% 84
of the Listing Rules) held indirectly by Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong, e AR (% BT BLHIEE 14A.0600EF0) -
who is a director of the Company.

2. Master Property Agreement 2. YFEBEHmE

Connected persons Nature of transactions Income Annual Caps Note

AL REME WA FELR B &£

HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
All of Chumphol Kanjanapas (also Leasing, sub-leasing or licensing 3,633 9,999 (i)

offices, shops and warehouses by the
Group to the Optical 88 Entities*

AR 1 IR B8 8 T A +AH B ~ /A EEF

known as Joseph C. C. Wong)
and the Joseph Family Members

AN etk B LT SR B

23

AR AR b

Optical 88 Entities includes Optical 88 Group (BVI) Limited,
eGG Optical Boutique Group Limited, Thong Sia Optical Group
Limited and Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd which are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of a company wholly-owned by Mr Joseph C.C.
Wong.

On 1 April 2021, the Master Property Agreement was entered into
between Stelux Holdings Limited with the Optical 88 Entities.
Under the Master Property Agreement, members of the Group will
lease, sub-lease or license certain offices, shops and warehouse to
members of Optical 88 Entities from time to time.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

IR5i88 H # A5 Optical 88 Group (BVI)
Limited * eGG Optical Boutique Group
Limited ~ Thong Sia Optical Group Limited &
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BHERBMR S ()

2. Master Property Agreement (continued) 2. YIEBWEE)

Note: (i) The office, shops and warehouse leased, sub-leased or
licensed by the Group to the Optical 88 Entities are as

WIRE + () A4 IR SEe s TS AL T - 20 FHLEHT vl (1)
HENE SRR

follows:

Number Region Nature Location

FoL hE HE b

3 Macau Shop Em Macau, Rua da Palha N20 Beco da Palha
M Ji5 fili N 1A, San Vo Res-do-chao F and G

4 Macau Shop Em Macau, Estrada da Areia Preta N5, Kei Kuan Bairro (Bloco 1 A Bloco 6)
] T il Res-do-Chao G

6 SEA Office 63 Ubi Avenue 1 #06-04 Singapore 408937
oLt WEAZE

7 SEA Office G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A Bandar Puteri, 47100 Puchong, Selangor Darul
SRFg R W Ehsan, Malaysia

9 SEA Shop Central Rama Il
AR Ji fl

11 SEA Warehouse Kai Tak
TR A y=pi

12 SEA Office CP27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza, 34, Jalan Sultan

R WAE

The total monthly rental for the above properties approximated
HK$300,000 (exclusive of rates, government rent and management
charges). All rents incurred during FY2023/24 were paid during
the year. The continuing connected transactions as set out
above have been aggregated for the purpose of classification
in accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, and the
aggregate annual cap for the financial year ended 31 March 2024
was approximately HK$9,999,999.

The monthly rents of the above properties were determined
on an arms-length basis taking into account publicly available
information of similar properties leased, sub-leased or licensed by
independent third parties.

The above continuing connected transactions also
constitute related party transactions and are disclosed
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements on
page 160. For operating lease rental in respect of the
office premises, the amounts shown in Note 36(a)(ii)
to the consolidated financial statements on page 162 were
calculated at effective rents in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Ismail, 50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

ot 2Eny A A L4 AR A A s HE300,0000T (O
G2~ BUM U S ) - AT 22023724
A BCAE AR AL & B AE N AT o Rl i R4
B A 5 AR T BRI ER 1 4A 8 10R A DR RTSE.
M ZE202443 A 31 H 1k W BUE 4 FBR A
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HRMRFEE

b R A R 2 2 R U B 52 S iR
F160E 4 A BRI 36 MR o A=
WM EEMENT > 55162 HiH MHREM
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

To the extent permitted by Bermuda law, and as permitted by
the Bye-laws of the Company, a director of the Company may
be indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any liability
incurred by the director save where incurred or sustained through
his/her own wilful neglect or default, fraud and dishonesty. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout the
financial year and is currently in force at the time of approval of
this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’” liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions brought against its
directors and officers.

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director
or a former director of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries may be
indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries” assets against
any liability incurred by the director to a person other than the
Hong Kong Subsidiaries or an associated company of the Hong
Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent permitted by law. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force at the time of approval
of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong
Kong who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

Last but not least, | express my most sincere thanks and gratitude
to colleagues and staff members for their commitment, hard work

and loyalty to the Group during an unprecedented year.

On behalf of the Board

Joseph C. C. Wong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

. Group Turnover decreased by 4.7% to HK$767.6 million

J Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company of
HK$473.2 million

. Net asset value at HK$912.3 million (31 March 2023:
HK$430.1 million)

o Group gearing ratio at 18.3% (31 March 2023: 60.7%)

During the year ended 31 March 2024 (“FY2023/24"), Group
turnover decreased by 4.7% to HK$767.6 million compared
with HK$805.5 million in the year ended 31 March 2023
(“FY2022/23").

A profit attributable to Group equity holders of HK$473.2 million
was recorded in FY2023/24 (FY2022/23: Profit of HK$50.8
million) after taking into account of the following special items:

- The gain (“Disposal gain 2024”) on disposal of a subsidiary
(“Disposal of a subsidiary”) and the disposal of a stock of
watches (“Disposal of Watches”) of HK$544.2 million in
FY2023/24;

—  The gain on disposal of a property in Hong Kong (“Disposal
gain 2023") of HK$78.7 million in FY2022/23;

- The accounting impact from HKFRS 16 Leases (non-cash)
of HK$2.9 million (income) (FY2022/23: HK$12.4 million
(income));

- The impairment loss relating to right-of-use assets mainly
arising from retail stores with declined store profitability
(non-cash) of HK$18.1 million (FY2022/23: HK$5.6
million);

—  Avrevaluation difference of properties (non-cash) of HK$0.1
million (expense) (FY2022/23: HK$14.8 million (income))
due to revaluation of investment properties;

—  The impairment loss of intangible assets (non-cash) of
HK$1.1 million (FY22/23: HK$3.9 million) due to reducing
recoverable amount;

- Government pandemic subsidies of HK$6.9 million
received in FY2022/23 while nil in FY2023/24.

[ A 4.7 % B HKS 767 610 B

AN EIHE £5 FEE AN EAG A B HKS473.246
H

A EAHKS912.31A 5 (20234E3 H 31
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SEEGE R 18.3% (202343 H31H -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

If the above special items were excluded, the Group would have
reported a loss of HK$54.6 million in FY2023/24 (FY2022/23:
HK$52.5 million).

In FY2023/24, sales of HK$40.3 million was recognised upon
the Disposal of Watches. If excluding the sales of Disposal
of Watches, Group Turnover would be HK$727.3 million, a
decrease of 9.7% compared with FY2022/23.

The Group gross profit margin was 50.2% in FY2023/24
(FY2022/23: 45.3%), increase by 4.9%. The increase in gross
profit margin was mainly brought by enhancement of product
portfolio.

In FY 2023/24, the Group continued to implement inventory
measures. The Group inventory balance at 31 March 2024 was
HK$226.3 million, a slight increase of 1.9% compared with the
balance at 31 March 2023 of HK$222.1 million. Continuous
inventory control and prudent stock procurement are in place to
strengthen balance sheet management.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil per ordinary share).

CITY CHAIN GROUP
o City Chain Group turnover increased by 2.6% year-on-year

o City Chain Group loss before interest and tax (“LBIT”)
reduced to HK$2.6 million (FY 2022/23: HK$8.2 million)

The CITY CHAIN Group operates around 109 stores in Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China (“Greater China”), Singapore,
Thailand and Malaysia together with online stores under our own
brands of “CITY CHAIN” and “SOLVIL et TITUS”".

The CITY CHAIN Group reported a 2.6% increase in turnover to
HK$543.0 million (FY2022/23: HK$529.2 million). If excluding
the sales of HK$40.3 million recognised upon the Disposal
of Watches, the turnover in FY2023/24 would be HK$502.7
million, a decrease of 5.0% compared with FY2022/23.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Greater China

Turnover for City Chain operations in Greater China was
HK$321.5 million (FY 2022/23: HK$274.1 million), representing
a y-o-y growth of 17.3%. The rise was mainly contributed by
the sales of HK$40.3 million recognised upon the Disposal of
Watches, combined with the growth of retail shops in Hong
Kong and Macau of 8.4% y-o-y. Same store sales growth of 5.6%
was recorded in Hong Kong in FY2023/24. However, retail shops
sales in Mainland China reported a y-o-y decrease of 28.1%
due to softened consumer spending power under the uncertain
economic environment. An EBIT of HK$8.0 million (FY 2022/23:
loss of HK$14.7 million) was recorded after taking into account
of the following factors:

—  the gain resulted from the Disposal of Watches of HK$34.7
million in FY2023/24;

- an impairment loss of HK$0.4 million in FY2023/24 due to
valuation of investment properties at year end (FY2022/23:
gain of HK$10.6 million); and

—  the accounting impact from HKFRS 16 Leases of HK$2.2
million (income) (FY2022/23: HK$9.4 million (income)).

If the above factors were excluded in both years, the LBIT of
FY2023/24 would be HK$28.5 million (FY2022/23: HK$34.7
million). The improvement of operating results was mainly
contributed by enhanced product mix which drove margin
increment as well as cautious cost control through streamlining
process flows in order to boost operational efficiency.

Meanwhile, our Greater China online business of our own brands
“CITY CHAIN” and “SOLVIL et TITUS” delivered a profitable
result in FY2023/24. The Group continued to invest and expand
our e-commerce business to prioritize our online brand exposure
and customer engagement.

A E--
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Southeast Asia

Turnover for City Chain operations in Southeast Asia was
HK$221.5 million, declined by 13.2% y-o-y given prevailing
inflation and slowdown in private consumption. In addition, a
relatively high comparable base of turnover was recorded in the
first half year of FY 2022/23 when movement control and travel
restriction boosted retail rebound. LBIT of HK$10.6 million was
recorded in FY2023/24 (FY2022/23: An EBIT of HK$6.5 million).

With continual investments in our e-commerce platforms to
deploy welcoming products for consumers and corresponding
marketing efforts, our e-commerce business in Southeast Asia
regions continued to develop satisfactorily with sales growth by
25% y-0-y in FY2023/24 and the momentum continued in April
to May 2024.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT AND WHOLESALE TRADING

Turnover for this division comprising our supply chain and
wholesale trading subsidiaries decreased by 18.7% to HK$224.5
million (FY2022/23: HK$276.3 million) and an EBIT of HK$27.2
million was posted (FY2022/23: HK$41.0 million).

Our wholesale trading unit will continue to launch various
marketing campaigns with quality service support to increase
sell-through rate to retailers.

GROUP OUTLOOK

FY2023/24 is supposed to be a year of recovery, but the pace of
recovery has been blunted by the global economic slowdown,
the uncertain situation in the world, with some important
elections coming up and multiple major conflicts. It may not be
realistic to expect the retailer performance would return to pre-
pandemic level in such post- covid environment. In addition,
the new waves of visitors and residents are cautious spenders
on the lookout for value, and they are seeking more interesting
and diverse experiences rather than time pieces, which would
exacerbate the plights of the increasingly challenging watch
industry environment.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Against such uncertain environment in all operating regions,
the Group maintains a restrained and prudent approach in
management to ensure sustainability. The Group also remains
cautious in taking various measures in optimising internal costs,
manpower and efficiency in order to enhance productivity and
corporate financial performance, while endeavoring to achieve
long term stable development for our e-commerce business
in various regions. The Group will continue to invest in this
growing segment in order to realise the seamless connection
between our physical stores operations and our ecommerce
presence to unlock the potential of omnichannel.

FINANCE

The Group’s capital management, currency and interest rate
movement are constantly monitored and reviewed by the
management of the Group to address and manage relevant
financial risks relating to the Group’s operations. The Group
maintains prudent treasury management policies to address
liquidity to finance both short-term and long-term working
capital needs for business operations. Funds are generated from
business operating activities and banking facilities in the form of
term loans and short-term trading facilities. Forecast and actual
cash flow analyses are continuously monitored. Maturity of assets
and liabilities and requirement of financial resources for business
operations are prudently managed.

Group gearing ratio was 18.3% (31 March 2023: 60.7%) with
shareholders’ funds standing at HK$906.6 million (31 March
2023: HK$424.1 million) and net debts of HK$166.3 million
(31 March 2023: HK$257.4 million). The net debts are based
on the bank borrowings of HK$234.0 million (31 March 2023:
HK$342.8 million) and less bank balance and cash of HK$67.7
million (31 March 2023: HK$85.4 million). The bank borrowings
comprised of HK$92.5 million repayable within one year and
HK$141.5 million with scheduled repayment after one year but
repayable on demand and were classified as current liabilities.
The unutilized banking facilities as at 31 March 2024 was
HK$79.3 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

On 12 December 2023, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a Share Sale agreement with an
independent third party for a disposal of entire issued share
capital of another wholly owned subsidiary of the Company at
an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$535.1 million.
The transaction was completed on 29 February 2024. According
to the terms stated on the Share Sale agreement, HK$175.0
million was received in FY2023/24. The proceeds received were
retained as general working capital of the Group and used to
repay portion of bank loan in order to reduce interest expenses.

The Group’s major borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars and
mostly based on a floating rate at HIBOR or bank prime lending
rates. As major assets of the Group are in Hong Kong dollars, the
natural hedge mechanism is applied.

As at 31 March 2024, the current assets and current liabilities
were approximately HK$462.8 million (31 March 2023:
HK$420.0 million) and HK$437.7 million (31 March 2023:
HK$564.5 million), respectively. The current ratio was
approximately 1.06 (0.74 as at 31 March 2023).

As at 31 March 2024, the Group's total equity funds amounted
to HK$912.3 million.

The Group does not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

The Group does not engage in speculative derivative trading.

As at 31 March 2024, a subsidiary of the Company had
contingent liabilities in respect of bank guarantees given to
landlords in lieu of rental deposits for certain retails shops and
suppliers amounting to approximately HK$7.738 million (31
March 2023: HK$7.202 million).

The Group does not have plans for material investments or
change of capital assets.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

As at 31 March 2024, certain property, plant and equipment
and investment properties amounting to HK$433.8 million (31
March 2023: HK$443.6 million) were pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.

The investment properties were revalued by independent valuers
as at 31 March 2024. A revaluation loss of HK$0.1 million was
recorded in the year ended 31 March 2024 accordingly.

NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES,
REMUNERATION POLICIES, BONUS AND TRAINING
SCHEMES

The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on a regular
basis and remuneration packages are in line with market
practices in the relevant countries where the Group operates.
As at 31 March 2024, the Group had around 825 employees
(31 March 2023: 842). The Group offers KPI related bonuses
to eligible employees based on the performance of the Group
and the individual employee. The Group also provides related
training programmes to improve the quality, competence and
skills of its employees.

Joseph C.C. Wong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
STELUX HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 169, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2024,
and the consolidated income statement and statement of other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated balance sheet of the Group as
at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B3 B R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 EERE

Key audit matter

Net realisable value of inventories

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The net realisable value of inventories is
identified as a key audit matter because of the
magnitude of the inventories combined with
the judgements associated with determining the
amount of allowance for inventories.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group recorded
inventories (net of provision) of approximately
HK$226.251 million.

The write-down of inventories to net realisable
value was estimated by management through
the application of judgement and the use of
assumptions.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, reversal
of provision for inventories of approximately
HK$20.921 million was recognised to the
consolidated income statement based on
management’s assessment.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s
estimation and judgement applied in
determining the net realisable value of
inventories include:

¢ Understanding and evaluating the
inventories allowance/write down
policy of the Group and the design
and implementation of the key
controls over the management’s
assessment process;

o Assessing the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors;

¢ Evaluating the outcome of prior year
period assessment of net realisable
value of inventories to access the
effectiveness of management's
estimation process;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the
accuracy of the inventory ageing
reports; and

o Evaluating the key assumptions and
estimates applied by management
to determine the provisioning
percentages applicable to individual
ageing categories of inventory by
comparing to current year and
historical sales trends.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 BERE

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Refer to Note 17 and Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The impairment of property, plant and
equipment, and right-of-use assets is identified
as a key audit matter because of the significant
judgement involved in assessing the amount of
impairment of property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had retail
stores assets recorded under property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$152.815 million and
HK$82.170 million, respectively.

The carrying amount of the retail stores assets
is written down to their recoverable amount
when the assets carrying amount exceeded their
estimated recoverable amount.

Management determined that each retail store
is a cash-generating unit and monitors retail
stores financial performance for the existence of
impairment indicators, such as stores making a
loss and early closure of stores before the lease
term.

The recoverable amount of self-owned retail
shops is determined using fair value less costs
to sell approach, of which the fair values of
properties were largely based on property
valuations obtained from professional property
valuer. Meanwhile, the recoverable amount of
the remaining retail stores assets is determined
by value-in-use calculations using discounted
cash flow projections based on the forecasts
approved by management covering the
remaining tenure of the lease.

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures in relation to management's
assessment process for identifying
impairment indications include:

o Understanding and evaluating
management’s process for identifying
impairment indicators and the design
and implementation of key controls
over the management's impairment
assessment;

o Assessing the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors;

¢ Evaluating the historical accuracy of
forecast by, for example, comparing
the forecast used in prior years
model to the actual performance of
the retail stores in the current year;

¢ Challenging the judgements made
by management in identifying
impairment indicators;

o Obtaining the cash flow forecasts
prepared by management,
understanding the major
assumptions adopted in the cash
flow forecasts for each cash-
generating unit and checking
arithmetic accuracy of the forecast
calculation;
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B2 EERE

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Management carried out an impairment
assessment for such assets which have
an impairment indicator and as a result
impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$6.732 million
and impairment loss of right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$18.056 million have
been recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year.

Impairment assessment on trademarks

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements,

The impairment of trademarks is identified as a
key audit matter because the assessment which
is based on past performance and management’s
expectations for the future market development
involved significant judgment and estimates.

As at 31 March 2024, trademarks of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$37.249 million.

Trademarks with an indefinite useful life are
carried at costs and are not amortised.

Management tests annually whether the
trademarks suffered any impairment by
considering the economic benefit to be
generated from trademarks. The recoverable
amount is determined based on a value-in-
use calculation. This calculation used pre-
tax cashflows projections based on financial
budgets prepared by management.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

o Comparing the major assumptions
such as growth rates, budgeted
sales and gross margins to
historical results and evaluating
their reasonableness in light of
current and expected future market
conditions; and

¢ Evaluating the sufficiency of the
disclosure of the impairment
assessment by management in the
consolidated financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to management's
impairment assessment on trademarks
include:

o Understanding and evaluating
management’s process for identifying
impairment indicators and the design
and implementation of key controls
over the management's impairment
assessment;

o Assessing the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors;

¢ Evaluating the historical accuracy of
forecast by, for example, comparing
the forecast used in prior years
model to the actual performance in
the current year;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B3 B R

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Impairment assessment on trademarks (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no ¢ Understanding and evaluating the

impairment loss of trademarks is recognised to design and implementation of key
the consolidated income statements. controls over the management’s
assessment process.

o Understanding from management
the business plans associated with
these trademarks;

o Assessing the appropriateness
of impairment method used and
evaluating key assumptions such
as growth rate and discount rate
applied by management; and

o Evaluating the sufficiency of the
disclosure of the impairment
assessment by management in the
consolidated financial statements.
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B2 EERE

Key audit matter

Going concern assessment

Refer to Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The going concern assessment is identified as
a key audit matter as significant management
judgement is involved in determining whether
a material uncertainty exists and in estimating
the Group's future cash flows and funding
requirements.

As at 31 March 2024, included in current
liabilities of the Group are bank borrowings
of approximately HK$233.984 million which
contain a repayment on demand clause,
HK$92.485 million out of HK$233.984 million
are bank borrowings that are contractually
repayable within the next twelve months,
together with the related bank borrowings
interests of HK$17.448 million. However,
as of that date, the available cash and cash
equivalents of the Group was only maintained
at HK$67.711 million. These conditions may
create doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures in relation to management's
assessment of going concern includec:

Obtaining an understanding of the
inputs and key assumptions of the
cash flow projections prepared for
the purpose of the going concern
assessment;

Challenging the inputs and assumptions
used in the cash flow projections
by benchmarking them against
historical trends and data and
observable external economic data;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 BERE

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

Going concern assessment (Continued)

The Group’s consolidated financial statements
were prepared on a going concern basis.
The directors” assessment in respect of going
concern is set out in Note 2.

Assessing the availability of unused
banking facilities during the forecast
periods by inspecting relevant
documentation and evaluating
whether the facilities were sufficient
to meet the Group's funding needs
with reference to the cash flow
projections;

Performing sensitivity analysis on
the cash flow projections;

Assessing the possible mitigating
actions identified by management in
the event that actual cash flows are
below forecast;

Challenging the directors’ assessment
that there was not a material
uncertainty in relation to going
concern based on our understanding
of the Group's expected liquidity
requirements during the forecast
period; and

Assessing the appropriateness of the
disclosures included in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B3 B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B3 B R

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, B AL 2 B g SR IE T FRAM e E Ll
we determine those matters that were of most significance in THBAWER G B R M B at i iy % > I
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current J R S A R T o FRAM A A R A o L
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these FIH - BRIFEREEBIAR AR A RS L
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes TH o BTN S LRI OL T o AR A BETE AR
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely A7 S 5 v A o T Y T A R A AR Y
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be INRFIES > AP E AN ELE R T R IE o
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this th B A 7 A B 1 A R T H A AR AR

independent auditor’s report is Mr. Yu Kwok Keung. RSB

RSM Hong Kong S ey TR 9
Certified Public Accountants S e

25 June 2024 202446425 H
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT AND STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FekhmRkRHEME2EKER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #%20244-3 H31 H IL4F
-

2024 2023
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(i BT R IT
Revenue A 8 767,561 805,454
Cost of sales B A (381,888) (440,309)
Gross profit EF 385,673 365,145
Other gains Hofte g 9 514,791 93,315
Other income A A 10 28,865 34,156
Selling expenses B (247,952) (239,138)
General and administrative expenses — M RATEC (155,030) (168,084)
Other operating expenses HoAU 578 ¢ (14,648) (4,550)
Finance costs S A 1 (29,993) (21,273)
Profit before tax BRL AT A 12 481,706 59,571
Income tax expense JI R S 15 (8,381) (8,466)
Profit for the year FREF 473,325 51,105
Profit for the year attributable to: B AT B ERER
Equity holders of the Company LN/NL I ETERE DN 473,151 50,795
Non-controlling interests FEEE R £ 174 310
473,325 51,105
Earnings per share SRER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) HEAR B (Al 16 45.21 4.85
Other comprehensive income: Hitt2 @
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HEEHIE
profit or loss: HahIHA -
Exchange differences of translation of foreign TSN EBS I I S A
operations (15,776) (7,261)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or loss — Hi B ANER IE A B I E
upon disposal of foreign operations e IHH 21,897 -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: BN G EH A EHmHIEH
Change in fair value of equity investment at fair ~ #&/AF-{H 8 H At 2> T i 42 51 R 9
value through other comprehensive income R BT ) 21 2,646 1,471
Re-measurements on retirement benefit Ot R R A A A
obligations 31 130 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, FREHEHM2EKE /(K8
net of tax 8,897 (5,790)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENEEHE 482,222 45,315
Total comprehensive income for the year RUTATEGEER
attributable to: 2HEBHRAE
Equity holders of the Company EN/NGIL ETEEZ DN 482,528 45,906
Non-controlling interests e 4R (306) (591)
482,222 45315

The notes on page 51 to 169 are an integral part of these 55512169 H B 5E 2 S 556 IR R R A T 5l
consolidated financial statements. R EREY o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX
At 31 March 2024 A20244F3H31H

2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i BT WA T
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LERR T e G ] 17 183,127 183,683
Investment properties 'a-e7ES 18 297,800 297,900
Right-of-use assets R 19 91,312 85,668
Intangible assets R 20 47,567 48,518
Equity investment at fair value through TR N RLZE 2 A 2 THT A
other comprehensive income G BRI BUE 21 5,710 3,064
Consideration receivable AR 22 298,975 -
Trade receivables, deposits and JREWSC L Ty MRk ~ e M TS
prepayments HIH 24 34,873 17,220
Deferred tax assets U SO T VL 29 6,482 7,091
Total non-current assets RBEELTE 965,846 643,144
Current assets nREBEE
Inventories pea=y 23 226,251 222,127
Consideration receivable JREMCFRAE 22 42,711 -
Trade and other receivables 4 5y K HABREICR K 24 126,106 112,426
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB HEY) 25 67,711 85,426
Total current assets REEEHAT 462,779 419,979
Total assets BERE 1,428,625 1,063,123
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to the ~ AQ R EHFE ABERER
equity holders of the Company (3]
Share capital JieA 27 104,647 104,647
Reserves bt 28 801,933 319,405
Shareholders’ funds BRES 906,580 424,052
Non-controlling interests T FE I i 5,705 6,011
Total equity RIEATE 912,285 430,063

B () A RA A
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX
At 31 March 2024 #20244F3H31H

2024 2023
Note HK$/000 HK$'000
Bt BEEAT T WA
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities PR AERLIE A 29 26,287 26,278
Lease liabilities iEN == 30 50,551 41,087
Retirement benefit obligations BARAE RIS 31 1,803 1,150
Total non-current liabilities ERBaERETE 78,641 68,515
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 545 Be H A EATHR K 32 118,513 146,265
Income tax payable JEAT T A58 22,559 23,751
Bank borrowings RATEK 33 233,984 342,848
Lease liabilities HEAH 30 62,643 51,681
Total current liabilities REBAEHEE 437,699 564,545
Total liabilities BEHEE 516,340 633,060
Total equity and liabilities REREELEE 1,428,625 1,063,123

EHEETE202446 725 HHLHENG 258 #5545 8
BE169H MEALS ML -

The consolidated financial statements on page 45 to 169 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2024 and were
signed on its behalf.

Joseph C.C. Wong Liao Ching Mei
HAIG B&a%
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
TR AT TTIEHEF R BT A%

5512169 ELUIY B G 2% L 55 45 5 BB ¥R 6 R T 5
BRETERAY -

The notes on page 51 to 169 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

47 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FERREER
For the year ended 31 March 2024 #%20244:3 431 H 1L
I EEEEE——

Attributable to equity holders of
the company

FOTERHEARELS
Non-
Share  Reserves controlling Total
capital  (Note 28) Total interests equity
i@t
BA (MEE28) BE FERER  ERAE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEg i TR {4 TV -4 TR |4 DTV 4

At 1 April 2022 R202254A1H 104,647 273,499 378,146 6,602 384,748
Profit for the year AE R - 50,795 50,795 310 51,105
Other comprehensive loss Hofth 2T s - (4,889) (4,889) (901) (5,790)
Changes in equity for the year FERZEE - 45,906 45,906 (591) 45315
At 31 March 2023 R202353A318 104,647 319,405 424,052 6,011 430,063
At 1 April 2023 R2023F4A18 104,647 319,405 424,052 6,011 430,063
Profit for the year A - 473,151 473,151 174 473,325
Other comprehensive income/(loss) A2k 45,/ (1) - 9,377 9,377 (480) 8,897
Changes in equity for the year FERREE - 482,528 482,528 (306) 482,222
At 31 March 2024 R2024%53A318 104,647 801,933 906,580 5705 912,285

The notes on page 51 to 169 are an integral part of these 5551 %169 B M ok £ 3 45 & MBS R AR Al Bk
consolidated financial statements. R ERLY o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #%20244:3 431 H 1L

2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
WsE BT AT T
Profit before tax RRETS B AT SRR 481,706 59,571
Adjustments for RE
Depreciation of: Preg
— property, plant and equipment — W) ~ AR SR 22,037 18,691
— right-of-use assets — G 62,087 55,791
Gain on disposal of: IR
— property, plant and equipment E/ERR oY) (122) (67)
— asset held for sale — FRAE Tt - (78,689)
— a subsidiary — [t 34(c) (509,487) -
Gain on termination of leases AL E S AR (70) (213)
Fair value changes of investment PG NS E)
properties 100 (14,800)
Re-measurement of deferred R AR A A AR
consideration payable in respect of a (B LA i 8 A 4 O
subsidiary in prior years 2 H]) (17,340) -
Reversal of provision for inventories T B FA 0 ]38 (20,921) (8,174)
Impairment loss of: WAH
— property, plant and equipment — W)~ WA SRk A 6,732 320
— right-of-use assets — A E 18,056 5,570
— intangible assets — I 1,083 3,878
— consideration receivables — PSR 5,203 -
— trade receivables — U’ 5 IRk 1,210 -
Dividend income BRI A (1,481) (495)
Interest income FE A (1,589) (252)
Finance costs R A 29,993 21,273
Operating profit before working EEESHBAINKERR
capital changes 77,197 62,404
Adjustments for R
Inventories 8 12,554 44,078
Trade and other receivables 2 5y K FAbREN R X (44,047) 16,766
Trade and other payables B 5y B HAREAS B2 (7,054) (30,557)
Cash generated from operations EETBHRERE 38,650 92,691
Interest paid SR (21,507) (15,127)
Interest on lease liabilities FHEAGEME (8,486) (6,146)
Hong Kong profits tax paid S U FITGRL (5,210) (5,036)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EAR [m] s A 15 - 34
Overseas profits tax paid ST MRS (4,063) (5,758)
Overseas profits tax refunded AR SRS B 23 178
Net cash (used in)/generated from SEER (A, FENRE
operating activities R (593) 60,836

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #%20244:3 431 H 1L
-

2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B3k BT AT
Cash flows from investing activities REFHNRESRE
Purchase of property, plant and HEAMIZE - WA St
equipment (30,424) (7,224)
Proceeds from disposal of: B BT R
— asset held for sale —FpfEnT ik Hj/ig? 26 - 120,000
— property, plant and equipment — W3~ AR R 151 74
— a subsidiary — Fff ) 2 34(c) 174,452 -
Interest received ECFLE 1,589 252
Dividend received EL S 1,481 495
Net cash generated from investing RETBDRENREFE
activities 147,249 113,597
Cash flows from financing activities BMEFHNRETRE
Drawdown of bank borrowings fe ERAT HK 34(a) 112,058 113,271
Repayment of bank borrowings AR ERAT B 34(a) (220,922) (244,299)
Principal portion of lease payments ST A ARy 34(a) (65,240) (67,432)
Net cash used in financing activities BMETBHFTANES S (174,104) (198,460)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERBEEEEY
equivalents WA HE (27,448) (24,027)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ TEZa5 &)1y 52 4% 9,733 (2,668)
Cash and cash equivalents at the VIR B KB S
beginning of the year 85,426 112,121

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of &M B4 R &%)
the year 67,711 85,426

Analysis of balances of cash and cash RERAESEMEHRN
equivalents: pal i
Cash and cash equivalents e M5 EY) 25 67,711 85,426

The notes on page 51 to 169 are an integral part of these %51 %169 E M oE £ M5 45 B A B R AR Al 8k
consolidated financial statements. R ERLY o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

51

GENERAL INFORMATION

Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda and the address
of its principal place of business is 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are
shown in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024, included in current liabilities of the
Group are bank borrowings of approximately HK$233.984
million which contain a repayment on demand clause,
HK$92.485 million out of HK$233.984 million are bank
borrowings that are contractually repayable within the next
twelve months, together with the related bank borrowings
interests of HK$17.448 million. However, as of that date,
the available cash and cash equivalents of the Group was
only maintained at HK$67.711 million. These conditions
may create doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group
and the ability of the Group to continue to attain profitable
and positive cash flows from operations in the immediate
and longer terms.

Based on the Group’s credit history and historical
relationship with the banks, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
demand immediate repayment of bank borrowing of
approximately HK$233.984 million but rather such
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with their
scheduled repayment dates as disclosed in Note 6(a)(iv).
Accordingly, principal and interest payments due within
the next twelve months from the reporting date amounted
to HK$109.933 million.

In addition, in order to strengthen the Group’s liquidity in
the foreseeable future, the directors of the Company have
taken measures such as closing down under-performing
retail stores and implementing various cost control
measures to reduce the costs of operations. The Group
continues with the implementation of the aforementioned
measures in order to achieve further improvement of the
Group's liquidity in short-term and long-term periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

53

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The directors of the Company have taken into account the
cash requirements of the Group for the next twelve months
commencing from the end of the reporting period. With
unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$60.0
million as at 31 March 2024, other potential sources of
funding, and continued adoption of the above measures,
the directors have therefore concluded that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to fully meet its
financial obligations when they fall due. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(@ Application of revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following relevant
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2023
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

3. ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@

Application of revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies” for the first time in the current
year. HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”
is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general-
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance but has affected the disclosure of
the Group’s accounting policies set out in Note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

3.

RAETT B R B RERER (4

(@

FERRERT B R M BRERER (4

FEREEASTENE1RNREBYHE
BEEAEBREFE 2R BTN [E
STRREEINTE

ARG P AR B UCR AN A i et e
FUJEE5 1508 B 7 s S 5 0 o v ) B
25 (BRI AS) [ & st BUR R | -
AU G R R SR (B IR R 2 51
TUMERT > DATE R & BOR R I
TR TR & FhBOR ] — o LT
G U5 i 3 P ok EL A R — 5 T
RF - A A TR R B T iR S
Pk 2 T A A B 5 P R
TRt 2 B > Rt BOR &R 8
* o

A ERTAS I NS > B ST 2
PR HA SRR DL > B SR
AER G FkECR BRI AT AE JE
Koo SR > AEIEPAA B EARL S
ot = R B UL & EUOR SR A B
VI E R o MRS AR
G RFBOR AR > JA B R A1 RE
R G FHEARER -

A Y B 5 i Y TS o 0 2 DR AR
K B (T B s ) 08 T LU
HT o DA IR B A A T 25 B
B A w4 R K K
B A B UK 2 BRI 7 S B
WRBEK - 55| X0 TOIMATS
ity o

R FTY 2% S5 5 T A S A 8 T B 5K L B
ESIN RTINS 2~ BREVZ Fore g
TR M G4 BT 8 A AR B ORI

i -

B () A RA A
2024 AR

54



55

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

3. ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@)

Application of revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 12
“Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction” for the first time in the
current year. The amendments narrow the scope
of the initial recognition exemption to exclude
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences — e.g. leases.

Prior to the adoption of Amendments to HKAS 12,
the Group applied the initial recognition exemption
under paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 for leasing
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences, and therefore no deferred
tax has been recognised for temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
at initial recognition, and also over the lease terms
under paragraph 22(c) of HKAS 12.

The Group has applied the transitional provisions
under paragraphs 98K and 98L of Amendments to
HKAS 12 to leasing transactions that occur on or
after the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented and also, at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented by:

(i) Recognising a deferred tax asset to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised, and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and

(i) Recognising the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings (or
other component of equity, as appropriate) at
that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

3. ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@

Application of revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction” (Continued)

Based on the management’s assessment, there was
immaterial impact on the consolidated balance
sheet as at 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2024. There was also immaterial impact on
the opening retained profits as at 1 April 2022 as a
results of the change.

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long Service
Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong

The Group has several subsidiaries operating in Hong
Kong which are obliged to pay LSP to employees
under certain circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group
makes mandatory and voluntary MPF contributions
to the trustee who administers the assets held in
a trust solely for the retirement benefits of each
individual employee. Offsetting of LSP against an
employee’s accrued retirement benefits derived from
employers” MPF contributions was allowed under the
Employment Ordinance (Cap.57).

In June 2022, the Government of the HKSAR gazetted
the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) which
abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived
from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to
offset severance payment and LSP (the “Abolition”).
The Abolition will officially take effect on 1 May
2025 (the “Transition Date”). In addition, under
the Amendment Ordinance, the last month’s salary
immediately preceding the Transition Date (instead
of the date of termination of employment) is used
to calculate the portion of LSP in respect of the
employment period before the Transition Date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

3. ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@)

Application of revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long Service
Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong (Continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” which provides guidance
for the accounting for the offsetting mechanism and
the impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this,
the Group has implemented the guidance published
by the HKICPA in connection with the LSP obligation
retrospectively so as to provide more reliable and
more relevant information about the effects of the
offsetting mechanism and the Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising
from employer MPF contributions that have been
vested with the employee and which could be
used to offset the employee’s LSP benefits as a
deemed contribution by the employee towards the
LSP. Historically, the Group has been applying the
practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 to
account for the deemed employee contributions as a
reduction of the service cost in the period in which
the related service is rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

3. ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@

Application of revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long Service
Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong (Continued)

Based on the HKICPA’s guidance, as a result of
the Abolition, these contributions are no longer
considered “linked solely to the employee’s service
in that period” since the mandatory employer MPF
contributions after the Transition Date can still be
used to offset the pre-transition LSP obligation.
Therefore, it would not be appropriate to view the
contributions as “independent of the number of years
of service” and the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer applicable. Instead,
these deemed contributions should be attributed to
periods of service in the same manner as the gross
LSP benefit applying paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19.

Since the amount of the cumulative catch-up
profit or loss adjustment for the year ended 31
March 2023 was immaterial, the Group did not
restate the comparative figures for the financial
statements. Accordingly, the Group has recognised
the cumulative catch-up adjustment in the profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2024, with
corresponding adjustment to the LSP obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.  ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. BHHMREITEBMEREER )
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)  Revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) EBHEMGEERERNRKETEBHE
HE%ER
The Group has not early applied the following A B [ NI A L Y LA AR A 1E
relevant amendments to standards and interpretation AR YE R R BERY AR BRAE AT -

that have been issued but are not yet.

Effective for
accounting periods

of the Group
beginning on or after
REERUTHH
HZREABE
SIHEEX
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 April 2024
A R IEE 19 (BT A) — IRE) SR B B 20244F4H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 April 2024
A TR SR 1 R (B AT A — MHA 325 A9 JE i £ 2024441 H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback 1 April 2024
A s I F i HE AUSR 1 698 (1B AT A — B AR [ FH AV AL A £ 20244F4 4 1H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 April 2024
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause (“HK Int 5 (Revised)”)
A R R 5 9E (RERT) BABS R I B — 2085 (B FR SRR ek i 2 1 6 20244F4H1H
AR ([ Hs i R A 5 9k (RERT) )
Amendments to HKAS 21 — Lack of Exchangeability 1 April 2025
A E Rt AR 21 9% (AT A) — Bz ] et 20254F4 4 1H
The directors of the Company anticipate that the AN EIERE o R ITA H AL
application of all other amendments to HKFRSs VoA S o B R B T A A AN S AT
will not have material impact on the consolidated SURA 555 P A R o

financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g.
investment properties and certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below:

(@ Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are
all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity. When
assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@)

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@

(b)

(9]

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in
a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions (i.e.
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners).
The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which
the noncontrolling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
owners of the Company.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker.

The Company has appointed the executive directors
as the chief operating decision makers to review the
operating results of the Group on a consolidated
basis and makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(if)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the functional
currency of the Company and presentation
currency of the Group.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on initial
recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EESHBERER G
(Continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued) d) INEBRE (4
(iii)  Translation on consolidation (iii)  FFHAMHE

The results and balance sheet of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

J assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

o income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities, and of borrowings, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate their cost to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

Leasehold land Shorter of remaining lease term
or useful life

Buildings Shorter of the unexpired lease
term or 20 to 50 years

Equipment and leasehold 3 to 10 years or over the lease
improvements term

Furniture and fixtures 3 to 15 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.
Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any. The assets’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement within “Other gains, net”.

Investment properties

Investment properties principally leasehold land and
buildings are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group.

Investment property is stated at fair value and their
fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
withdrawn from use. Any gain or loss on disposal of
an investment property is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
property and is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 4(r).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(g Intangible assets

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Goodwill

Goodwill is subsequently measured as
disclosed in Note 4(i). Goodwill on acquisitions
of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks have an indefinite
useful life and are not amortised but tested
annually for impairment.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The technical know-how has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 30 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in income statement.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in two
categories:

o financial assets at amortised cost; and

J financial assets designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost
The Group classifies its financial assets at

amortised cost only if both of the following
criteria are met:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4., EESTHEERER @)
(Continued)
(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial h EBMTACEIRKILERI G

instruments (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

. the financial asset is held within a
business model with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
includes trade and other receivables, deposit
and bank balances.

Financial assets designated at FVTOCI (Equity
investment)

The Group makes an election to designate its
equity investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through
income statement. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI,
are recognised in income statement as other
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

(1)

(if)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets designated at FVTOCI (Equity
investment) (Continued)

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets
are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

@

()

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for all debt instruments not held
at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME
-

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below:

Stage 1: Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2: Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL.

Stage 3: Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant
financing component, if any, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(k) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to income
statement in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(k) Leases (Continued)

(1)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred.

Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, except for the right-of-use assets that
meet the definition of investment property are
carried at fair value.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(k) Leases (Continued)

(1)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in income statement if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
properties and lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

Inventories

Raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and
subcontracting fee. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. Provision for inventories is recognised
in the consolidated income statement within “other
operating expenses”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(0)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of watch products for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(p)

(q)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received a consideration (or an amount
of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(90 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan and the sponsoring employers of the
postemployment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EESHBEER @)
(Continued)
()  Revenue recognition r WARER

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised PN =R RNy OP A€ VL) NS er
He 2 I AR 2 o 0 A e . o SR
T A HERETS 09 AUAE B B T 2% 5 I e

consideration to which the Group expects to be R o
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the

(i) Sale of watch products (i) FFE
KEEWMHEEZIWAREEZ
PEhI RERE T & PR (— R 558

AH Bt IR) TfERR o

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products.

HTHEaNRTEFBEE
Bt AT o HOB G HE LAl R
P | B ] s AUE o

Some contracts for the sale of products provide
customers with rights of return and volume
rebates. The rights of return give rise to variable
consideration.

. Rights of return ° B

A T % 7RG E R A
AREE G GRS

For contracts which provide a customer
with a right to return the goods within

83

a specified period, the expected value
method is used to estimate the goods
that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled. The requirements
in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates
of variable consideration are applied
in order to determine the amount of
variable consideration that can be
included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised. A right-of-return asset (and
the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to
recover products from a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(r)  Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Other income

Building management services income and
shared services income are recognised when
the services are rendered.

(i) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

(iv)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

(v)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

(s)  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

®

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in income statement because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

®

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in income statement, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through
sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for
such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

®

(u)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. The Group recognises
a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised and a deferred tax liability
for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. The Group mainly
has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EERTBEER @)
(Continued)
(u) Employee benefits (Continued) w EEEFNE
(i) Pension obligations (Continued) (i) ABUKFIEIEAT )

The Group pays contributions to publicly
administered pension plans on a mandatory
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

For the defined benefit retirement plans, the
liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using
appropriate interest rates of selected corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related pension obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

89

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4., EESHBEERGE
(Continued)
(u) Employee benefits (Continued) w EEEFNE
(i) Pension obligations (Continued) (i) ABUKFIEIEAT )

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability which include actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), and any change
in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise and will not be reclassified to profit
or loss.

Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to
the net defined benefit liability. However, if
the Group remeasures the net defined benefit
liability before plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement, the Group determines net interest
for the remainder of the annual reporting
period after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement using the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement and
the discount rate used to remeasure such net
defined benefit liability or asset, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period resulting
from contributions or benefit payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EESTHERER @)
(Continued)
(u) Employee benefits (Continued) w EEEFNE
(i) Pension obligations (Continued) (i) ABUKFIEIEAT )
Defined benefit costs are categorised as S AR A A BT

follows:

o Service cost (including current service
cost, past service cost, as well as
gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

o Net interest expense or income; and
o Remeasurement

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plans or reduction in future
contributions to the plan.

Discretionary contributions made by employees
or third parties reduce service cost upon
payment of these contributions to the plan.

For LSP obligation in Hong Kong, the Group
accounts for the employer MPF contributions
expected to be offsetted as a deemed employee
contribution towards the LSP obligation in
term of HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a) and it is
measured on a net basis. The estimated amount
of future benefit is determined after deducting
the negative service cost arising from the
accrued benefits derived from the Group’s
MPF contributions that have been vested
with employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(u) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(1if)

(iv)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

)

(w)

(x)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the grant
will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period
to match them with the costs they are intended
to compensate. Government grants that become
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(@) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon future operational performance
and the expected future operating cash inflows;
and the continuous availability of banking facilities.
Details are explained in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(b)  Significant increase in credit risk

The ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage
2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

(c)  Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise
the option, including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group’s operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)  Determining the lease term (Continued)

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in
other properties leases have not been included in the
lease liability because the Group could replace the
assets without significant cost or business disruption.
See Note 19 for further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is
a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
During the year, no lease term has been reassessed.

(d)  Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred tax for investment properties, the directors
have adopted the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next year, are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(@  Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

During the year, the income tax was charged to
income statement disclosed in Note 15.

(b)  Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group assesses at least annually whether
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets exhibit any indications of impairment. The
recoverable amounts are determined based on value-
in-use calculation. The value-in-use calculation
involves estimating the future cash inflows and
outflows to be derived from continuing use of the
asset and applying the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows. The estimation of future cash
flows and selection of discount rate require the use
of judgements and estimates. Management believes
that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the
above key elements in the value-in-use calculation
would not result in material additional impairment
charges.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 March
2024 were in Note 17 and Note 19 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(c)  Fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including (1) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition
and location, adjusted to reflect those differences;
(2) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (3)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 March 2024 is disclosed in Note 18.

(d)  Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
have suffered any impairment. The Group reviews
goodwill for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the related carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amount has been determined based on higher of
value-in-use calculation and fair value less cost
of disposal. The calculation requires the use of
judgments and estimates.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March
2024 and valuation assumption used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in Note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(e)  Impairment of trademarks

Trademarks with an indefinite useful life are carried
at costs and are not amortised. Management tests
annually whether the trademarks suffered any
impairment by considering the economic benefit
to be generated from trademarks. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value-in-use
calculation. This calculation used pre-tax cashflows
projections based on financial budgets prepared
by management. Management determined the
financial budget based on past performance and
its expectations for the future market development,
which involved significant judgment and estimates.

The carrying amount of trademarks as at 31 March
2024 and valuation assumption used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in Note 20.

() Deferred tax assets

The Group’s management determines the amount
of deferred tax asset to be recognised by estimating
the amount of future profit available to utilise the tax
losses or certain temporary differences in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. The estimate is based
on the projected profit in respective jurisdiction
and entity and the Group uses its judgement to
make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing on balance sheet date. It could
change as a result of the uncertainties in the market
conditions.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets recognised
as at 31 March 2024 is disclosed in Note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(g)  Fair value measurement

The Group’s unlisted equity investment was classified
as equity investment at FVTOCI and measure at fair
value using market approach with reference to the
price to earnings multiple of comparable companies
listed in the market. This valuation requires the
Group to make estimates about price to earnings
multiple, non-marketability discount, and hence they
are subject to uncertainty.

The fair value of the equity investment at FVTOCI as
at 31 March 2024 is disclosed in Note 21.

(h)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will reassess the estimations at
the balance sheet date.

The allowance for inventories was made for the year
ended 31 March 2024 is disclosed in Note 23.

5. BARHEREBME )

fhEt RN E R 2 T ERIF (#)

(g

(h)

i L

ASE F JE LT Ay BE R DL
S 275 308 At 2 T WA i 81 B 14 S 473 4%
B MR TS ik 2 T BT H
BN F I T B 3T A EE R R -
VO {E TG B B T % > JETlT G
PEATRAEAT A > R AR TE A Tl 2
;l\i °

8202443 A31H > LIATEBEH
Al 4 T Wi £ 5 IR P B 4 2 NP1
TEMEE21 AP Es -

7B A S B I

5 2 Al SEBHE I AE B W SR T
2 AGFHEE > R AR e AR K
SR BASE o RZSE AN ASRA T %
S ks BEL G ) ST i 2 PR A B 1 i
HEERT o B RE A RN B AT
B 10y 538 Al T A5 B FE A0 AT 3 R 0 A
b - HrTRE g st A BEE S AL - E g
AN AR B BTG A BR A R -

HE2024%3 31 H IFF A S 17
REAERM EE23 N BR 5% o

B () A RA A
2024 AR

98



99

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
() Impairment of trade receivables

The Group estimates ECL on trade receivables using
a provision matrix. The provision rates are based
on aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors
taking into consideration the Group’s historical
default rates and forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of trade
receivables (net of impairment loss) is disclosed in
Note 24.

()  Actuarial assumptions on defined benefit retirement
plans

Accounting for defined benefit plans may be
complex because actuarial assumptions are required
to measure the obligation and the expense, with the
possibility that actual results differ from the assumed
results. These differences are known as actuarial
gains and losses. Defined benefit obligations are
measured using the projected unit credit method,
according to which the Group has to make a reliable
estimate of the amount of benefits earned in return
for services rendered in current and prior periods,
using actuarial techniques. As a result, the use of the
projected unit credit method involves a number of
actuarial assumptions. These assumptions include
demographic assumptions such as mortality, turnover
and retirement age and financial assumptions such
as discount rates, salary and benefit levels. Such
assumptions are subject to judgements and may
develop materially differently than expected and
therefore may result in significant impacts on defined
benefit obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

() Actuarial assumptions on defined benefit retirement
plans (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of
retirement benefit obligations is disclosed in Note 31.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(@ Financial risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors of the Company reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
China and a number of countries in Southeast
Asia. Retail sales transactions are mostly
denominated in the functional currencies of
respective group entities. The Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate. The Group considers its
foreign currency exposure as mainly arising
from the exposure of the Singapore dollar,
Malaysian ringgit, Thai baht, Renminbi and
Swiss Franc against the Hong Kong dollar.
The Group regularly monitors its exposures to
foreign currency transactions.

B HI & EEfRE (A7)

T TRBEE 2 EERF ()

G)  RERTFIERT FZHFH M ()

202443 A31H > BIREFIRER
SR 1A (R B 531 Bl o

B m b E
@ MEERE

7R S 8 200 75 O T v S A B,
S HEJER ~ SR JaBg - 15 BB A
B B SRR o AR 7 B A B[
TN OB A A A A TH L 4 SRR 2 B
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(i) SMEm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BERBER 4
(@ Financial risks (Continued) (@ BAFEREE (A
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SMEEME S ()
The impact to the Group’s profit before tax that A B (9] T 2 T B 1) 9 T A I
might be resulted from the reasonable possible R G PR R] e S Y 1T 5 R B
changes in the foreign exchange rates against 7 42 T ) T T Vi 1 BE 40 5 A
the Hong Kong dollar to which the Group BN -

has significant exposure as at the end of the
reporting date is summarised below:

2024 2023

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

Increase in profit Increase in profit

in foreign before in foreign before

exchange income exchange income

rate tax rate tax

BRBE AT 32 A PR i ¥ )

SN BE R 2, HMERER w4,

#9415 (R2) s (I 2)

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Singapore dollar Bk oo 5% 959 5% 1,463

Malaysian ringgit TGP P e A 5% (754) 5% (765)

Thai baht Rk 5% (4,687) 5% (5,172)

Renminbi NG 5% 826 5% 839

Swiss franc Bty % BB 5% 21,683 5% 8,636
Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates b A1 BEE BE 3 5% (2023
by 5% (2023: 5%) would affect the profit B 1 5%) i B BR B AT i A A A

before income tax by the same amount but in AR <5 BREAH 525 1) B 52 28 o

the opposite direction.

1 01 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEGE
(@ Financial risks (Continued) (@) BIiEEBER )
(ii)  Interest rate risk (i) FIRE G

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets other than
bank balances as disclosed in Note 25. The
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings
as disclosed in Note 33. Bank borrowings
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. The Group’s policy
is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2024, if interest rates of bank
borrowings at variable rates had been 50 basis
points (2023: 50 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, profit before
income taxes would have been HK$1.170
million (2023: HK$1.714 million) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense.

F P A 4 R ST A0 T KR
BR B E 2 5 o Rt B SR AT A5 BR
S o WA I Z WA R i B
ERI DN S N TRy S

o2 s S NEEbRI RS
B Ja g £ Bk A M RE3 3 4R 2
SRATELIR o 4577 B AR A7 Y
SRAT LR A AR BUR % Bl I
AR E B o A SR MR BOR TS
Ty T TR M 2 B 36 o

7 B 8 S 08 o P A T M) 5 4 10
S i A A o

20243 A31H > &K
R ETF AR50 (2023 4F -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBEMER

SRR ()

(@ Financial risks (Continued) @)

(iii) ~ Credit risk (i) 5 B

103

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets
(mainly include deposits with banks and trade
and other receivables) as disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The table below shows the credit quality and
the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group'’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or
effort, and year-end staging classification at the
end of reporting date. The amounts presented
are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEGE

S5 B ()

(@ Financial risks (Continued) @)

(i) Credlit risk (Continued) (iii) 17 B 57 (7

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AR
EEFR 2HRABEEFR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-R8 ERE EE LA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAT BRAT BRI BB BRT
2024 2024%
Trade receivables (note a) FEdRRR (HHE 2) - - - 92,255 92,255
Financial assets included in -~ EL4#% 4 R ILAbIEN
deposits and other MRk s
receivables (note b) (BH3E b) 60,829 - - - 60,829
Consideration receivable Rl 341,686 - - - 341,686
Cash and cash equivalents BeRB &S HY 67,711 - - - 67,711
470,226 - - 92,255 562,481
2023 20234
Trade receivables (note a) FENRR K (k@) - - - 71,921 71,921
Financial assets included in @44 S LA
deposits and other TR G
receivables (note b) (fff3 b) 49,125 - - - 49,125
Cashand cash equivalents ~ Bi4&: RBI4 (64 85,426 - - - 85,426
134,551 - - 71,921 206,472
Note: Bi5E

(@ The Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment of trade receivables, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in

Note 24.

(b) The credit quality of the financial assets
included in deposits and other receivables are
considered to be “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

A 45 [ 1 A 1L 5 oK R A R
ST IR TR M 5 L 9 A A
T TR 1) R 4 5 0 B R
A EE24 o

ik, 85 7 i 4 T HA REWUHR
K B T S A ) LI
E BN 2 S M EE 2
15 BB 19 ) U B A%
B - RIRZAE BB 2 A5
PR R A ER ] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HMBEBER )
(@)  Financial risks (Continued) (@ MR G
(iv)  Liquidity risk (iv) B EEEG

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor A £ B 2 BOR By € W1 B 25 B i
current and expected liquidity requirements to LMz mE Ee®E - LI
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of DRAS G ) A 5 2 ) B 5 £ A LA
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the AR 0 e W R ) 2 i )
short and longer term. AR I
The table below analyses the Group’s financial NRERAEBZ B A
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings e AR B 2 AR - AR5 e &Y
based on the remaining period at the balance HHEAZZH A F R EH
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. HEAT A o AR N BER 1Y B R
The amounts disclosed in the table are the BRI B BT -

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Repayable Between Between
on demand/ 1and2 2and 5 Over
within 1 year years years 5 years
EZREER/

1T (EFES 2E5ER SELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT i BT i

As at 31 March 2024 202434318
Bank borrowing (note) RATE WD) 251,432 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 68,469 38,941 13,849 -
Trade and other payables B9 B AR 115,698 - - -
435,599 38,941 13,849 -

Asat 31 March 2023 1202353 A31H
Bank borrowing (note) BT (WD 355,548 - - -
Lease liabilities YA 56,629 34,154 8,813 -
Trade and other payables B RAM IR 137,198 - - -
549,375 34,154 8,813 -

1 05 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBEMER )
(@)  Financial risks (Continued) (@ HHERRE
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) G2 )
Note: RiFRE

Certain bank borrowings contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the
bank’s sole discretion. Taking into account the
Group’s consolidated balance sheet, the directors
do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements. The analysis below shows the cash
outflows based on the scheduled repayment. The
amount includes interest payments computed using
contractual rates.

A TR A SR AR RS
AR ERAT R HER AT o RAEA AR
0 B ol % SRR AT 19 4= 00
B> S AR AT & AT R
TEMESOR B ER R i AR R
SE (1 (02 U2 S AT B o
DATR 20 A7 RS AR B )22 B 3
i o A7 B B AL T H R A
FHRLAFLEAT K o

Between Between
Within 1 and 2 2and 3 Over
1 year years years 3 years
1EUT 1226 R 2E3ER 3FEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT o0 AT WA T
At 31 March 2024 7A2024%F3831H 109,933 32,712 26,059 121,198
At 31 March 2023 #202343H31H 129,122 95,003 27,795 128,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MERREE )
(b) Categories of financial instruments b) EWMIANE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Financial assets: EREE:
Equity investment at fair 23T (B2 2 FC A 4 T i 7 57 R
value through other Y 3 B
comprehensive income 5,710 3,064
Financial assets at amortised cost: DVBESH BUAS R 4 A&
— Consideration receivable — B AAE 341,686 -
— Trade and other receivables — 55 R A R ISR K
and deposits P& 153,084 121,046
— Cash and cash equivalents — Bl R Y 67,711 85,426
568,191 209,536
Financial liabilities: SRIBE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:  DASESH sAS 5 19 45 LA 1K
— Trade and other payables — B 5 B A A R K 115,698 137,198
— Bank borrowings — AT EK 233,984 342,848
349,682 480,046
Lease liabilities HEaE 113,194 92,768
(c) Fair value (o) 72A¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial AL GRS EEARERAN R &
assets and financial liabilities as disclosed in the B KA Mz REEEEA a2
consolidated balance sheet approximate their ITEMA ©

respective fair value.

1 07 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio and this is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as ‘shareholders’ funds’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

6.

B EBREE (A
d EXRER
7 A 9 14 A A L A R B A [

I AR A D 5 PR AR [ A 7 L
foRE a5 A A SRR AR - ) AR I
A A 45 DL B A 2 B
5o

ﬁrT%%jﬁH*&%‘ﬂﬂﬂ% AR 1T

AR SO PR A e B R 1
%L%ﬁﬁi AT M i 4 S A
BURAEF -

ZF%@U%E‘%%{’E%%%%ZM‘J%

o i B BU AR 4 R AT 5 IR DA AR A
”ﬁnf% o TR T He B HERE (BLHE 55
BEEABEN R ZE LI RE S
OB RS EEYEE o EA
MBS ARGEGERABERTI AN
(R 4] -

The gearing ratio of the Group were as follows: AREEE LRI
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Bank borrowings (Note 33) SRAT R (MT5E33) 233,984 342,848
Less: W
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25)  Bl&x & Bl &% (EHY (FE25) (67,711) (85,426)
Net debt TS 166,273 257,422
Shareholders’ funds B 4 906,580 424,052
Gearing ratio ERLR 18.3% 60.7%

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

@

Fair value hierarchy

The Group’s finance department leading by the
Chief Financial Officer (the “CFQ”) is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
finance controllers report directly to the CFO. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the CFO.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVERE®
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) i 2AFEEEE
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into A AR B ORI T g = A R B
and transfers out of any of the three levels as of the BB E H - HERR A
date of the event or change in circumstances that AR o Fi N P ESF AR 2 B
caused the transfer. Disclosures of level in fair value #
hierarchy:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E 528 38 At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T T AT

Recurring fair value measurements ~ EEMATETE

At 31 March 2024 12024534318
Financial assets SHEE
Equity investment at fair value through 4%/ B H A2 4

other comprehensive income FUBRAI B E

- unlisted equity securities =3 BB S - - 5,710 5,710
Non-financial assets kEREE
Investment properties Rk

— commercial building — M - - 297,800 297,800

- . 303,510 303,510

At 31 March 2023 2023534318
Financial assets tREE
Equity investment at fair value through /A -HE B IAL 2 Hk 4

other comprehensive income FUBREI B

— unlisted equity securities — I ETRARE R - - 3,064 3,064
Non-financial assets FERERE
Investment properties EV8SE/ES

— commercial building —WERE - - 297,900 297,900

- - 300,964 300,964

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for TN BEHEATEFTEZSET 2K
recurring fair value measurements during the year. 3 T ML A g o

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(i)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Financial assets

The valuation of unlisted equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income
was determined using a market-based valuation
technique. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies based on
industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates
an appropriate enterprise value of earnings before
interest, tax, depreciations and amortisation (“EV to
EBITDA”) multiple and price to earnings multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the market capitalisation
by the profits of the comparable companies. The
multiple is then discounted for non-marketability.
The discounted multiple is applied to the profit of the
unlisted equity investment to measure the fair value
at each reporting period.

Non-financial assets

The fair value of the investment properties is arrived
at on the basis of valuation carried out by Savills
(Macau) Limited (“Savills”) independent valuer
which is not related to the Group. The Group’s
finance department reviews the valuations performed
by Savills for financial reporting purpose. These
valuation results are then reported to the Group’s
management for discussions and review in relation
to the valuation processes and the reasonableness of
valuation results.

The fair value of the investment properties was
arrived by using direct comparison method based on
market observable transactions of similar properties
in the similar conditions and locations of the subject
properties and adjusted to reflect the conditions of
the subject properties including property size and
property floor level. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. ADYEFEE
(iii) Reconciliation of financial assets and non-financial (i) BFEIBAFETEZEHEERE
assets measured at level 3 SREEHER
Equity
investment
at fair value

through other

comprehensive Investment
income properties
BOTE
EBEMEE
e 51 R A9
BHRE REM*
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT
At 1 April 2022 J#20224F4 51 H 1,593 283,100
Revaluation surplus transfer to equity 2 PO RE P EE A AR 1,471 -
Change in fair value recognised in TR AR R Y AP (52 )
income statement - 14,800
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 202343 H31H K&20234F4 H1H 3,064 297,900
Revaluation surplus transfer to equity 2 AR A i 2,646 -
Change in fair value recognised in TR R R AR AT E)
income statement - (100)
At 31 March 2024 M202453H31H 5,710 297,800

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Valuation processes

The Group’s finance department is responsible for the
fair value measurement of financial assets required
for financial purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial department reports
directly to the CFO and the audit committee (“AC").
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO and AC at least once every six
months, in line with the Group’s half-yearly reporting
periods.

The main inputs used in fair value measurement by
the Group are derived and evaluated as follows:

J price to earnings multiple

o EV to EBITDA multiple

J non-marketability discount rate
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
Financial assets

The most significant unobservable input is EV
to EBITDA multiple of 1 (2023: 1), and non-
marketability discount rate of 32% (2023: 32%). The
lower the EV to EBITDA multiple, the lower the fair
value of the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The lower of the non-
marketability discount rate or non-controlling interest
discount, the higher the fair value of the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

As at 31 March 2024, if the non-marketability
discount rate increase/(decrease) by 1%, it would
result in (decrease)/increase in fair value by
HK$82,000 (2023: HK$45,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVHEEGR)
(v)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (v) fRE#RAREREXNFENRERGE
(Continued)
Non-financial assets A
Significant Range of Relationship of
unobservable unobservable unobservable
Valuation technique(s) input(s) inputs inputs to fair value
ED L FABE FOBERBARE
BRI LIPN ¢ BARBZEE BEAHENBE
2024 2023
Direct comparison method based 1. Unit rate From HK$35,000 to From HK$35,000 to 1. The higher the unit rate,
on market observable transactions HK$218,000 per ~ HK$217,000 per the higher the fair value
of similar properties and adjust to square feet square feet
reflect the conditions of the subject 2. Frontage 2. The larger the shop
property. frontage, the higher the
fair value
REEYEN TBREN S XA EME 1. BAER B¥ERA PR 1. BT -
A ERR EEL IURE /R S BE35,000TE  #W35000CE  ATEBR
IR o #%218,0007 #4217,0007C
2. #li 2. HRTEER - e

B () A RA A
2024 AR 114



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The executive
directors review the Group’s financial information mainly
from business nature and geographical perspectives.
From a perspective on business nature, the Group has
two reportable segments, namely watch retail and
watch wholesale trading segments. From a geographical
perspective, management mainly assesses the performance
of watch retail operations in (i) Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China and (ii) the rest of Asia.

Revenue represents sales of goods from watch retail
segment and watch wholesale trading segment. Sales
between operating segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those prevailing in arm’s length transactions.
The executive directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted
earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT”). This measurement
basis excludes unallocated income and net corporate
expenses.

Unallocated income represents dividend income from
unlisted equity investment, gain on disposal of assets held
for sale and a subsidiary and re-measurement of deferred
consideration payable in respect of acquisition of a
subsidiary in prior years. Net corporate expenses mainly
represent corporate staff costs and provision for senior
management bonus. Unallocated assets represent property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and right-of-
use assets at corporate level, unlisted equity investment,
deferred tax assets and cash and cash equivalents.
Unallocated liabilities represent lease liabilities, other
payables and accruals at corporate level, bank borrowings,
deferred tax liabilities and income tax payable.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

WA K2 EREFR

AN T 2 R PR By AR FIAT B
H oo [T TR LTS R b [ A
WAL B E R o (EEHEE A
RE > AREEAE AR H st > BEERE
BT S SRR TS i o PR B M
I £ B R AZ () B s > TP R R I o AR (i)
YN R [ S R T A o

W AR F5 2 S 2 0 0 L B A
HIS 4 T B o AT ] A A A
T BAT 3508 F IR AT B 28 B 2 O
AT o A BUHE S B M) S 5 0 i AR o
FITEBIT)) SFAZ B 48 2 658 - HH
A B AN LA 2R 23 BL WSO B B2 T A B 5
W

AR AT BEWCAFE A 3 I LTl e A 45 ) e B
WA~ B REE TS B E R AR
B 2w i g S AT R A T A B2 S
Ox VR RE R AR A AT AU AR o SR BT
U S 3 T SR T TR B AR
B BB ACALI o R R B SR R
JE T W2 - RS R Al SR Rl
MREEE - LB I E - REBLIA
HEMUMB & RBEEEHD - AEHEA
fRU 4 42 1 i 9 R £ HLAd B A 3k
TR ERHE A~ RATHE - BEBIHAM
L REAT AR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIERH)

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZE202453A31BLEEE

Watch retail
EEHRTE
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Rest of  wholesale
China Asia trading Total
RAR =M Eifod
HE KR HepthE — MEER a&t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT  B¥fFfr B BB
Revenues from contracts with ERMBRMEEDE15H
customers within the scope BEANTFAORE
of HKFRS 15
- Gross segment — /AR 321,506 221,506 403,231 946,243
- Inter-segment | - - (178,682)  (178,682)
Sales to external customers HETIHIREF 321,506 221,506 224,549 767,561
Timing of revenue recognition LON AL
— Ata point in time — {1 IR i 321,506 221,506 224,549 767,561
Segment results DERE 8,035 (10,610) 27,230 24,655
Unallocated income EHON 528,308
Net corporate expenses SEEATEOT (41,264)
Finance costs A LA (29,993)
Profit before tax BRBLATR R 481,706
Income tax expense FIr 58 3 (8,381)
Profit for the year FERF 473,325

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEIER A
For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued) BZE2024F3A318 LFE #)
Watch retail
EHZE
Hong Kong,

Macau and Watch

Mainland Rest of wholesale
China Asia trading  Unallocated Total

B BAR EEY | B
hE AR HEBHE MBER AAE a5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEffr  BEfr  ERfr  BRfx  BRfix

Additional of non-current assets: &I RBIEE

— property, plant and equipment  — 43 ~ 3% Kk (16,399) (9,618) (3,124) (1,283) (30,424)

~ right-of-use assets — R (60,232) (26,628) (2,026) - (88,886)
Depreciation: {r -

— property, plant and equipment  —#13 ~ H&# Rk (5,445) (5,206) (738) (10,648) (22,037)

— right-of-use assets i diiliA (32,488) (25,253) (4,346) - (62,087)
Impairment of: Wl -

— property, plant and equipment  —#1% + ## Rk (3,674) (1,369) - (1,689) (6,732)

— intangible assets — AR - - - (1,083) (1,083)

~ right-of-use assets —ffi R (13,167) 4,889) - - (18,056)

— trade receivable —TECE 5 IRk (265) - (945) - (1,210

— consideration receivable — R - - - (5,203) (5,203)
Fair value change of investment &M 3EA T-EEH)

properties (400) - - 300 (100)
Reversal of provision/(provision) {7 EtE i [/

for inventories vestei i) 13,985 (139) 7,075 - 20,921
Segment assets R ERE 402,059 138,716 227,099 660,751 1,428,625
Segment liabilities HaE (104,248) (55,106) (60,433)  (296,553)  (516,340)

1 1 7 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIERH)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B 2202343 31 H IL4EEE

Watch retail
EREE
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Rest of  wholesale
China Asia trading Total
- AP 4 CEV) Fi573
HE K pE HepwE iR &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB BT BT B¥fx
Revenues from contracts with BRPKEEENE15HE
customers within the scope AMEF SRS
of HKFRS 15
— Gross segment — /AR 274,023 255,136 457,342 986,501
— Inter-segment v i - - (181,047)  (181,047)
Sales to external customers HETHIRER 274,023 255,136 276,295 805,454
Timing of revenue recognition LON AL
— Ata point in time — TP {1 R ] A 274,023 255,136 276,295 805,454
Segment results A ERE (14,713) 6,546 40,975 32,808
Unallocated income EHON 79,184
Net corporate expenses SEEATEOT (31,148)
Finance costs W A (21,273)
Profit before tax BRBEATIER 59,571
Income tax expense eSS (8,466)
Profit for the year FERF 51,105

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEIER A
For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued) BE20234E3 31 H R4 EE (38)
Watch retail
EHZE
Hong Kong,

Macau and Watch

Mainland Rest of wholesale
China Asia trading  Unallocated Total

B BAR EEY | B
hE AR HEBHE MBER AAE a5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEffr  BEfr  ERfr  BRfx  BRfix

Additional of non-current assets: &I RBIEE

— property, plant and equipment  — 43 ~ 3% Kk (2,645) (3,201) (582) (796) (7,224)

~ right-of-use assets — i E (27,314) (35,190) (9,726) - (72,230
Depreciation: {r -

— property, plant and equipment  —#13 ~ H&# Rk (3,664) (3,820) (476) (10,731) (18,691)

— right-of-use assets i diiliA (24,667) (26,958) (4,166) - (55,791)
Impairment of: Wl -

— property, plant and equipment  —#1% + ## Rk (320) - - - (320)

— intangible assets — WG - - (3,878) - (3,878)

~ right-of-use assets — iR E (1,897) (3,673) - - (5,570)
Fair value change of investment B &Y A TFEES)

properties 10,600 - - 4,200 14,800
Reversal of provision for 7 B A o 3¢

inventories 6,821 109 1,244 - 8,174
Segment assets SR EE 353,007 139,400 227,068 343,648 1,063,123
Segment liabilities b fi (78,261) (57,497) (81,857) (415445 (633,060)

1 1 9 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARZHBEFR )
Geographical information b B B
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment results by 223t 5 73 A 4R WSO B o B SEARAN T

geographical area are as follows:

Revenue Segment results
L'ON T EBRAR
2024 2023 2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BWffRx BT

Hong Kong, Macau and Tk~ WP IR R
Mainland China 423,092 383,180 21,992 435
Rest of Asia SN R R 343,670 421,076 1,877 34,306
Europe T 799 1,198 786 (1,933)
767,561 805,454 24,655 32,808
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other i b 8 73 A7 52 [ U (PR A EDE
than equity investment at fair value through other A 4 T i A A MR 0 T 4~ IR AE B IH
comprehensive income, deferred tax assets, consideration BE - YR - R 5 BRSO iR R
receivable, trade receivable and refundable deposits) by FREBRID TR
geographical area is as follows:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China 7 ~ [ J g K 504,304 500,966
Rest of Asia Y AR [ 78,566 78,032
Europe R 37,283 37,117
620,153 616,115
The revenue information above is based on the locations of RO ERE T AR T TE A o
the customers.
These were no revenue transactions with a single external R AR g AR F RO B
customer which amounted to 10% or more of the Group's ASE BB 10%E LA (2023 4F : H) o

revenue during the year (2023: Nil).

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEIER A
Geographical information (Continued) HwEER )
Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities e BRI RN A A TR B A L HERB A -

at the beginning of the reporting period:

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Sales of watches 5 g 6k 1,345 1,280
Performance obligations [ ESES
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery JBEH AT IR S AT B R A > AR EZE L)
of the goods and payment is mainly on cash and credit Bl s I RESE - MIBRE PR - K
card settlement, except for wholesale customers, where ST B E SRR 1202443 A 31
payment is due within credit period from delivery. As at F A 780 6 R 4 AT RIS 2 sl 20 AR ) 25
31 March 2024, the remaining performance obligations JEUR)FE I AR (] 2% — AR BRLA N 15 20 10
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are part of contracts — B3 o AR e AR R A HE I 251 5 R
that have an original expected duration of one year or less, RETLTEE » W2 543 Bl i 38 55 (B o
the transaction price allocated to which is not presented
according to practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
9.  OTHER GAINS 9. Hfttls
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Exchange losses 51 Je 18 (12,128) (454)
Fair value changes of investment BB N THEEH)

properties (100) 14,800
Gain on disposal of: AT

— property, plant and equipment — W)~ AR S 122 67

— a subsidiary (Note 34(c)) — B 2w (B EE34(c) 509,487 -

— assets held for sale (Note 26) — R R it B A (B 5E26) - 78,689
Gain on termination of leases KA A Al 70 213
Re-measurement of deferred consideration = #7 T E 4t MEATHAE (5 B LA

payable in respect of acquisition of A RS T R 2 WD) (BFRE32(d))

a subsidiary in prior years (Note 32(d) 17,340 -

514,791 93,315
1 21 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. OTHER INCOME 10. HAKA

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T fioki K s
Building management fee income MEFE AL 2,580 2,580
Interest income FEWA 1,589 252
Rental income FHAIRA 5,671 4,859
Dividend income B A 1,481 495
Rent concessions FHA W 2 124 1,960
Shared service income ILZRBULA 15,316 14,400
Government subsidies (note) R AR B (B 5 118 7,452
Sundries MEIE 1,986 2,158
28,865 34,156

Note: B 5E

There is no government grant in respect of COVID-19 related
subsidies relates to Employment Support Scheme provided by
Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore and Macau governments for the
year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$6.947 million).

#2024 3 H31 HIL4EE > S M0 S &5
AT ERT ~ PR AT R I BT 2 g
AR o0 S ST R0 2R e TR B 2 155 1T it 2 BT
AL (20234 : #H6.94716 ) -

11.  FINANCE COSTS 11. B
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T bioki K s

Interest on: FIE

— bank borrowings —SRATHK 21,507 15,127
— lease liabilities —fEAE 8,486 6,146
29,993 21,273

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax has been derived after
debiting or (crediting) the following items in the income

statement.

12. BRBIADER

AR BRBE AT A 2 ANER 7 GEA) Wi
HRIRIEA -

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Auditor’s remuneration: BT -
— audit services — IR 2,204 2,110
- non-audit services — IR 530 776
Cost of inventories sold and raw A7 B A B M EHE AR
materials consumed 381,888 440,309
Depreciation of: e -
— property, plant and equipment —Wy3E - R Kt (BFE17)
(Note 17) 22,037 18,691
— right-of-use assets (Note 19) — R E (fsE19) 62,087 55,791
Employee benefit expenses (Note 13) e B AR A2 (B EE13) 183,893 195,704
Fair value changes of investment PG N TESEE) (HEE18)
properties (Note 18) 100 (14,800)
Impairment loss of: WAH
— property, plant and equipment —Wy3E - R Rt (BFE17)
(Note 17) 6,732 320
— right-of-use assets (Note 19) — i REE R (fsE19) 18,056 5,570
— intangible assets (Note 20) — e (320 1,083 3,878
— consideration receivable (Note 22) — FEACARAE (Ff5E22) 5,203 -
— trade receivable (Note 24(b)) — B S B (Bt 24(b)) 1,210 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - B Kt
plant and equipment WA (122) (67)
Gain on termination of leases AR E A A (70) (213)
Lease rental in respect of land and BRI 1 AT
buildings A B A 4
— short-term lease payments — B E K 26,388 27,151
— variable lease payments CIE-Zitk=enEe 5,260 5,303
— rent concession (Note 10) — & (k10 (124) (1,960)
Reversal of provision for inventories AL ABEAR [T 8 (BfHE23)
(Note 23) (20,921) (8,174)

1 23 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES EEEFZH
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Salaries and allowances W B R 167,944 177,738
Pension contributions less forfeiture BARE UK bR EwE AR

utilised (note a) B0 (fika) 13,322 14,936
Others HoA 2,627 3,030
183,893 195,704

(@) Pensions-defined contribution plans (@ BIKkE-—EHEMHRETE

The Group operates a retirement scheme under
Occupation Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
scheme”) up to 30 November 2000 for employees
in Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000,
a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme is set
up which is available to eligible employees of the
Group, including executive directors of the Company.
No further employees and contributions have been
added to the ORSO scheme after the set up of MPF.
Contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group
and employees are calculated at rates specified in
the rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF
scheme and ORSO scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Meanwhile, relevant employees of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong contribute to the local pension
schemes, contributions to the local pension schemes
are calculated at rates specified in the rules of the
local pension schemes. The assets of the pension
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, forfeited
contributions totaling HK$1.424 million (2023:
HK$295,000) arising from employees leaving the
ORSO scheme, were utilised to offset contributions
during the year.

HZE20004F11H30H &1k > A 4EH
R 45 Tk 2 R AR B0 A6k 1) 2% 5 S T R
BEAGEARTEE - H20004FE12H1
HOH > AR 4 [ 5% 57 58 ) A B 4 w1
B (R FHE ) > AL M0 A G
8 B (BIFAAFAITH#ES) HE S
B o BERE AT B NI R > BREEIR IR
1 37 A0 34 R B Bl o AT [ KR
B 1) R T A B A AT R R
T 4w R U BT R ) KRS - T
TR 5T S 2 s B A 48 [ 1) B 2 4 PR
A s EHEsa Ty -

B AN B 2 /i > A SR P
Je A B S R AR w1 A {1
Ao TR R R AR R B AR
B KFREE o B R Gl 2 B SR
S EE A - A R S
REAREM -

HME20243A31HILEERN > EE
LR R 03 i 2 Bk S AR AR R B it
R 4241 800 (20234F © ¥
295,00070) > B4 B LGB 4F A 11t

E
BN ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 13. BERAXZH @
(b)  Five highest paid individuals b HEEUESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were AR FE AL [ 4 B N L
the highest in the Group for the year include two W% (20234F : — &) #H - HHEE
directors (2023: one director) whose emoluments % EL A B 1 453 B7 rp s o i AR T JE
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 14. The 7 FLBR B e BT = 4% (20234 ¢ 1Y
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2023: Z) N T Z BT
four) highest paid individuals during the year are as
follows:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T WA
Basic salaries, allowances and FAF A B B
benefits in kind 3,899 5,327
Performance bonuses RIBUEAL 5,471 4,657
Contributions to pension plans EL Yo i DR B 177 192
9,547 10,176
The emoluments fell within the following bands: P NI RN NG o N
Number of individuals
AE
2024 2023
Emolument bands (in HK dollars) FEAR A G )
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TCE#E1,500,0007C - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 70 E ##2,000,0007C - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 #H52,000,001 0 £ #H52,500,0007C - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 #%2,500,001 7T % #%53,000,0007C 1 1
Over HK$3,000,000 #3,000,0007C LA E 2 1
3 4
1 25 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. ESEANRER
(@ Directors’ emoluments @ EE#ME
The remuneration of every director of the Company is AR FEISEEM ST

set out below:

Emoluments paid or payable i respect of a person's servces as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking:
FAEENRAARNERIERRNER

Emoluments

paid or payable

in respect of

director's other

services in

connection with

Remunerations  the management
paid or payable ~ of the affairs of

Basic salaries, ~~ Contributions inrespectof ~ the Company
allowances,and ~ toretirement  Discreionary  accepting office  orifs subsidiary
Name Fee  henefitsinkind  eneft schemes bonus as director undertaking Total
SGEL L
FATGENR
Bxfd AREEN
Befe 2% Eife EELSE AR
it4 e AR 5 BEEL  ESRUME Ritime a8
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

BT 1o v v kv ki i

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZ202453R31R

Joseph C. C. Wong ) A 100 1,159 5 - - - 1312
Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas i}~ ) - - - 407 - - 407
Liao Ching Mei i B i) 467 0 W - - 662
Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace (i) BEE) 52 1078 M 1,760 - - 2934
Ho Chi Kin, Jeff frsee 135 - - - - - 135
Lai i Ming, Rcky Rt 13 - - - - - 15
Cheung Ho Ling, Honnus )~ AT (v 135 - - - - - 135

585 2,704 17 2314 - - 5720

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EF2023431131

Joseph C. C. Wong i Al 100 750 Iy - - - 81
Kwan ChiKin, Wallace ()~ () 8 1559 5 1,94 - - 3,648
Ho Chiin,Jef e 13 - - - - - 13
Lai Kai Ming, Ricky LU 13 - - - - - 13
Kwong i Hang, Agnestv) BTy 51 - - - - - 51
Cheung HoLing Honnus v~ &%y 8 - - - - - 8

55 2309 106 1,94 - - 494

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

14.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(o)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is also the chief executive
officer of the Group.

(i) Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas was appointed as the
Company’s non-executive director on 20 October
2021 and re-designated from a non-executive
director to an executive director on 25 April 2024.
During the year ended 31 March 2023, no directors’
remuneration was paid to him in the capacity as
director.

(iii)  Ms. Liao Ching Mei has been appointed as executive
director and chief financial officer of the Group from
24 November 2023.

(iv)  Mr. Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace has resigned as executive
director and chief financial officer of the Group on
24 November 2023.

(v)  Dr. Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes has retired by rotation
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company upon the expiry of her term of office on 16
August 2022.

(vi)  Ms. Cheung Ho Ling, Honnus has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 16 August 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023, none of the directors waived their emoluments,
except for Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong waived a portion
of his salary of HK$579,267 for the year ended 31
March 2024 (2023: HK$750,000).

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for
making available directors” services (2023: Nil).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

14.

EEENRERS )

(@

(b)

(9]

BEEME D

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BRI ST SR AL AT ECRA -

WA 20214E10 H 20 H M %
A Ry A LS | JEAT BUE# F 3 iR 202 44F
4H25H AT B H AT AT
W o AEE20234E3 31 H IE4E
BE > B A DL SE S B 4 A
4o

BEinak k20234511 H24 H#EZ
AT AT IBUEE 5 B o i B S 4

B B SRR A 20234611 H 24 H BT
AT S J i A A -

B S AT R 20224E8 16 BAEH
Jie I o (L 32 AT A ) 28 57 FF A7 B
o

R4 4R 20224E8 H 16 H #EZE
(T BN RIB AT -

HE202443A31H &202343 A31
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

14.

15.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)) 14, EBEANRER H)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (d) FBBRUNES ZEEFEE2SZEFMNEE
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies REBMBERASBRAZEN  £EX
corporate and connected entities REMR S 2 ER
During the year ended 31 March 2024, there are no ME2024F3H31 H IFFEFE > D
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements R BR% G R
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate HE M B2 te N2 K > MER R L H
by and controlled entities with such directors (2023: 32 5 ZHE (20234F - ) -

Nil).

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, () EBEXRZ WHBRIAESRAMEAFZ
arrangements or contracts
Except as disclosed in Note 36, no other significant BRI RE36 P45 5a & A - AR B A B4R
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation G > ALY BN AR ET AT AT S AR
to the Group’s business to which the Company was W 2 S5 1A B 2 g e A
a party and in which a director of the Company had TEH A E ARG HELS ~
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, R G
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 15, FrSHix i

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

Current income tax AR RLIH

— Hong Kong profits tax — HHEFIERL 3,923 3,649

— Overseas profits tax Ik 2,317 5,314

— Under provision in prior years — AR A D 1,731 98
7,971 9,061
Deferred tax (Note 29) RAIEBLIH (Hf5E29) 410 (595)
8,381 8,466

B () A RA A
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15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 15. FREBIH (@)
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2024 is 20244 B B HE AT B T ML 8 A w1 1 LB i )
calculated at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) of the estimated FERi216.5% (20234F : 16.5%) 715 © 4
assessable profits for the year. Taxation on overseas FIAFBE T3 ARDRAF A0 b w8 R i 1) 4 A
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable o] 5 e b [ ()38 R B R T o

profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit AR ) B KRR B Jag 2 ) BT A Ml m R A
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in [ 2 LA T #3257 T 0 w5 1) B T A
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are i ) B T B4 T R RS B BUIE A 22
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates are as Al SREiRaE
follows:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT AT
Profit before tax B i i ) 481,706 59,571
Tax at the statutory tax rates of 16.5% TR TERLZ16.5% (20234 © 16.5%)

(2023: 16.5%) FHEMBLIE 79,481 9,829
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries Bt i/ 5] A [R] B R 14 52 2% (74,579) (2,012)
Tax effect arising from: BB BEE A

— Non-taxable income — 4T SR A A (17,269) (19,611)

— Non-deductible expenses — ANAT AL A BH 3 8,162 7,772

— Recognition of temporary differences — ERRAT AT A U AR 10 IR 1

not previously recognised b 1,721 (961)

— Utilisation of previously unrecognised — — i i A4 A ERR B IE 5 8

tax losses (533) (2,402)

— Tax losses not recognised — AR I B e 15 9,652 16,721

— Tax reduction — BB A 9) (18)

- Others — ot 24 (950)

— Under provision in prior years —IBTEAE R D 1,731 98
Income tax expense PR EE S i 8,381 8,466

1 29 STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME
-

16.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
Group'’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

16.

BREF
X
B B B R DUAE AR 22 R HE i 5 A B

A A AR T A B A 9 A 3 20 o - 24
B EH - o

2024 2023

Profit attributable to equity holders AN R RE S A AL 1 )

of the Company (HK$/000) (& ¥ 7T) 473,151 50,795
Weighted average number of ordinary E BT 4 BT 1

shares in issue (thousands) (AT BERT) 1,046,474 1,046,474
Basic earnings per share attributable to AN FIRERR 35 A A EAS 45

the equity holders of the Company BEAR R (L)

(HK cents) 45.21 4.85
Diluted e

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2023 are the same as the basic
earnings per share amounts as there were no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issues during two years.

HE202443 H31H %20234E3 H31H 1E4F
JE 5 B I R 4 R B A R A R R 4
FEARE > R 7 T A8 4 B A NI 406 v 7 4
A B o

OB () A RA TR
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17.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% WBREE

Freehold, Equipment,

leasehold leasehold

land and improvements

buildings and others Total

MEEE

1 HE #EHE
TiRETFT REERRREM #x

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT
Cost D%
At 1 April 2022 #202244 4 1H 265,170 247,412 512,582
Additions RE - 7,224 7,224
Disposals/written off HE R - (16,623) (16,623)
Exchange realignment EE i, 75 45 (1,810) (2,540) (4,350)
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 A20234F3 H31H /202344 H1H 263,360 235,473 498,833
Additions WE - 30,424 30,424
Disposals/written off /R - (16,182) (16,182)
Exchange realignment i 5t 2% (3,621) (4,088) (7,709)
At 31 March 2024 R2024%F38318 259,739 245,627 505,366
Accumulated depreciation and EERRE

impairment losses

At 1 April 2022 #20224F41H 78,933 236,901 315,834
Charge for the year AT 10,958 7,733 18,691
Disposals/written off R - (16,616) (16,616)
Impairment loss (Note a) E (i ika) - 320 320
Exchange realignment Bl i, 25 48 (676) (2,403) (3,079)
At31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 1202343431 H %20234£4 7 1H 89,215 225,935 315,150
Charge for the year AEESTE 10,930 11,107 22,037
Disposals/written off R - (16,153) (16,153)
Impairment loss (Note a) WE (M ska) - 6,732 6,732
Exchange realignment fEE 5t 2% (1,793) (3,734) (5,527)
At 31 March 2024 R2024%F3A8318 98,352 223,887 322,239
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 March 2024 R20245F3831A8 161,387 21,740 183,127
At 31 March 2023 #202343H31H 174,145 9,538 183,683

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Note:

(a)

As at 31 March 2024, carrying amounts of retail stores
assets represent property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of approximately HK$152.815 million (2023:
HK$151.392 million) and HK$82.170 million (2023:
HK$70.336 million) respectively.

The Group regards its individual retail stores as separately
identifiable CGUs and the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs is determined with reference to their value-in-use.
Management carried out an impairment assessment for the
retail stores assets, including property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, which exhibited an impairment
indicator. Management performed impairment assessment
for under-performing retail stores, such as stores making a
loss and early closure of stores before the lease term. The
carrying amount of the retail stores assets is written down
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The
estimates of the recoverable amount of retail stores assets
were based on value-in-use calculations using discounted
cash flow projections based on the forecasts approved by
management covering the remaining tenure of the lease,
with 14% (2023: 13%) discount rate.

Due to a slowdown in the watch retailing operations, the
Group has revised its value-in-use of those retail stores
that exhibited impairment indicator. As a result, during
the year ended 31 March 2024, impairment of property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$6.732 million
(2023: HK$320,000) and impairment of right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$18.056 million (2023: HK$5.570
million) were made as their carrying values are not expected
to be fully recoverable. Impairment loss was included
in other operating expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for
the recoverable amount as follow:

. Revenue: based on estimated sales with reference to
recent average yearly performance in all regions.

. Running cost: based on the estimated change related
to the Group’s cost saving plan and measures.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment pledged as security for
the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 33) amounted to
HK$136.014 million (2023: HK$145.718 million).

17.

I - MR RRE D)

U

(a)

202443 H31H > FEEHMKYE -
s B Al B i ) RE Y 7 Y B T L 43
A s 152.81540 B0 (20234 « i
#151.39240 #J0) fE 82,1 7016 85T
(20234 : #¥70.3361HET) °

AR A A LA 5 2B 0 25 8 o7 ] ik Al B
G R A o T AT I 2 B A AR LA S
BBEZELTYEZAMO A EMER S - &
T ST B A I B (A
W ~ W B DA B R ) A T IRk
ERRAG o 45 S0 3 s 4R Y 05 S 2 FH B 1 4
FIT B PR 25 R BN 10 265 05 a1 T el (E T
Al o i 28 i A A 7 ) B T PR LA 5T
AL [ A o JU) 516 R T O &5 T i [m]
AEE o T RO AT T g [l A A ol
(BB 5 - SRR 8 406 A B o Yo 2 L 6
ol A3 A7 1 0 I T P BB A v o BB
FH14% (20234 13%) o

HRFEEELEHIE - AEECBTTA
I 5 1) 2 B T A 88 PRI » PRI
2024331 HILFESE - W2k -
K IR 4 2 i 6.7 324F 0 (2023
4E 1 EH5320,00070) BT A & E E A
Ly 18.05640 # T (20234 #¥55.570
B E5T0) o R A JEL IR T {1 T A v 2 Sl
MAE A o AR 2RSS Al &
F HAth 2548 2 e o

S <4 8 A 0 9
T -

. WA = AR T A M I T T 3 4 A
A8 B R B R

o B AR M A AR
B S H AT B £ 5L -

202443 H31H » AREEWZE - HA K
SR T (1 36.0141A #5598 (20234
MK 14571846 #o0) B KA SR AT LASERL
B3 3 IR AR 42 181 ) 8R4 715 4 o

B () A RA A
2024 AR
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWZE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT AT
At 1 April R4H1H 297,900 283,100
Changes in fair value APEES) (100) 14,800
At 31 March R3HA31TH 297,800 297,900
The investment properties were revalued at the end of the % PG W) FE A SR o R ST B S E AR
reporting date by independent professionally qualified fhERTEE -
valuer.
(i) Amount recognised in consolidated income () REVERUBERTEINEHE
statement for investment properties
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Rental income FHARA 4,292 3,684
Direct operating expenses from properties 4G ILA Y ZEZ
which generated rental income EIREE SO (389) (343)
3,903 3,341
1 33 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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18.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. REYRGD)
(i) Lease arrangements Gy HEERH
Commitments for minimum lease payments A B B W) S B ISR AR A B R AR 5l
receivable on leases of the investment properties are IR EE35(a) ©

set out in Note 35(a).

The Group leases out its properties under operating ALEMTER S EE T Y
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases B A WORAR 4 o B B2 £3
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 3 years. .

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as R A E G A D ERERA A
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are RIShBEE w1 MR R & H
denominated in the respective functional currencies BL PR AR Z SN ERR o THE S 43
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain AN ERREIE R - A B AT R A
residual value guarantee and/or lessees’ option to NIRERERAR I B a2k -

purchase the property at the end of lease term.

(iii) Pledge (iii) 3K
The Group’s investment properties have been AL WY S T KIS SR T LA
pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings HCRAT B (Ff3E33) -
(Note 33).

B () A RA A
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. FREEE

2024 2023

HK$/000 HK$'000

BT Fioki K s

At 1 April R4H1TH 85,668 77,593
Addition wE 88,886 72,230
Termination of leases HIEFEAH (658) (1,715)
Depreciation charge for the year AT (62,087) (55,791)
Impairment losses (Note 17(a)) WAE (BEE17() (18,056) (5,570)
Exchange differences [ifE 58,2250 (2,441) (1,079)
At 31 March A3A31H 91,312 85,668

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following

Ll w8 A o B P R DL BB Y

types of assets: FE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Land use rights -l fe I HE 264 517

Property: Wk

— office premises — A E 8,553 14,358
— retail stores — B L5 82,170 70,336
Motor vehicles A 325 457
91,312 85,668

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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19.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Lease liabilities of HK$113.194 million (2023: HK$92.768
million) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$91.312 million (2023: HK$85.668 million) as at 31
March 2024. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

For both years, the Group leases various offices and retail
stores for its operations. Generally, lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 3 years but may
have extension and termination options as described
below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an
additional period after the end of the contract term. Where
practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension
options exercisable by the Group to provide operational
flexibility. The Group assesses at lease commencement
date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options, the future lease payments
during the extension periods are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities. The potential exposure to
these future lease payments is summarised below:

19.

EREEE (&)

202443 H31H > ¥ 113.194{a 8 0
(20234 : #¥r92 76810 #T) & & &
O [R A H91 3 12F 0 (2023 4F « i
85.66811 # JT) 1AM BE {5 FH HE & 2 T DA il
TR o %S R W v N AT T B o M
AR A C B R R 0 R 45 PR
P il = < g0 N G Y = W ENEOD R (i

=]
AR e

AR AEEBEEZ ML E LT
BT EE - — S, HESAEE
Z3AEI 2 AR IRT oL > MR R SO
WY IE 2 J2 A 1R B o AR AR ) )5 4% 4 il
FLHERGE > B R I B AN [ e B M
P o it 5 AL AF 309 B AT A AT SR 3 ] Y
R - ARG HRE & 400 E ] X E S
A m] s AT R

o R AL R A AR A5 R AR SR RS
] 2 AL 5 1 JBE4R HE o B IR W AT 9 17 DL
o ARG R A AT A B I AT % 5
EREFEMEAE - DRSS
AL B AL PR R F AT A 2 7 A B E
REAT (o AE fR I8 4R HE o i A 42 I 30k 5 B e
TEAT B AE R BEARHE - SR U [H] 1A 9 R SR A
BEffmA g AHERMNG RN - 2%
RAHE AT S T SR B Rl T

B () A RA A
2024 AR
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19.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

19.

Lease liabilities
recognised (discounted)

ERAEEE (&)

Potential future lease
payments under extension
options not included

in lease liabilities
(undiscounted)

TEETHEaEPES

mRH BREEETBENRR

HEaERH) AERRCRER)

2024 2023 2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT L RO BT AT

Office premises WAE 499 2,366 4,032 4,032
Retail stores TEEH 11,180 7,100 16,090 11,150

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances that is within the control of the
lessee. During the year ended 31 March 2024, there has
been no such triggering event.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in Note
34(b).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group leased
a number of retail stores which contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on sales generated from the
retail stores and minimum annual lease payment terms that
are fixed. These payment terms are common in retail shops
in the regions where the Group operates. The amount of
COVID-19 related rent concession recognised is disclosed
in Note 10. The amount of short-term and variable lease
payments recognised in consolidated income statement is
disclosed in Note 12.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BEA > AR N 042 o] A B N A K
PR LA OB > AN SR T B AL R
AP E BEAT M E R EERE - R
202443 A31 H IRFEREE > MR4EAT Bl 55
{4 -

B B4 AL ) KRR B W A EORHTE I RE34(b)
B -

202443 A311HERE - AEMMEL
2B 5 - (0 0 SE 5 B 9T A B
A1 AT B B AN B R % [ AR AR
BT MK o 3% 558 AT B 7 7S 4. [ 45
ST AE b B L o B3 TR e R 7 A 0 17 A B
(O FH & e B REAE I RE 1O 4R - RS
Wi 3 2 e 50 2 S AR 5 S RN AT SR AR AN
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. |EEE
Technical
Know-how  Trademarks Goodwill Total
BERM 5 [5ES Fob)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ikt ATV {413 TN (44 IR (4 4 I

Cost B
At 1 April 2022 202244 H1H 74,895 85,164 10,555 170,614
Exchange realignment HEE 5 2 7 - 208 846 1,054
At 31 March 2023 and %202343 731 H %20234F

1 April 2023 4A1H 74,895 85,372 11,401 171,668
Exchange alignment HEE 5.7 3 - 132 - 132
At 31 March 2024 R2024%3A8318 74,895 85,504 11,401 171,800

Accumulated amortisation and ~ BiHFERRE
impairment loss

At 1 April 2022 #20224E4H1H 74,895 44,377 - 119,272
Charge for the year A BE - - - -
Impairment loss AE - 3,878 - 3,878
At 31 March 2023 and 202343 H31H %2023 4

1 April 2023 4H1H 74,895 48,255 - 123,150
Charge for the year AR 5 - - - -
Impairment loss BE - - 1,083 1,083
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3H318 74,895 48,255 1,083 124,233
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 March 2024 R202453A31H - 37,249 10,318 47,567
At 31 March 2023 202343 H31H - 37,117 11,401 48,518

B () A RA A
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20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment assessment for technical know-how

In 2015, in order to secure the supply of mechanical
movements in the future, the Group acquired CATENA SA,
a Swiss watch movement manufacturer, and recognised
an identified technical know-how of HK$70.816 million.
Technical know-how has been fully amortised as at 31
March 2020.

Impairment assessment for trademarks

The carrying amount of trademarks of HK$37.249 million
(2023: HK$37.117 million) represents the trademarks
of self-owned watch brands. Management assesses
annually whether the trademarks exhibit any impairment
by considering the economic benefit generated from the
trademarks. The recoverable amount is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets performed
by management covering a five-year period. Management
determined the financial budget based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@)  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 0% (2023: 2%).

(b)  Negative growth rate used within the five-year budget
period of 5% (2023: growth rate of 5%) which was
considered reasonable with reference to subsequent
sales growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 16% (2023: 15%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of trademarks to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

No impairment loss on trademarks (2023: HK$3.878
million) is recognised during the year ended 31 March
2024.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

20.

RILEE (#)
EEZMERERR

FyWELR AR 0 SR AL A 4R iR
20154 W B B - 5 8% 2F 75 FICATENA SA >
S it AT ik A SR AT A i 70,8164 B
JC ° #E 202093 A31 H IR » s ER
i B AT A o

ARRE R

A AR G AT B S R P A AR T R
37.2491AT T (20234 « 37117401
J0) o P T8 ) A A i ST 4
5 0 T R 5 2 BT AR (L - T [T g
SRR A G o AR
AR YRR R A L g R 2 AT S0 [ 2 B
TAS AR 2 BRI S R T o AR 4L W
T MR 5 0 1 e B M L T 85 0 R 2 T
] 185 8 WP L PR o

JRTR B R 2 w3 A E AR 4

(@)  FAVE B R AR A TE 0 0 B 4 T
RBEE0% (20234 1 2%) o

(b) IRIFEREHEMRERWAHEEE > H
EMEE L FEHEEM AN AN ERE
5% (20234F : HER R 5%) -

(c) A B 4 3k TE A B BRI R 2R R A
16% (20234 : 15%) ° sZRNBI 2
T HLAE A B 0 R TR o

TR RS o b A A AR S AT T
PROAT T AR o i N S B B A0 R
R 8 T W [ o
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20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment assessment for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment. The goodwill is
attributable to the watch wholesale trading operations.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
performed by management covering a five-year period.
Management determined the financial budgets based
on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rate stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 0% (2023: 2%).

(b)  Negative growth rate used within the five-year budget
period of 8% (2023: growth rate of 5%) which does
not exceed historical growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 16% (2023: 15%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Due to a slowdown in the watch wholesale trading
operations, the Group has revised its cash flow forecasts
of the CGU. The CGU has been reduced to its recoverable
amount of HK$130.251 million, and resulted recognition of
impairment losses on goodwill of approximately HK$1.083
million. The impairment losses are recognised in the “Other
operating expenses”.

Management believes that any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amount
would result in further impairment losses.

20.

RILEE (#)
AR R ER

7 AR R S5 20 R 20 I 2 A S T T 1
bR A A DARNHE SE 7 SRS R S
M5 o B g A A BALAS 1A T Wi ] < R AR 8 £ P
R o w5 T R B Al 3 4 0 8
B> AR B A% 10 T4 ) B BT .
B LR AR IR AR T SR B S T 0 9 R R T
S S S B o B AR A BB TR
BB LUF BT Al R AR A

s R () E BT

() FH DA A 8 O AE T B Y B
B R A 50% (20234 ¢
20/0) ©

(b)  FEHEE A REN AN A RRS
8% (20234F : WREZ5%) » i AH N
WARHERR -

(c)  FA A B 4 3t = TE B 0 B A B B R A
16% (20234  15%) ° sZ YB3 7 i
T RS AR A B A 4 R

A TR LB 5 TR > AEE DB
FHEeEAREMNESREEY - HeE
A AN i Tl e B 130,251
A &0 - 7 A SO R A (E 1R R A
1.0831H 8T » WEIB T A [ H A2
H] e

R RS > Fh AT e g A I T A B
R P A ) A 1) 53 A 147 2 B0 B 0 — 25 Bk
{8 -
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21.

22.

141

EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

21.

BEAVEHEBEMZEWESIRNKRG R
&

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Equity investment at fair value through TN V(B2 HAt 2 T Wi 4 51 AR
other comprehensive income Lh)iiepEra <y
— Unlisted equity investment, at fair value — 3k 2wl B & (23 F-(E) 5,710 3,064

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the fair value gain
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$2.646 million (2023: HK$1.471 million).

Al S 3 5 T AN SR A 2
(3 HoAth T i 22 50 > ) iy A AR SR 1
R I W BB B SRS -

BE20244E3 131 H IL4ERE > i HAd 2 16
Wi #5 RN (B M 25 A s W52 64610 B T
(20234 : W1 47 1HE D) -

CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 22. EWRE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T fiokicx Wi
Consideration receivable JRES %1 346,889 -
Less: impairment loss W E R (5,203) -
341,686 -
Less: non-current portion W IR B (298,975) -
Current portion B 42,711 -

The consideration receivable represents deferred
consideration payments arising from disposal of a
subsidiary (Note 34(c)). The remaining consideration
receivable of approximately HK$346.889 million are
collectable at approximately HK$43.361 million annually
from 2025 to 2028 and a final consideration payment of
approximately HK$173.445 million in 2029.

The consideration receivable bearing interest at a rate of
4.75%.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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23. INVENTORIES 23. FE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Raw materials J AT R 169,350 173,847
Work-in-progress e 8,655 10,827
Finished goods LT 307,596 345,871
485,601 530,545
Less: provision for inventories W AF T (259,350) (308,418)
226,251 222,127
Because of high consumption on inventories where H 7S LA R4 O RHE A B HHE 19 47 B S
allowance have been provided in prior years, as a result, B PR (R DR AR B O R B0 A B
allowance made in prior years against the inventories s ¥E20.92 116 #7C (20234F - 817414
of HK$20.921 million (2023: HK$8.174 million) was JG) °
reversed.
The cost of inventories sold recognised as expense and 202443 31 H R4 B B HERR 45 PR
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$381.888 million B A AN = R R NN DR o R N B
during the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$440.309 381.8881HH 0 (20234F : #s1440.3091A 5
million). Jo) °
24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. BHREMEUERR
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Trade receivables, gross JRES ' B ARk > AR 93,480 71,942
Less: impairment loss (note b) W AT (kD) (1,225) 21)
92,255 71,921
Other receivables HoAth FE i B 3k 12,813 7,499
Deposits i 48,016 41,626
Prepayments TR 7,895 8,600
160,979 129,646
Less: non-current portion W FETEN TR (34,873) (17,220)
Current portion TRy 126,106 112,426
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERARME

24.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

24.

B 5 R HE RS ()

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on 8% 55 H O 43 1T A B UL RE ) TR AR 18
invoice date is as follows: B
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
0-60 days 0-60K 47,804 31,916
Over 60 days 60 KL 45,676 40,026
93,480 71,942
Note: FFaE -
(@  The Group engages designated import and export agents (@)  AAEFIAM R E R AR o s
for the importation of products from the subsidiaries in B2 R (14 7 kA A S A B A D o IRE
Hong Kong to the subsidiaries in the Mainland China. The Do A 4 1 A Y 55 0 ) 45 1 )
balances due from and due to the import and export agents BRAH > EM BRI ERSE - BE
are settled on a back-to-back basis, and such balances are 20243 H31H » A48 B E YA IR 3K S B A5
repayable on demand. The Group’s trade receivables and HR R, 9 B MR A A 10 AL 455 B
trade payables include balances due from and due to the 34,9681 87T (20234F « #132.902
import and export agents of HK$34.968 million as at 31 {H# ) ©
March 2024 (2023: HK$32.902 million).
Other than the balances due from the import and export I T AT B B A A Y AR 5 BR AL - AR
agents, the Group allows an average credit period of 60 Bl T HBICE 5 SR h 8 52 B Ry
days (2023: 60 days) from the invoice date to its trade 60K (20234F : 60K) A5 EHA -
receivables.
(b)  An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date (b)  AREE T A At A7 Al T 488 A0 R AT Dok

by using a provision matrix to measure ECL. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, and customer type). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off when the
counter party is in severe financial difficulty and there is
no realistic prospect of recovering e.g. under liquidation or
entered into bankruptcy.

Meanwhile, the Group applied general approach to provide
for ECLs for financial assets included in deposits and
other receivables under HKFRS 9. The Group considers
the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data in calculating the expected credit loss
rate. As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group estimated
the expected loss rate for financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables is insignificant.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24, B RHEMEBEWRRGE)
Note: (Continued) A =
(b)  Movements on the loss allowance for impairment of trade (b)  MENE S IR B A B T

receivables are as follows:

2024 2023
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT AT T
At 1 April IYERNE 21 23
Impairment loss CRIEREHE) 1,210 -
Exchange realignment IV 58,2 B (6) )
At 31 March A3A31H 1,225 21
(c)  Trade and other receivables included amounts due from (c)  E Gy B H Al R g AR K B 45 R A B e
related companies of HK$6.518 million (2023: HK$4.988 F T M 6.5 181 BT (2023 4F « s
million). Details of amounts due from related companies are 4.9881H E#IC) - BT BB 2 7 FROE A B
disclosed in Note 36. FE364EER -
(d)  The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are (d) B 5 T HoAth B i R Rk 2 B v (R 4 2 5
denominated in the following currencies: wmr
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT T
Hong Kong dollars ey 55,923 50,324
Renminbi N 32,362 31,372
Malaysian ringgit FEAR P B4 24,038 23,127
Swiss francs Bty LB 20,102 869
Singapore dollars Brmigoe 13,059 14,343
Thai bahts BT 2,464 1,848
Others HoAthy 13,031 7,763
160,979 129,646
() As at 31 March 2024, included in trade receivables are (e) JA20244E3HA31H > EIRE 5 ERF -
gross amount of approximately HK$17.32 million (2023: AWM 7 32{E 80 (20234F + &) DL
Nil) that bearing interest at a rate of 4.75%. 4.75%71 5 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. HERRELEEY
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Cash at banks HATH 4 66,895 85,227
Cash on hand SR 816 199
67,711 85,426

Note: BF5E -

(@) The above balances mainly represent cash at banks. Bank (@)  FREREE TR EATEIA o SATAEREREH
balances are deposited in banks with sound credit ratings to TSAERORME T RT AL R B 8RAT 473K > LR
mitigate the credit risk. REREY

(b)  The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies and (b) 9 AR S A0 o IR M N RS REE o o [
remittance of Renminbi out of the PRC is subject to the rules K I 2 2 v B R A A 14 47 B A 2 )
and regulations of exchange controls promulgated by the TRAIKIBR -

PRC government.

() The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the () BleKRBESEEDHEWEIT

following currencies:

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Singapore dollars HomyE e 25,925 34,460
Hong Kong dollars ey 17,451 15,874
Malaysian ringgit TR 4 14,538 22,052
Thai bahts B 3,655 6,928
Renminbi NG 1,573 1,589
Swiss francs Fit 2 B 972 738
Others HoAtb 3,597 3,785
67,711 85,426

1 45 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 26. AWRPBEATRLEEE
On 28 January 2022, the Group entered into a provisional 202241 H28H - ASE B — 42 M 57 55 =
agreement with an independent third party seeking to 77 W LG R B ko DA R B
dispose one of its properties and further on 10 February — AP o Wi h20224F2 A 10 H 4551 E & i
2022, a sale and purchase agreement of the disposal was i o BEE120/H 8T -

executed for a selling price of HK$120 million.

The disposal was completed on 10 August 2022 and gain M ERIHD 12022498 H10H 2L - i
on disposal of approximately HK$78.689 million was Wi 25 4075 15 7 8.6 891F & o i [ HAth Y 45 | A1
recognised in “other gains” (Note 9). fERg (59 -
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Number of
shares of
HK$0.1 each HK$'000
5 B
HERE0.17TH
et B AT
Authorised: TRERA
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, #20224E4H1H » 202343 A31H >
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 2023447 1H K%20244F3 A31H 1,600,000,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: CEAT MBI
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, J#£20224F4 1 H » 202343 A31H
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 20234E4 A1 H J20244E3 310 1,046,474,025 104,647
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RESERVES 28. f#fe
Property,
plantand  (Accumulated
equipment losses)/
Revaluation Echange ~ revaluation refained
Share premium reserve reserve reserve profifs Total
% B8

kRE (R
BfraR  EBE  EXBR  EERR  RERA 18
HKS 000 HKSO0D  HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
B M M M B B

At Aprl 2022 RRE R 1977 (638) (56,08 403,684 (75,446) 173,499
Proftforthe year it - - - - 507% 507%
Other comprehensive income/oss forthe year ERAAERE/ B - 1471 (6,360) - - (4.889)
At31 March 2023 R0 1977 813 (62,418) 403,084 (24)651) 319,405
AtT April 2023 R0034A 18 1977 813 (62,418) 403,684 (24,651) 319,405
Proitfor the year A - - - - 473,151 473,151
Other comprehensive income{oss for he year Eb2mERE/ B - 1646 (15,296) - 130 (12520)
Release of cumulative exchange reserve upon disposal thE G ZGHE B - - 21,897 - - 21,897
At31 March 2024 H4E3B1R 1977 3459 (35,817) 403,684 448,630 801,933
Nature and purpose of reserves REZHEERAR
(i) Share premium i) ROE
Share premium represents amount paid by e 73 Vi {0 i BCSR LR T S2 A ) <
shareholders for capital injection in excess of par AR T o
value.
(i)  Revaluation reserve (i) ETHE
Revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net FOAG A R R AR R O DL AT
change in the fair value of financial assets held at (BT A A 2 T A i 2 6 Y A
FVTOCI at the end of reporting date and is dealt with - R FH S B A > AR EMEE4(h)
in accordance with the accounting policy in Note W2 &t BUR B -
4(h).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RESERVES (Continued) 28. f&fE A
Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) R MER AR #)
(ifi)  Exchange reserve (iii)  FE S (it
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange EE S0 fabt M 6475 P A7 [ #8030 0 1 265 B
differences arising from the translation of the financial B R i A 2 W S ZE 8 o fk AR ) IR 4
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt WfEE4(d) rdcE st BOR R -

with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 4(d).

(iv)  Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve (iv) B - B R EN
The property, plant and equipment revaluation E B SN R A
reserve has been set up and is dealt with in PR AR 524 (e) s B AR A 2
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for b S T B R EOR B o

land and buildings held for own use in Note 4(e).
29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29. EIERKIE

JERL VA 7 AR B B AT AT

5

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities is as follows:

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Deferred tax assets R ALl TH 6,482 7,091
Deferred tax liabilities AR SE L IH A (26,287) (26,278)
(19,805) (19,187)
The gross movement on the deferred tax accounts is as RSEBLIANR H s 8
follows:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
At 1 April R4A1H (19,187) (19,644)
(Charged)/credited to income statement  (F1IBR) /&1 Az % (fFE15)
(Note 15) (410) 595
Exchange realignment iz i) (208) (138)
At 31 March A3A31H (19,805) (19,187)

B () A RA A
2024 AR 148



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29. EEEBIR (A
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during A DR IR A T e B R B ) O 5 R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of ARIRI BB m R i A SR AEHE ) A

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets ELERAEE
Provision
of unrealised Other
Depreciation profitin Other ~ temporary
allowances  inventories provisions  differences Total
BRH&
SR Hfy

fEER WEfE  RRE  EHEEE it
HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
ERffn  RRffR  REffn BB AW

At1 April 2022 1200244 1H 84 3,674 2214 1,074 7,046
Credited/{charged) to income statement A/ B % 57 1297 (917) (248) 189
Bxchange differences EiEH - 26) (73) (45) (144)
At 31 March 2023 2023F3H31H 141 4,945 1224 781 7,091
AtT April 2023 120234 A1H 141 4945 1224 781 7,09
(Charged)/credited to income statement (k) /7 A& (136) 105 14 (339) (375)
Bxchange differences S - (145) (46) 3 (234)
At 31 March 2024 R04E3A318 5 4905 1,192 380 6,482
Out of the unrecognised tax losses of HK$1,226.592 JIT 45 8 LA 1K 8 A A R B 2 A Tl R B UE
million (2023: HK$1,225.096 million) carried forward, T 1R 4R % Ak 5 1,226.59240 # T (2023
an amount of HK$1,000.475 million (2023: HK$976.137 AE o EME1,225.09640 B500) o Hop i
million) can be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining 1,000.47 546 # 7T (20234F « #976.1371A
HK$226.117 million (2023: HK$248.959 million) will Hor) AT MR A A HeRIEN226.1171H
expire in the following years: HT (20234 © #E15248.9591E #70) AL N
1 R et
1 49 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29. EZEBIR (A
Deferred tax assets (Continued) BB IREE ()
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
In the first year H14E 34,221 38,096
In the second year 24 48,050 37,661
In the third year Exkes 71,319 50,049
In the fourth year A 51,917 72,370
In the fifth to tenth years inclusive S5 E 1 04F (B4R E B 4R) 20,610 50,783
226,117 248,959
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of A T AE — B IR [H] A 78 A s 1500 B g 2 =)
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have 3 FLAR W] AE 6 725 15 8 S0 1L LA 1 HC
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered B R 48 - S A 5 S AR k% 45 s 1H e
probable that taxable profits will be available against RRARIE R 7 o
which the tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBIEAE
Revaluation
of property,
Depreciation plantand  Right-of-use
allowances equipment assets Total
ERE:
TEEE RRBER ERAREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT R AT R
At1 April 2022 202254 1H 5,812 20,338 540 26,690
(Credited)/charged to income statement GFEA) /Tnilids % (1,724) 1,248 70 (406)
Exchange differences HE 5 7% - - (6) (6)
At 31 March 2023 #202343H31H 4,088 21,586 004 26,278
At 1 April 2023 #20234F4H1H 4,088 21,586 604 26,278
Charged/(credited) to income statement 11/ (FFA) it % 8 (48) 75 35
Exchange differences HE 52 - - (26) (26)
At 31 March 2024 #202453831H 4,096 21,538 653 26,287
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30. HEAE
2024 2023
Present Present
Minimum value of Minimum value of
lease lease lease lease
payment liabilities payment liabilities
Ri& BEHEE R RiEHE

BERE AEZERE  HEIE SUHZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEATT BT EWT WP

Minimum lease payment due: B AR AR B8 -
— within one year — 14K 68,469 62,644 56,629 51,681
— more than one year but not exceeding ~ — 14 {H24E R
two years 38,941 36,849 34,154 32,418
— more than two years but not exceeding ~ —2F & H54F A
five years 13,849 13,701 8,813 8,609
121,259 113,194 99,596 92,768
Less: future finance charge T R S (8,065) N/A (6,828) N/A
Present value of lease liabilities HEHFHE 113,194 113,194 92,768 92,768
Less: Amount due for settlement within W NREARNFIIEHSE
12 months (shown under current () & N 2 51)
liabilities) (62,643) (51,681)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 121 H & 2| 414558 441 50,551 41,087
The lease liabilities are denominated in the following FHE BB AR EAT
currencies:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Hong Kong dollars ki 61,952 34,658
Malaysian ringgit FEAR VYRR A 27,681 18,942
Singapore dollars BrmygoT 16,984 29,274
Renminbi NG 4,889 7,519
Thai bahts Rk 1,688 2,375
113,194 92,768
1 51 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

31.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Hong Kong
employees that have been employed continuously for at
least five years are entitled to long service payments in
accordance with the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
under certain circumstances. These circumstances include
where an employee is dismissed for reasons other than
serious misconduct or redundancy, that employee resigns
at the age of 65 or above, or the employment contract is
of fixed term and expires without renewal. The amount
of LSP payable is determined with reference to the
employee’s final salary (capped at HK$22,500) and the
years of service, reduced by the amount of any accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s contributions to MPF
scheme (Note 13(a)), with an overall cap of $390,000 per
employee. Currently, the group does not have any separate
funding arrangement in place to meet its LSP obligation.

In June 2022, the Government gazetted the Amendment
Ordinance, which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits
derived from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions
to offset the LSP. The Abolition will officially take effect
on the Transition Date (i.e. 1 May 2025). Separately, the
Government of the HKSAR is also expected to introduce a
subsidy scheme to assist employers for a period of 25 years
after the Transition Date on the LSP payable by employers
up to a certain amount per employee per year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group’s mandatory
MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative
returns, after the Transition Date can continue to be
applied to offset the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation
but are not eligible to offset the post-Transition Date LSP
obligation. Furthermore, the LSP obligation before the
Transition Date will be grandfathered and calculated based
on the last monthly wages immediately preceding the
Transition Date and the years of service up to that date.

31.

RANERERE

A SE [ S s T A A R RS IR BEA T
NREET ] o MRIEE USR] > AT
FRE UL N > B Z R D AW E IR
ERHESRIRE S - ZE NN EER
Ji AT 2 I BN T3 ) DA A DR A
MR B ~ 4658 8k L L1 AT 19 IR
B s S 40 8 I T AR L JE T AR I R
H WA RWRE &N EHE2HEEA
e 4 (ERA22,500 70) MR 4F 3
P E o M B AR 4 R SR A A EE B (B G
13(a)) LR £ AT T Pl 25 > 4418 B
FHEHE R £5390,000i 00 - B AT > A4EH
S % 5% ST AT AT M S 138 e BE LU AT HR
MR 5 AT »

#20224F6 7 » BURFRIBEETTHRE] > BERR LA
i o e s R et . R s R
MRS a2 Bk o 8% B 6 o 195 7 S O I 3
(BP20254E5 A1 H) EXRAR - HAb > Filk
R FILAT MBSO S T S0 B i — JE Bl
Wh B IR £ S ATE - AT R IR 4 - B
WP H R AT > B AEARS
T EHEER -

WRIEEFT RG] > FOE I H R - AEET
o ) P 5 < (R O A AR IE L ]
A A S R O A T ) R A R <
FAL » HOR ARSI H AR 19 R 0 B
BFAE o BUAL - I F AT AY R RS
FALIF AR G > 37 % B0 I F AT A9 i
BAF R EZEZH L IRE E A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 31. BIRBERIARE )

A LR ATHR I IS & TR B 52 8)

Movements in the present value of unfunded LSP obligation

153

in the current year were as follows: -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
As at 1 April HZE4H1H 1,150 711
Amounts recognised in the profit or loss: RIBZHTERHNEHE
Current service cost B IR A 226 55
Interest cost )sSa 33 15
Past service cost i RB AR 530 421
Remeasurements recognised REMZEBRSERRBNERNTE
in other comprehensive income: o
Actuarial gains arising from: KA AR A AR
— Changes in financial assumptions — IR R (73) -
— Experience adjustment — KEBR A R (57) -
Benefit payments BRIZ A (6) (52)
As at 31 March HE3IH31H 1,803 1,150

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at
31 March 2024 is 8.0 years (2023: 9.9 years).

Of the expenses for the year, HK$789,000 (2023:
HK$491,000) has been included in administrative
expenses.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the LSP obligation are discount rate of 3.7% (2023:
3.0%), expected salary increase of 3.0% (2023: 3.0%) and
expected investment return on offsetable MPF accrued
benefits of 2.5% (2023: 2.5%). The sensitivity analysis
below has been determined based on reasonably possible
changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions
constant.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.  RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 31. REREE @)
2024 2023
Increase/ Increase/
Increase  (decrease) in Increase  (decrease) in
inrate  LSP provision inrate  LSP provision
RERKE R
BEEm/ Bt/
BRE (B2) HR% (D)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T
Discount rate Fiks 0.5% (70) 0.5% (54)
Expected salary increase TS 0.5% 29 0.5% 84
Investment return on offsetable MPF WA R R
contribution TR R 0.5% (66) 0.5% (122)
Decrease in the above rates by 0.5% (2023: 0.5%) would bl R0 0.5% (2023 4F ¢ 0.5%) AR
affect the LSP provision by approximately the same amount RS < 188 4 7 AR K SO [R] <6 R 5 7 1) AR
but in the opposite direction. diih-%
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be Hﬂﬁ/‘%jﬁﬁﬂ REEL A B > B Ra&A
representative of the actual change in the LSP obligation as REAE RSZ 7 A B e b BE s )
it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur ﬂtiﬁﬂﬁﬁ@fﬁ*ﬁT RE I A AR A= 9 AR 55
in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may BIEZ EHREEE) o

be correlated.

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. HBRHEMEAEN

2024 2023

HK$/000 HK$'000

BT AT T

Trade payables (note b) JREAH &2 R (D) 55,787 64,763
Contract liabilities (note ¢) GHIA Tf Kﬁufc 892 1,345
Other payables (note d) At AT K (B Ed) 15,082 24,826
Accruals JRET 4 46,752 55,331
118,513 146,265
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERARME

32.

Note:

(a)

(b)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 32. B RHMEMRNR G
BF5E -
Trade payables are unsecured and usually paid within 30 @ BT 5 R AT W R HERR 230
days of recognition. H RS A o
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice (b) % EESE AT I AT 51 ) MR R i 4
date is as follows: B
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$000
BT AT
0-60 days 0-60K 13,740 29,090
Over 60 days 60K LAk 42,047 35,673
55,787 64,763
Trade and other payables included amounts due to related B2 5y B A AT R 356 T A I W 4 )
companies of HK$2.364 million (2023: HK$940,000). FHIHWE W2 364 H L (20234F -
Details of amounts due to related companies are disclosed 940,0007T) o JEAT [ I 2 SR PE A 1 B
in Note 36. FE36HE
Contract liabilities include advances received from (€) B %) B A 2 A S Sk A ik e R R A0
customers. The decrease in balance of contract liabilities is FIH o B H) A BERFEUT iR P AT
due to the decrease in advances from customers as at year I D IS
end.
In 2023, include in other payable is a deferred consideration (d)  A20234F o HABMEAS FRH G4 TR AT RE AT AR

payable of approximately HK$11.083 million, which
represents a right to acquire the 12% equity interest of a
subsidiary of the Company, namely Catena SA (“Catena”).
The acquisition right is exercisable at the price equal to the
proportional net assets value of Catena. However, if the net
assets value is negative, the purchase price shall be set as
zero. The acquisition right is exercisable until 31 December
2035.

As at 31 March 2024, management carried out a review
on the net assets value and forecasts of future business
performance of Catena and determined that the purchase
price of 12% equity interest in Catena will be close to zero.
As a result, a reversal of deferred consideration payable
and related discounting interest of HK$17.34 million was
recognised to consolidated income statements during the
year (note 9).
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IR AR M N o DRI > A AR A H TH]
TN 519 43 ] 0 AiE JE A5 A1 S A B B 35
B 7 3400 BOoRN A SR B iR A R (BfRE
9) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 32. EZRHEMENKRR G
Note: (Continued) =)
(e)  The trade and other payables are denominated in the (e)  Eu MMM ARFIL B 2SN -

following currencies:

2024 2023
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Hong Kong dollars i 49,472 69,230
Renminbi NG 28,321 26,142
Malaysian ringgit FEA PG RE A 11,106 7,975
United states dollars ESSH 8,947 18,497
Singapore dollars G DIIE O 7,812 7,449
Thai bahts ek 6,420 5,994
Swiss francs Fi L 2 RS 2,913 7,602
Others HoAthy 3,522 3,376
118,513 146,265
33. BANK BORROWINGS 33. MITERK
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Bank borrowings, secured SRAT R HKA 233,984 342,848
Note: Bf&E
(@  The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable on demand, (@)  AEESRATE R REE - FIEE 5
and classified as current liabilities. R o
(b)  The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for the (b)  EAEIASERAT DA A AR E SR TS R
Group’s bank borrowings are: EIRTMEMNT
2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
[{ig BT WA
Property, plant and equipment LYE SN & e ] 17 136,014 145,718
Investment properties Eita =g/ S 18 297,800 297,900
433,814 443,618
(c)  The bank borrowings of the Group are denominated in ()  AREMEMRIT R ICEHE -
Hong Kong dollars.
(d)  As at 31 March 2024, weighted average effective interest (d)  A2024%3H31H - SRATEFKIINHET-15
rate per annum for bank borrowings was 7.5% (2023: 3.7%). B MR L7 58 (20234 © 3.7)H) o

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION 34. GEREREBRMT
(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (@ ®METHELENERED
Analysis of liabilities arising from financing activities ASER D 2 BT 7 47 S5 il T B A Y
and the movements in liabilities arising from TR el 3% Bl BT A AR 5 B Y 70
financing activities for each of the years presented. Br o
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings Total
HESE RITER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N AT AT HE AT
1 April 2022 1202244 11H 91,028 473,876 564,904
Cash flows Haie (67,432) (131,028) (198,460)
Non-cash flows FH W 66,215 - 66,215
Exchange differences [ e A5 2,957 - 2,957
31 March 2023 202343 H31H 92,768 342,848 435,616
1 April 2023 20234 H1H 92,768 342,848 435,616
Cash flows Hahie (65,240) (108,864) (174,104)
Non-cash flows KB 88,158 - 88,158
Exchange differences e 5t 25 5 (2,492) - (2,492)
31 March 2024 M2024%3831H 113,194 233,984 347,178
(b) Total cash outflow for leases by HEZRESHRHAE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for FPABERERTNARLESREA
leases comprise the following: T -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT
Within operating cash flows NEEIEE SRR N 40,010 36,640
Within financing cash flows A I ) B R A 65,240 67,432
Represents lease rental paid O AT A 4 105,250 104,072

1 57 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 34. ZEBERERMT )

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (00 HEWBAR
On 12 December 2023, a wholly owned subsidiary R20234E1212H » AR —H4
of the Company (the “Seller”) entered into a Share B RS A F ([E )y ) B S8 =5
Sale agreement with an independent third party (the (TE T D) ATSL ey S B ok - 5
“Purchaser”) for a disposal of entire issued share J5 —[H 4 G B A W 2R 8 Tk
capital of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Seller A A A S5 WM 535. 1031 # -
at an aggregate consideration of approximately 285 ER20244E2 29 H S, -

HK$535.103 million. The transaction was completed
on 29 February 2024.

The net assets disposed of and the resulting gain on A TR S (L e i MR
disposal are summarized as follows: I
HK$’000
AT
Trade and other receivables B 5 B FABRE ISR R 124
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB EY) 622
Trade and other payables 5.5 B A EATHR K (153)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 593
Gain on disposal HERE
Total consideration HaffE 535,103
Less: professional fees W BN  2E (3,126)
531,977
Net assets disposed G THE (593)
Release of cumulative exchange reserve upon disposal 8 1% 2 i1 5o fit i (21,897)
509,487
Satisfied by: XA
— Cash — Bl 175,074
— Consideration receivable — JES AR 356,903
531,977

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 34. FZEBREHRERMFT )

159

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued) (o)

An analysis of net inflows of cash and bank balances

HEHE AR ()

A7 T B S TE ) SR AT 5 B X B A

of the disposal is as follows: AGHIE
HK$'000
AT
Cash consideration BaUE 175,074
Less: Cash and bank balances of the disposed B IR B M BRAT A R
subsidiary (622)
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary H B B 2 ) BT A R T R AR 174,452

35. COMMITMENTS 35. 7RiE
(@) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group (@ TAMENEEHEHE(RNEEESRH
is the lessor) HA)

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of

AT T R T AT R RS AR A

certain land and buildings are as follows: WA SRR T
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Investment properties REMHE
Commitments for minimum lease A BT AN AT AN
payments receivable in relation F18) % S e {1 B W L <5 A
to non-cancellable operating T
leases are payable as follows:
— Not later than one year — 14K 4,774 3,534
— Later than one year but not later — VAR E54E N
than five years 5,875 384
10,649 3,918
Properties LJES
Commitments for minimum lease ASSE B A AT A BN
payments receivable in relation to F1 2R B o A i REL AL <62 4
non-cancellable subleases of operating T :
leases are payable as follows:
— Not later than one year —14ER 710 1,107
— Later than one year but not later — 14ER(E54ER
than five years 876 185
1,586 1,292

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

35.

36.

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group
is the lessee)

The Group entered into certain short-term leases
for office and retail shops. As at 31 March 2024,
the outstanding lease commitments relating to these
office and retail shops are approximately HK$13.994
million (2023: HK$13.569 million).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2024, Yee Hing Company Limited held
855,200 shares of the Company through its subsidiary
Active Lights Company Limited. 55% of the total issued
ordinary shares of Yee Hing Company Limited is held
by Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the trustee of a
discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong is a
beneficiary of the Trust, therefore deemed to be interested
in 855,200 shares of the Company through the Trust’s
interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

(@ Significant transactions with related parties

Apart from disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following is a summary of the
significant related party transactions carried out in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The related
parties are entities which have directors in common
with the Company.

(i) Provision of services to related companies

35.

36.

A A

(b) FAHENERBE (RAEEMERK
BA)

AN A5 ) 5 N R R T A AR T
HINFHA o R20244E3H31H » %%
WS 3 T ZAE G A B R AR R L
RIEX B HE13.99410 & (20234 ¢
HHE13.56910 #) ©

FEBALRS

J£20244E3 H31H » FEHAT R 7 8 H
B} 72 vl Active Lights Company Limited$§
B AN A)855,200/ 453 - Klayze Holdings
Limited AME & —JHEY I (F 5T (B RED) 2%
AR REARA R 2 E BT E
B2 55%ME A o TR SR I (A R 2 &
i Ao WO 2 R AE FE R F LA R W
Z RERR AT A2 7]855,200 1 B e 4 <

(@ BRERBALETZIEAXRS

IR B 5 3 HLA R 0 BT 4R 4 > B
Ty A S B BELAT Rl M N\ 2 TR BT A T 1Y
HREZEHGME » L5 IA LR
H #2685 AT o B LR BLA
NFEEA LR E R E

(i) I B L AR R

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT

Building management service P2 TR (i 5Ta)
income (note a) 2,580 2,580
Shared service income (note b) FLE MR (K 5E b) 15,316 14,400
Rental income (note ) FHA WA (o) 3,633 3,130
Royalty income (note d) FEFPRECE B U (B sEd) 654 608
22,183 20,718

B () A RA A
2024 AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERARME

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ Significant transactions with related parties

(Continued)

(i)

Provision of services to related companies
(Continued)

Note:

()

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into a renewal agreement with
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited
(“MPIL”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Yee
Hing Company Limited, for the provision of
the following services for the period from 1
April 2022 to 31 March 2025 (2023: 1 April
2022 to 31 March 2025):

(i) contract administration with respect to
contracts entered into between MPIL
and third parties from time to time;

(i) property agency liaison and tenancy
management;

(iii)  management of the property manager of
Stelux House; and

(iv)  other miscellaneous administrative
services.

The fee for the provision of the above
services was agreed at HK$215,000 (2023:
HK$215,000) per calendar month during the
agreement period.

The Group provided administrative services
to a related company which has directors
in common with the Group. Shared service
income was charged at cost basis allocated
based on the counterparties’ usage of each
type of service, taking into account factors
such as headcount and the number of stores.

The Group provided leasing services to related
parties which have directors in common with
the Group. Rental income was charged to
related parties based on the occupied area
ratio times total actual costs incurred.

The Group provided licensing services
to related parties which have directors in
common with the Group. Royalty income was
charged at 10% of the amount invoiced by
suppliers or vendors of the counterparties.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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36.

BEBALXS @)

(@

ERBBATETZEARS #)

(1)

11 Bl 2 I P2 IR 7 (7))

0

7 AJE 1 A O R ) B 3 L
A PR | A e N | B EE
WERERRAF ([HEE])
R 20224E4 1 H £20254F
3H31 H MBI HE LR IRES #T
SR (20234F 1 17202244
H1HZE20254F3H31H) :

()  PHEEELLS <5 RIEET
S AR Z A RT
s

(i) WEALHBELHE
(=g

(i) EHHELHESOY
EEHAE 5 M

(iv)  HAATERE -

ARG R e A > Rt
it IR 5 0 7 B 2 R T
H#215,0007C (20234F -
#:H#5215,00070) ©

AR [ 1] BELAS S 1 5 A 3 0
A B N R A
B o L2 B B AR AR %
2 5y 3 77 3 4% IS 114 JE
H #8518 B TN BORE i 3
4 B R AR

AR [ 1) LA A P A 3L 1)
) DN N
B o < AR 55 A Hb 1H A5
ofe LI [ 7 AR Y BT R AR AR

1) [ e A A
AR [ 1) LA A P A 3L TR

T B A R A
FFTT RS o o R 0l i
N T2 A% B 7 B 58 ) 3 2 Ak
JRE T B L 1 2 BB (A 10 %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. BEBALIXRS #)
(@) Significant transactions with related parties (@ HEAEBBAIETZEARS #)
(Continued)
(i) Purchases of goods and services from related (i) [ BN L B B dh RAR
parties
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Purchase of goods (note a) WEE B & (fika) 15,818 1,584
Rental expenses (note b) A7 (B 5Eb) 9,243 9,150
Lease management expenses (note c) FLETE 2 37 H (Ffikc) 420 420
25,481 11,154
Note: BiFGE -
(@)  During the year, certain subsidiaries of the (@)  AER o AREEETHE A
Group purchased watch products from a ] ) — [H] B A £ [ 4 A S [R)
related company which has directors in (1 BRI ) O R g
common with the Group. il e
Purchases of watch products from the related T R M > ) S R E A O
company are conducted in the normal A G H R o S8 h 2k
course of the Group’s business. The terms A A A [ B 2 5 5
of transactions are determined and agreed € B WhsE - BT A R AR 5C
between the Group and the counterparty and DRSS
all balances due are repayable according to
trade terms.
(b)  During the year, certain subsidiaries of the (b)  AER s AR T E AT
Group entered into tenancy agreements with ST B A7 B B R S
the following related parties for office premises fhwk - LATH R HF A ZE ~ )5
stores, warehouses, showroom and car-parking S R BEAE KT
spaces: i :
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
MPIL Wi 7,687 7,743
Other related parties HARA B A L 1,556 1,407
9,243 9,150
() A related company provided lease (©  —Z A B A w1 A 4 H R

management services to the Group. The fee
for the provision of such services is charged at
pre-determined amount during the agreement
period.

(LA B BB o $RALRESE
5 4 B T LR T S 1K) 42
BUEWCE R ©

B () A RA A
2024 AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Balances with related parties

The balances due from/to related companies as
disclosed in Notes 24 and 32 are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The related
companies are entities which have directors in
common with the Group.

(c) Key management compensation

36.

BEBALXS @)

(b) EBRERBALZBNER
Wi 524 B2 32 FT 45 8 14 B o e JRE A ] i
25 [ B 2 RS SR B R R

SRAEHE o Bl 2~ m) i BELAR 4 B g A7 O
Al 3= 2 FH -

(0 FEEEEHH

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T

Salaries and other short-term employee 34 & HAth 5 #4g & 18 £
benefits 5,603 4,838
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme ARG H {5 117 106
5,720 4,944

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. HARAE

As at 31 March 2024, a subsidiary of the Company has
secured various performance bonds to its landlord of
certain retail shops and a supplier, details as follow:

202443 H31H > Al — WD 2 7
CHCA 2 S R AR 0 1R
# o RN

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Security given to banks for performance — #RATHR L1 JE £ (35 & 15
bonds 7,738 7,202

At 31 March 2024, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group
under the above guarantees.

38. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figure of “trade and other payables” in
the consolidated balance sheet have been reclassified to
“retirement benefit obligations” to conform the current
period’s presentation. The new classification of the accounting
items was considered to provide a more appropriate
presentation of the state of affairs of the Company.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 39. AREEABRRFEAREDR
COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company RAEEEER
2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E BT T AT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary B 2 W % 40 - -
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE ST BfF 88 2 W 0 a 767,830 766,848
Trade and other receivables & 5y Je HoAth FES AR 2k 261 294
Cash and cash equivalents B4 Bl aE MY 2,022 2,038
770,113 769,180
Total assets EERE 770,113 769,180
EQUITY e
Share capital A 104,647 104,647
Reserves Tt H5 b 34,714 34,714
139,361 139,361
Total equity IR
LIABILITIES 8fE&
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Be HARREATHR K 2,546 2,013
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST B w3k IE a 628,206 627,806
630,752 629,819
Total liabilities BEH8%E 630,752 629,819
Total equity and liabilities REREERE 770,113 769,180

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2024 and

TEHEGIE20244E6 H 25 H AU T 51 A

are signed on its behalf by: REE
Joseph C.C. Wong Liao Ching Mei
HA B2 i B

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
FIERITHAE#,

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

TTEH R BB

B () A RA A
2024 AR
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39. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 39. AREEABRREEEHXR D)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: R

(a) The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b)  Reserve movements of the Company

(a)

BB REZR A ©

b)  AFIHMEES)

JRE e % B A A T 2 ) ) R R SR -

Share Retained
premium profits Total
BARE REBF iz
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AT AT AT
At 1 April 2022 202244 H1H 1,977 32,737 34,714
Loss for the year FNER - - -
At 31 March 2023 ®202343H31H 1,977 32,737 34,714
At 1 April 2023 "2023F4H1H 1,977 32,737 34,714
Loss for the year N - - -
At 31 March 2024 R202453H318 1,977 32,737 34,714

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S
40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. FEMEQT

The principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2024 and 31 March #E2024F3 431 H K20234F3H31H » &

2023 are: R0} AR U,
Particulars of Percentage of equity
share capital issued attributable to the Group (%)
Place of incorporation/ BRITRE SEFERENE DL
operation Principal activities Number Value
HMRYL SEh  TERE B®  SREE 2024 2023
Investmenti% &
Stelux Holdings International Group ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited SR AT s ESTr
Stelux Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1,000 HKS$1 100 100
FOLTE R AR A i basidie AP
Stelux Investments and Properties British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 US$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited PIRIE LB BarER 1578
Thong Sia (BVI) Company Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
be I Agils HEER 1%
CC Group (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
KRR SRR 157
Stelux Watch Group (BVI) Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
LR ba<idie (BT
City Chain (Bermuda) Holdings Bermuda Investment holding 12,000 Us$1 100 100
Limited [EF ¢ RERR B3
Stelux Watch Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Investment holding 2 HK$1 100 100
Limited &b s (A
Property#] %
City Chain Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
I B A PR A i IESa T
Oswald Property Management Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$100 100 100
Company Limited ik YR E 1007

B () A RA A
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. EEMBEDIR &)
Particulars of Percentage of equity
share capital issued ~ attributable to the Group (%)
Place of incorporation/ BRTRA SEFMEEENE DL
operation Principal activities Number Value
HRAL SEh  EEXR B8 SREE 2024 2023
Property (Continued)
NE (R
Stelux Properties Agency Limited Hong Kong Property agency and 2 HKS$1 100 100
DtEREARA R ik management L AP
ESNeLY &1
Retailing and tradingZ &R E 5
City Chain Company Limited Hong Kong Watch retailing 250,000 HK$100 100 100
G TRA T it BT 007
City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch retailing 3,333,333 RM1 100 100
L) N HHEEE 187
City Chain (Macau) Company Macau Watch retailing 2 MOP5,000 100 100
Limited M EHTE TR
I R () A R 5,0007C
City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited Singapore Watch retailing 1,800,000 S§1 100 100
A HEEE b
City Chain (Thailand) Company Thailand Watch retailing 200,000 Baht100 100 100
Limited #E HREE 1007
210,000 Baht100
10025k
Pronto Watch SA Switzerland Watch distribution 100 SFr1,000 100 100
Hit: Sk 6 1,000% 1
il
Solvil et Titus SA Switzerland Watch distribution 300 SFr1,000 100 100
it k8 1,000 £
il
CYMA SA Switzerland Watch distribution 100,000 SFr1 100 100
Bit: B Hi Lk
Lissignol Sarl Switzerland Watch distribution 200 SFr100 100 100
Bit: Sk 7 1005 118
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. EEMBEDIR &)
Particulars of Percentage of equity
share capital issued ~ attributable to the Group (%)
Place of incorporation/ BRITRA SEFMEEENEDL
operation Principal activities Number Value
MR IREH E®  SREE 2024 2023
Retailing and trading (Continued)
TERESZ (@
Stelux International Licensing Bahamas Trademark holding and 2 Us$1 100 100
Limited B licensing EST
T BRREA AL
Stelux Watch Limited Hong Kong Watch supply chain 1,000,000 HKS$1 100 100
BESA AT il management N AD
SRR
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Watch distribution 80,000 HK$10 100 100
TR A R ] &  EYi] 107
Stelux Trading (International) Hong Kong Watch distribution 2 HKS$1 100 100
Limited Fik BN e
Thong Sia Company (Singapore) Pte  Singapore Watch distribution 2,000,000 S§1 100 100
Limited Hmg gk Hrne o
Thong Sia Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch distribution 1,000,000 RM1 97.6 97.6
o UL SR %%
Universal Geneve SA Switzerland Watch supply chain 5,000 SFr1,000 - 100
Bt management and 1/000%f
distribution i
B LB B T I 7 B
Catena SA Switzerland Manufacture of watch 1,016,667 SFr1 100 1000
}\:ﬁj: movements 1}{lﬁj:i\£alz

TSRS
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. EMEAR )
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ attributable to the Group
operation Principal activities Paid up capital ~ EBEFHEERNE L
SR St TEEH BRER 2024 2023
Retailing and trading (Continued)
ZERES ()
Stelux Thong Sia (Guangdong) The PRC (foreign-invested ~ Watch retailing, trading HK$258,500,000 100 100
Trading Limited commercial enterprise) and related services H#5258,500,0007C
Bt R A RAR O ERRE GRS SEEE - E5 R
MR R
Note: s -
(@)  Non-redeemable preference shares. (@)  AAITEREER
(b)  100% equity interest included 88% of equity interest and a (b)  TO0%HE % 145 88 % B HE K LA B A R i HE
right to purchase 12% of equity interest. HiE 1 2% I HE
1 69 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD

s EMEFRS

As at 31 March 2024 J*20244F3 H31H
S

Attributable
interest of
Location Lot Number Type Lease term the Group

1 B 1t ER SR 8L BE b AEMELER

Macau

B

Em Macau 712 Commercial Medium 100%
Rua de S.Domingos N.21-A EES H

WM A

21-A%%

Em Macau 12125-GR/C Commercial Medium 100%
Estrada da Areia Preta [HE3 i

N.5, Kei Kuan Bairro

(Bloco 1A Bloco 6)

Res-do-Chao G

P > SRVDER TG B 5 9%

b5z BRI AT (56— A2 22 58 /S )

o~ G

Em Macau 10253-FR/C & GR/C Commercial Medium 100%
Rua da Palha N. 20, [HES Hh

Beco da Palha N. 1-A

San Vo Res-do-Chao F and G

M BRI E20%98

i H B (F R D) 1-A5E

AN B 1l T F e 1 G
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRiE - HEREARABS

ABOUT THIS REPORT
Reporting Scope

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024 (the
“Report”) covers the period from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024
(the “Reporting Period”) and focuses on the operations of the
Group’s businesses in Greater China, as well as the SEA. These
geographical segments contribute significantly to the Group’s
activities, encompassing retail and wholesale trading of watches,
and watch supply chain management for our house brands
during the Reporting Period. The Report provides an overview of
the Group’s sustainability commitment, initiatives, progress, and
achievements during the Reporting Period.

Reporting Standard

Preparation of this report follows The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“SEHK")'s ESG Reporting Guide under Appendix
C2 of the Main Board Listing Rules, satisfies the “comply or
explain” provisions and follows the four reporting principles —
Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency as follows:

Materiality: The ESG Report outlines the ESG issues that
significantly impact the Group and its stakeholders, including
investors. By conducting regular materiality assessments, these
material ESG issues are identified and reviewed by the Board.

Quantitative: To complement the quantitative data presented in
the ESG Report, supplementary notes are provided to clarify any
standards, methodologies, and source of conversion factors used
during the calculation of emissions and energy consumption.

Balance: This ESG Report covers unbiased illustration of the
Group’s performance during the Reporting Period, to avoid
selecting, omitting or presenting formats that may inappropriately
influence a decision or judgement by the reader.

Consistency: The methodologies applied to collect and calculate
data in the ESG Report are ensured to be consistent with those
used in previous ESG Reports, enabling meaningful comparisons
over time. Any changes to the methodologies are detailed within
the ESG Report.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This ESG Report contains forward-looking statements based on
the current expectations, estimates, projections, beliefs, and
assumptions of the Group about the businesses and the markets
in which it and its subsidiaries operate. The forward-looking
statement is not a guarantee of future performance and is subject
to market risk, uncertainties, and factors beyond the control of
the Group. Therefore, actual outcomes and returns may differ
from the assumptions and statements in this ESG Report.

Review and Approval

The Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
integrity of the ESG Report. To the best of their knowledge,
this ESG Report addresses all relevant material issues and fairly
presents the Company’s ESG performance. The ESG Report was
reviewed and approved by the Board on 25 June 2024.

Information and Feedback

The Group strives for excellence and actively welcomes
feedback from its stakeholders. Please contact us by email via
ir@stelux.com.

ABOUT STELUX

Publicly listed in Hong Kong since 1972, Stelux is principally
engaged in the retail watch business with “CITY CHAIN", a
leading retailer. The Group also distributes Swiss watch brands
“SOLVIL et TITUS” and “CYMA” across Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau, Singapore, Malaysia and Thailand. Additionally,
the Group manages the watch supply chain as the sole wholesale
distributor of “GRAND SEIKO” and “CREDOR” watches in Hong
Kong and Macau, as well as “SEIKO” watches and clocks in
Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, Brunei and Malaysia.
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Stelux’ vision
Our vision is to

J beautify and enrich lives through our products and
services.

Stelux’ mission

Our mission is to

provide high quality products and services of best value to
Stelux’ customers;

J grow, respect and reward our employees as they develop
together with Stelux;

o strive to be a part of communities, to serve and contribute
by promoting corporate social responsibility; and

e create and safeguard shareholders’ value in a sustainable
manner.

Stelux’ values

Our values are to

J prioritise our customers’ and Stelux” interests;
° own our work and be accountable;

J improve ourselves through continuous learning and
development; and

J be proactive and determined in our execution.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD

We take great pleasure in presenting the ESG Report for the
FY2023/2024, which highlights our commitment to sustainability
throughout the past year. The Board of Directors oversees
Stelux’s sustainable development and ensures that sustainability
considerations are integrated into every facet of our operations.
This is achieved through the active involvement of our
employees at all levels, employing a comprehensive approach
that encompasses both “top-down” leadership and “bottom-up”
participation.

The ESG Working Group bears the responsibility of annually
reporting to the Board, providing updates on stakeholder
engagement, risk identification in ESG areas, and the progress
of ESG targets. We give priority to sustainability in all our new
initiatives, aiming to systematically meet the 2029 ESG Target
established for this year.

We are dedicated to fostering a corporate culture where respect
for individuals is a cornerstone, compensation is equitable, and
our work environment is both safe and conducive to optimum
productivity. Such environment is fundamental to engaging
effectively with our stakeholders and the public at large. The
integral role played by our suppliers and business partners cannot
be overstressed, as we collaboratively source, produce, and
deliver premium quality products to our customers. We uphold
procedures to ensure that our partnerships are with vendors and
suppliers who share our values and meet our expectations.

Our customers are essential to our success. Their continual
support and patronage are the backbone of our ability to offer
high-caliber products and services. Lastly, our shareholders
expect sustainable performance that aligns with the principles of
robust corporate governance, environmental consciousness, and
active community involvement.

We believe that synergetic partnerships are vital for creating
lasting sustainable impacts. By uniting with our stakeholders,
both within and outside of our organization, we pledge to
accomplish more. Together, through transparent dialogue and
cooperative efforts, we are committed to advancing on our
collective path towards a sustainable future.

Board of Directors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board Governance

Under Stelux’s robust governance structure, the Board oversees
all matters related to sustainability to ensure Stelux’s steady
progress towards its long-term commitments and the creation of
values. It also directs the formulation and integration of relevant
policies, which are implemented at every staff level, from
management and functional units to business departments and
individual employees.

The Board reviews 2029 ESG Targets, identifies and manages
ESG-related risks, assesses climate resilience, and oversees other
key sustainability projects. It advises on the prioritization of
ESG tasks, participates in progress reviews and offers strategic
recommendations.

ESG Working Group

With its primary responsibility to draft Stelux’s sustainability
agenda, the ESG Working Group (the “Working Group”),
comprising the Group’s senior management, meets annually
to report and evaluate the sustainability performance of their
respective units. Referencing the key performance indicators
outlined in the 2029 ESG roadmap, the Working Group is
charged with the task of giving detailed consideration to and
implementing various initiatives in line with expectations derived
from stakeholder engagement and materiality assessments.

While the Working Group serves a vital role in supporting the
Board by gathering insights through both internal and external
communications with stakeholders on critical sustainability
topics, the Board reviews and approves the ESG Report and
the progress of other initiatives annually. The ESG Working
Group will also be involved in enterprise risk management to
assist in assessing and identifying the Group’s ESG risks and
opportunities.

It has been confirmed by the Board that this ESG Report has been
reviewed and approved. To the best of the Board’s knowledge,
the Report accurately represents the material issues and the
Group’s approach to ESG.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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Risk Management [ B 7R
A well-structured risk management framework supports effective TEEDGH HF A - S G PR Jabe i P 22

risk management in association with its strategies and business A BLHCSR Je SE B F AT B A4 A 80 B B o
objectives throughout Stelux’s day-to-day operation. More A I JEL i e B e A B B R A E R S R
information about our Risk Management and Internal Control AT B20244F 227 8233 H o

governance framework can be found in our Annual Report 2024,

from pages 227 to 233.

COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT EHRER

The Group is committed to complying with relevant laws and AR BN BT M B A S B RS I
regulatory requirements and ensures compliance through the AT SEE PO S B TR S 1 o Z3 Rk
formulation of various business ethics policies and Employee R PR B R - B O E W S A
Handbook. To reduce operational, reputational, and financial EERE PR BB ERRER > e e
risks, Stelux has identified laws and regulations that are R AR G B o 5255 M Sk B ELAE (B R
considered material to the Group’s operations and has established DU RAIEM

policies to ensure compliance. These include, but are not limited

to the following laws and regulations:

Aspect Region Laws and regulations
FH HE ERRER
Environment Hong Kong Air Pollution Control Ordinance

Waste Disposal Ordinance

Water Pollution Control Ordinance
R A 2 505 Je i g Ay

R i B A A

OKI5 3% Hil et

Mainland China Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control on
Environmental Protection by Solid Wastes
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
HH R A 3 (g N R B B 5 R i)
Crp e\ RILA B [5] # BE ) 15 R BRI B IR ¥)
(g N RN B R S5 B Bl k)
(e N IR K 35 B Biia 5 )

B () A RA A
2024 AR 176
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Aspect Region Laws and regulations
FHE hE EERER
Macau Environmental Act (No. 2/91/M)
Law No. 8/2014
M 552/91/MIEIE A CBRETARZ )
558/201 455151
Malaysia Environmental Quality Act 1974

Environmental Quality (Clean Air) Regulations 1978

Environmental Quality (Sewage and Industrial Effluents) Regulations 1979
RS APy aE 197 44F CRETE R IL)

197845 (BT H & (F R % 50 1R bi)

19794F CBRETE & (757K B TEREK) W ol)

Singapore Environmental Protection and Management Act
Environmental Public Health Act
Hazardous Waste (Control of Export, Import and Transit) Act
Sewage and Drainage Act

g (BRI IR AN B
CGRE A SHERE)
by (i~ A DRESTE ) %)
R FNBE K1)

Thailand Enhancement and Conservation of the National Environmental Quality Act, B.E.
2535, enacted in 1992
ENE TR 19924 il 5 1 (I ZX B L & Al HE M (R 0K) BLE. 2535

Employment Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
Fire Safety Ordinance
Employment Ordinance
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
Sex Discrimination Ordinance
Disability Discrimination Ordinance
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
Minimum Wage Ordinance

e fi i (B 22 2 2 A A 91
QI B % 21l
CHR g e 1)
(R B e )
CHERI AR R ])
CBEER ARG A])
R B} (FLER) e 1))
(R AR T E A
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Aspect Region Laws and regulations
FHE HE ERRER

Mainland China Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China

Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of Minors

Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Treatment of

Occupational Diseases

Regulation on Work Related Injury Insurances of the People’s Republic of China
Hh I A (rpaE N RICAN B 55 8) %)

(e N RN 55 ) 45 [ 12:)

CrpraE AR SLRD B At g R B k)

(N BRFERIE R AR PR )

(2 N RN 2 2 A A 1)

(e N RN B B VA 1)

e N R 2 A O i A £51)

Macau Law No. 8/2020 “Amendments to Law No. 7/2008 (Labour Relations Law)”
Worker’s Minimum Wage law (Law No. 5/2020)
Maternity Leave Pay Subsidy Measure (Administrative Regulation No.20/2020)
Law on Employment of Non-Resident Workers (Law No. 21/2009)

L 558/202095 5 H— (B 7/2008 5712 H (A5 B AR 1) )
535/20205% % H— (R B i RAK T &)
£520/202 095847 BOE H— CE B P B 4 it )
5521/20095% 1% H— I S fE B %)

Malaysia Children and Young Persons (Employment) Act 1966
Employment (Amendment) Act 2022
Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 (Amended 2022)
P.U.(A) 133/2021 — Income Tax (Deduction for Value of Benefit Given to
Employees) (Amendment) Rules 2021
B Ae vy e 19664F (5t B I F 4F (L3€) i%)
20224F (5 TIRERTH)
19914 (R B AR E%) (20224 &7T)
P.U.(A) 133/2021—20214F (Bt (FER {8 B AR A E (E) (ERT) KL

Singapore Employment Act
Employment Regulation
Workplace Safety and Health Act
Work Injury Compensation Act
ik (IR 5 2)
1R 4o e 1)
(LA 22 A A L 42)
(TR )
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Aspect Region Laws and regulations
FHE E SERRER
Thailand Labour Protection Act B.E. 2541 (1998) (Amendment B.E. 2562 (2019) and B.E.
2566 (2023))
ENE 19984F (55 B {R7#1%) B.E. 2541 (B.E.2562 (20194F) &B.E. 2566 (20234F) &3]
Products and Hong Kong Trade Descriptions Ordinance
Service Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance
Copyright Ordinance
Trade Marks Ordinance
Patents Ordinance
Controls of Exemption Clauses Ordinance
Sales of Goods Ordinance
h KRB i P ity ot B 491D
R N ERE (FLER) ok 1))
G 2 it 22 2 M fa)
R R A1)
CPIEERT)
CEFIRAT)
CE Tl S SR R A1)
(B dh & B

e
Eo

Mainland China Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China
Cyber Security Law of the People’s Republic of China 2016
National Standard of the People’s Republic of China-Information Security
Technology-Personal Information Security Specification 2020
Data Exit Security Assessment Measures 2022
Data Security Law of the People’s Republic of China 2021
Personal Information Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China 2021
o I 7 (rpraE N R ALANE 3 5 15D
(e N BRI it B %)
Crpre N RILFN B I 2 25 HE 25 PR i)
(i N RS A %)
(GiE YN T L3
201 6%4F (2 A FRALA B 4 4 2 220k
20204F CrhE N BRSLANE B0 Z AE HE— 1 8 28 i I8 M5 8 22 KD
20224 (B 5 % A R A IR
202148 2 A FRIEA B0 B 2 4 )
202148 (i A FRIEAN AR A5 B AR )
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Aspect Region Laws and regulations
Z| & EERER
Macau Personal Data Protection Law (Law No. 8/2005)
Consumer Rights and Interests Protection Law (Law No. 9/2021)
M £58/2005 95— (A ERHR )

559/202 19815 B — Gl B B LR PRFER)

Malaysia Personal Data Protection Act 2010

Consumer Protection (Amendment) Act 2019

Sale of Goods Act (Amendment and Extension) Act 1990
5y Ut 20104 (RN EDRHR 12 4)

20194 GHEFIRF#E) BIESR)

19904F (B M 8§ 85 1%) (IBIER TR

Singapore Personal Data Protection (Amendment) Act
Cybersecurity Act
Consumer Protection (Fair Trading) Act
Consumer Protection (Trading Description and Safety Requirements) Act
Sale of Goods Act
g (N ERHRAHEE IR L)
(R 2IR)
QHEFE R (V32 5) )
Qi # & R (505 B S 2 28R i)

(CBYIEE L)
Thailand Personal Data Protection Act B.E. 2562 (2019)
ZREH Consumer Protection Act B.E. 2522 (1979)

20194 (il NE R #15) B.E. 2562
19794F (G4 & & (77#15) B.E. 2522

Business Ethics  Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance
i By 1 FH At A A1)

CITERUL 88 KB oy T B 2 T e i)

Er

[EES:X:

|

¢l

Mainland China Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China
Tendering and Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China
Fh R A 3t (g N RN F st 8875)
(o2 N RN B f AN IE 3 )
(G PN NE ik
(e N R B R AR BAR )
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Aspect Region Laws and regulations
A & EERER
Macau The Commission Against Corruption of Macao
LA TP RREC A%
Malaysia Anti-Corruption Commission Act 2009
i 20094F (R ET5 )
Singapore Prevention of Corruption Act
Bk (HEBIRITIE)
Thailand Organic Act on Anti-Corruption B.E 2561. (2018)
ENCY 20184F B ALALIL) BE 2561,

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with environmental and social laws
and regulations. The Group will continue to review the laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
operations of the Group in different regions, as well as other
circumstances that may cause a material impact to the Group.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholders’ feedback and expectations form a solid foundation
for the Group’s formulation of sustainable development
strategies and contribute to the Group’s overall success. The
Group maintains a sound relationship with its stakeholders
and strives to identify how risks and opportunities could affect
its business development based on the stakeholders’ opinions.
Hence, the Group engages with its stakeholders through ongoing
communication and collects their opinions on the ESG aspects
that they consider applicable and significant.
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In formulating operational and ESG strategies, the Group

TP Tl S AL R ES GRS g > A% 42 [ 7 2 2 il 22 i

considers stakeholders’ expectations through a diverse range of T AR R E S AR R > ARSI AN
engagement methods and communication channels, as shown B
below:
Stakeholders Engagement Channels Expectations
FE SHERE
Employees o Regular performance appraisal Remuneration and benefits
o Training and workshops Equal opportunities
o Internal announcement Career development
Occupational health and safety
&8 o EHIRBIF eI b e A
o HEAIK AR e
. YA T e e
TS A R B2 4

Shareholders and investors

JBR R B E

Customers

wHE

Suppliers and business
partners

THEE e B S 9 1

Government and
regulatory authorities

HUR B

Annual general meeting
Financial reports
Announcements and circulars

J RO AR
S B o
i B

Customer service hotline and email
Company website

Customer satisfaction survey

&5 IR B e

AR

&5 R

Supplier conferences and meetings
Supplier performance evaluation

HE R B Sk
HEE e R B AT Al

Regular performance and supervision
and evaluation

Written or electronic correspondences
Government press release

SE R B I BB AT A
= T AR

U I A

Financial performance
Information transparency
Shareholder rights protection
Complaint operation

AR5 R

BRBWE

JC SRR AR

BeaiRlE

Customer privacy protection
High quality customer services
Business ethic and integrity

% F AL RE IR

R R iR

A SEAE 78 Sl

Supply chain management
Fair and open procurement
Mutual benefit

e 3

A UNEN

H [ A 42

Compliance with laws and regulations
Corporate governance
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Stakeholders Engagement Channels

Expectations

BtrE SERE e
Community . Community events . Community participation
o ESG Reports ] Corporate social responsibility
. Providing job opportunities
. Environmental protection
Zan o ALImIEE) o LB
o ESGH(H o REMERIT
o RfLHIEHE
o IREIfRE
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EERMIHE

The Group commissioned an independent sustainability
consultancy AMMO Group Corporate Services Limited to carry
out a materiality assessment in 2024, which aimed to identify
and evaluate the ESG issues that are most material to the Group
and its stakeholders, as well as to determine the coverage and
structure of the Report. A 3-step approach, as indicated below,
has been adopted to assess the materiality of ESG issues.

Identification: We identified and refined the list of sustainability
issues related to the Group’s economic, environmental, and
social impacts and performance based on industry research
and peer benchmarking. We grouped 16 ESG topics into 4 key
themes:

o Environment

J Employees

J Business Ethics and Quality Services
o Society

Prioritization: We engaged our stakeholders, including
employees, shareholders and investors, customers, suppliers,
and business partners, government and regulatory authorities,
and the community through online surveys on a regular basis.
Stakeholders ranked the ESG topics according to their perceived
importance to the Group on a scale of 1 to 6, with ‘1’ being not
important at all and ‘6" being very important. The ESG topics
were plotted in a matrix that shows their degree of importance
to stakeholders relative to the significance of their impact on the
Group’s business.
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Validation: We gathered qualitative feedback from our
stakeholder review panel to validate the ranked results. The
ESG Working Group, with the assistance of the independent
consultant, reviewed and approved the scope, topic boundaries,
and completeness of the prioritized material topics.

Materiality Matrix

Based on the results of the stakeholder questionnaire survey,
we have produced a materiality matrix that ranks sustainability
topics according to their importance to stakeholders (Y-axis) and
to Stelux (X-axis). Through a comprehensive assessment, we have
identified the top 5 sustainability topics, which are addressed
and disclosed in this report. These top 5 topics serve as the basis
for the Group to formulate its sustainable development strategy
and implement relevant action plans.

EERR e Ul e

Impact on Stakeholders

Impact on Business

BRER ¢ A Ry AR/ DAL E R - LA
B PR A 2L o ESG AT /INARLAE 28 S o 1 F) Tip B
T o A S v S R Y ] R RR

e e sk o

ERMEE

FAM B HE R 5 7 5 A 8 A ) A R R L R AR
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Business Ethics

Environment Employees and Quality Services Society

BRI (== BREREREBERY e

1. Emission Control 5. Diversity and Equal 9. Supply Chain Management16. Corporate Social
1. ez Opportunities 9. HbpEgmE R Responsibility

5. Zib e A-FHE

16. ¥ TEE

2. Use of Resources 6. Anti-child and 10. Protection of intellectual
2. EIRAH anti-forced labour property rights
6. ET K5 T 10. R ik 22 A

3. Waste Management 7. Occupational Health 11. Data Privacy and
3. JERYE and Safety Management Protection
7. BERSEMERRE e g B 11, BARALEE F AR e

4. Climate resilience 8. Development and 12. Product Safety
4. RIRHEERES Training 12, fh 4

8. HEREKEEHI

13. Product Quality and
Assurance
13. 7 iV & R AR

14. Customer Services

14. % F kW5

15. Business Ethics and

Anti-corruption
15. 3B TE R &5

The materiality matrix demonstrates a consistent view between
stakeholders and the management of the Group regarding the
top 5 material topics, indicating that topics of high concern
to stakeholders are also important to the Group. Compared to
last year, the topics of “Product Safety”, “Product Quality and
Assurance”, “Customer Services”, “Business Ethics and Anti-
corruption” and “Protection of Intellectual Property Rights” have
been added. In terms of ranking, Stelux and its stakeholders show
increasing attention to business ethics and quality services.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

HE R RR R o B A A B R
B EREN R LB BRI SRR
Ecitap o DINCIEES: S i) A 5
(A ~ [EMEE LR - [F PR
[ ST T S S T ) o TRl A 2 | 19 e
LRz XA TR I BV & RS-y O N RN i)
T8 R BRI S



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRiE - EREARABS

CLIMATE RESILIENCE AND ADAPTATION

Climate change presents significant challenges that affect
everyone worldwide. Taking prompt and active action in
response to the climate crisis is now a top priority. According
to the World Meteorological Organization, 2023 was recorded
as the warmest year, with the annual average temperature
being approximately 1.45°C above pre-industrial levels. This is
alarmingly close to the 1.5°C temperature limit set by the Paris
Agreement. Our Group recognizes the importance of identifying
and addressing major climate-related issues. We closely
monitor the potential impact of climate change on our business
operations and are dedicated to managing any climate-related
risks that could affect our activities.

Our ESG Working Group consistently oversees issues and risks
related to climate change, ensuring our strategies adequately
incorporate these essential considerations. Following the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures, established by the Financial Stability Board, and
the relevant guidelines of the SEHK. We are conducting risk
assessments that consider the complexity of our business and our
extensive geographic presence, which are particularly pertinent
to our Group.

FES K B B RAR

SR AL A PR R K 2Bk
N o FRUE B U A7 T 38 M S SR A A W B L B A
W2 s o RABH R R L AL E R - 20234F—FH
FOBE U IR Y —4F > AR R 4R T 26 L
K H#I1.45°C o EMER G EREM1.5°C
WLRE L BRAH 0T > 1WA AR o A SR VR 0
S e M S T SR v R B S R A o R AN
VI 1 SR S L S FRAMT A0 S5 48 8 A TR T R 2
S 35 3 8 FHATART A B FRAM 0 15 B S AR B AR
1A B RS o

ESG T /)N AL 5 A B B S0 538 A1 A Bl 25100 2
B o REOREAM A9 SRNS 7800 5 2 BRI R - K
P78 41 <6 P B3 A 22 BB B ) SRUIBE AT IR B 765 4
A /INAEL A S 7S s DA S B S BT AR B 5 - 3k
P IEAEAEAT JE B AT Al - 5 op 5 R A SE RS 2 18
A B B B T2 B M R A4 U R A SR R A
BEZEZHE -

Risk Type Potential Impact Stelux’s Strategy

=Nt BEE B R

Physical Risks

EERR

Typhoon J Reduced revenue due to business . Regularly assess the risk of natural
disruption, system suspension and disasters in every business location,
fall on footfall or traffic and formulate corresponding

emergency plans

it/ o FEBTE - ABEEAARES o EHIEHEAMESER HUERY B 2R SR
ST N TR £ TV R B o T il S AR ) R

Heavy rains J Adversely affects employees and
exacerbates the spread of various
climate-related health impacts
(e.g. health, safety, absenteeism)
resulting in reduced turnover and
increased costs

e} o HMEBEMAFEE  MAAE

SRR B f B S 2 (I ke ~ &
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Risk Type Potential Impact Stelux’s Strategy

=Nt BEXE B

Transition Risks

BRERE

Policy and legal J Increased needs to educate J Closely monitor policy and regulatory
employees developments in the regions with
of the regulatory requirements operations to ensure operational

J Increased compliance costs compliance

HOR Mk o HMERMETEESERFGRIE o HUIEIEACE R B BUR X EEE

o I > LIERASE SR

o HMEEISA

Technology J Investing in new technology or
upgrading existing packaging
material to less carbon-intensive
alternatives can require significant
upfront costs

Closely monitor the latest less carbon-
intensive alternatives

Ex 4l o HEMIMES B REMETIER o ) B OB RO B AR AR AR
Ry R SRRV T RET R
Market and Reputation J Failure to proactively take o Actively engage with stakeholders to

measures to address climate
change will affect ESG evaluation
and investors” willingness to invest

understand their expectations on key
sustainable development areas such as
climate change

EYE & o WORAEARHR BRICHS i e S Aok B o REMREELFROFE I > LT MEOE R B
fb - MR BESGRT Al KA & H 19 4% AT RRA B AR (AN SRR S A L) 1
STELUX’ SUSTAINABLE 2029 TARGETS H32029F WHERREAE

As a responsible company, the Group is dedicated to controlling VEB— & AR ZE » A B SR B
and reducing the negative effects on the environment. The BRI LAY B R R o FRAM YR B RS o AR
implementation of measures to prevent pollution, minimise syt > BRIV MM RN EE > W RE
energy and materials consumption and reduce waste at source W - AR~ B (3R) J S5 4L VE BE I
by “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle (3R)” initiatives. During the oo PRI > FRAMHE DA B T B UK
Reporting Period, we established the following objectives A ] R HAR AR B B S 2 oy A K B A £
to minimize the environmental impact of our Group and its AR > R FRA I B ) D R K 2
operations. Water reduction targets were not established as 0 HEHE o AB R M EREE R > AEE S EY
water is considered immaterial to our operations. To track our T LA T H AR -

environmental performance, the Group regularly reviews the

progress of these environmental goals.
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Focus Area 2029 Target (Compared to a FY2023/2024 baseline)
EXNES 2029 B 1% (822023/2024 81 B F B E S AL E)

GHG Emissions 2% reduction on GHG emissions intensity by 2029

i % SRR PR ik TE2029%F 5 2 il ¥l % S e P B2 %

Waste 2% reduction on Non-Hazardous Waste intensity by 2029
JEE ) FE2029%4F B il 8 3 B8 52 W BE LD 2%

Energy 2% reduction on Energy consumption intensity by 2029
AEYR FE20294F B 2 R AE IR AE 2 B30 2%

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As environmental pollution has become increasingly serious,
governments across the globe have established stricter
environmental laws. The Group strictly complies with relevant
laws and regulations related to the emissions of exhaust gases
and greenhouse gas (“GHG”), pollution discharge to water
and land, and the production of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any significant material non-compliance issues with laws and
regulations that may have a significant impact on the business
operations of the Group in different regions or are related to
environmental laws and regulations.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Air Emissions

The Group’s air emissions primarily originate from the exhaust
of motor vehicles owned by the Company. Even though these air
emissions are considered immaterial to the Group, we encourage
employees to reduce the usage of these motor vehicles. In
response to the above source, the following emission reduction
measures are actively adopted:

e Optimizing route planning;

e Conducting regular vehicle maintenance to ensure that the
vehicles operate at maximum efficiency;

J Using vehicles with low fuel consumption; and

J Requiring that idling engines be switched off.

RERE

BEZE BRSSO H AR B S BB 2R IR
BEIEAE o AR SR P e % R~ BB SR R i 5 SRR ([
) PRI~ K K PR OTS Ye W A R A
A T R YA B A R ROE R o IR R
[H] > A 82 I 510 A R0 2 A A e T S R A Sk BT
]R3 A B2 E S [R] [ P S5 A8 7 o i K
B BUHERPRIA T SOEKUA B Y e A A OH

REEHER
AR 1 B SR PR T A B AR R Y
PR BESR o A A B R A % S SR PR

PEAK > B S A B 9 1 % e Fh - 3
b B CIREE - FAM C AN SRECA R PR i -
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Types of Air Emissions Unit 2024
REEHEREA B 20245
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) tonnes 0.52
ALY (NOX) i 0.52
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) tonnes 0.001
AL (SOx) W 0.001
Particulate Matter (PM) tonnes 0.05
TRIF R T (PM) Wi 0.05
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Management BEREER

During the Reporting Period, the GHG emissions generated by
the Group were mainly the direct emissions from the Company’s
motor vehicles (“Scope 1”), the indirect emissions from electricity
use (“Scope 2”) and the disposal of paper (“Scope 3”). The
Group carried out measures to reduce the air and greenhouse
gas emissions. In response to the above source, the following
emission reduction measures are actively adopted:

Air Conditioning and Ventilation Systems

e After hours, deactivate air conditioning units in sections
that are unoccupied;

J Draw blinds or curtains to block direct sun rays and
minimize heat in the office during sunny periods; and

o Draw blinds or curtains at day’s end to reduce direct
sunlight and heat entering the workplace.

Computer Systems

o Encourage turning off computers, monitors, and printers
after work or during extended absences; and

J For printers that are rarely used, turn on only if needed.
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Lighting Systems

e Turn off most lights during lunch hour, except in reception
areas and corridors; and

e At night, switch off lights in unused sections and reduce
lighting in sparsely occupied areas, except for the front
desk and main corridors.

The Group will continue to evaluate, record, and disclose annual
greenhouse gas emissions, along with other environmental data,
to assess the effectiveness of current measures. This will facilitate
the formulation of future emission reduction targets.

SREARL

o FRIRE MR PR TR AR 5 A I R E R
BRAk 5 &

o I PH A [ R BRI o i N B D
[ IR - T B M EZERERSD -

A B AR AR T A~ OB B B A B U A SR P
i R[] EL A BRI R DA A A At ) A 2
P o SE A B R AR F B

Scope of GHG Emissions' Unit 2024
BERBHEREE Bfr 20245
Direct Emissions (Scope 1) tCO2e 171.94
HHEPE i EEE D MR AR 171.94
Energy Indirect Emissions (Scope 2) tCO2e 1,491.22
AE R T e DRk (1R 2) ME AR 1,491.22
Other Indirect Emissions (Scope 3) tCO2e 38.73
EL At ] e Pk (1A 3) WE A 38.73
Total GHG Emissions tCO2e 1,701.89
BERBHREE W_FRER 1,701.89
GHG Emissions Intensity? tCO2e/employee 2.06
BERBHFNEE M_E{RER ES 2.06
1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide 1. EREEPEBCEER T L A LRk R 28 HAR

equivalent and is based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards”
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, “Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by HKEX, “Global
Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Sixth Assessment
Report, 2021 (AR6), the “Notice on the Management of GHG
Emissions Reporting for Power Generation Sector from 2023 to
2025” published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
of the PRC, the “Sustainability Report 2023” published by CLP
Holdings Limited, the “CEM 2022 Sustainability Report’ published
by Companhia de Electricidade de Macau, the “Sustainability
Report 2023” published by Tenaga Nasiona, the “2022 Electricity
Grid Emission Factors and Upstream Fugitive Methane Emission
Factor” issued by the Energy Market Authority of Singapore, and
“Energy Policy and Planning Office (EPPO) 2023” issued by Thai
Government Ministry of Energy.

2. As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a total of 825 employees.
This data is also utilised for calculating other intensity metrics.

P AL HRAE AN PR A th A S R AT 5 T Lt AL el A o
B Mn GREREZEEAR - ¥
ST B A A )~ a2 T A 1) Rk ¢ BRI
P S KA A SR AR 5 1) ~ IR ] SR 00 8 L 1
Z2 B & (IPCC) 2021455 i 1955 75 YRRl A
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BRET T A 1 AU 2023 22025 F 85 17 2%
A 2 UL 3 SRS PR A B TR )
e R AT PR A B A Y <2023 4F AT 15 4 5 i
)~ MR S AR BR A R A (IR TE2022
AERFRAE B ) © Tenaga Nasiona#ffifty
2023 4F AT FRAEEE RS ) ~ Bn Ik Ae T 854
B R M 1 <2022 47 T 48 Pk il R O ik ik
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WASTE MANAGEMENT
Hazardous Waste

Due to the nature of its business, the Group did not generate
a significant amount of hazardous waste during the Reporting
Period. Any minimal hazardous waste produced mainly
consisted of inks from office printing operations and disposal of
light emitting diode (“LED”).

BERYERE

BERREY

TR IR - ASHR I PR SRS R Sl B AR R
BHFEEEY - EENBOEAFEEY LA
T 9 2 25 BRI S 7 A 10 i 8 B R B RO TR AY
(TLED]J) ©

Hazardous Waste Unit 2024
BEEEY B 2024
Ink cartridge pieces 67
W& 1R 67
Toner cartridge kg 25.91
et T 25.91
Light emitting diode (“LED”) pc 182
BOE T H A ([LEDJ) (i 182
Non-Hazardous Waste BEREY

The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group’s business
activities is mainly paper based. To reduce resource consumption
during daily operations, we have implemented the following
measures:

J Promoting meetings without the use of paper, as
demonstrated by our Company’s board meetings, which
are conducted paper-free;

J Encouraging the practice of duplex printing to save paper
when printing is necessary;

o Promoting the reuse of paper that has been printed on only
one side; and

e Centralising the ordering of office stationery, including
paper, letterheads, and name cards, to minimize waste and
improve monitoring and control.
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Non-Hazardous Waste Unit 2024
mEBERY B 20245
Paper tonnes 8.07
AR U 8.07
Non-Hazardous Waste Intensity tonnes/employee 0.01
BEBENETE W, EE 0.01
ENERGY CONSERVATION BRI REIR

The Group has established relevant policies and initiatives
on energy conservation to monitor and maximize its energy
efficiency. All employees are duly notified of the implementation
of these policies and measures. The Group currently has
numerous energy efficiency initiatives in place, including the
following:

Reuse of Store Fixtures and Fittings:

J Designed for reuse with a life expectancy of 5 to 7 years;

o Reuse percentage ranges between 80% to 90%;

° Mainly utilize natural materials like metal, wood, and
glass, which are easier to reuse and recycle, constituting
80% to 90% of store fixtures and fittings; and

o Implementation ensured by Standard Operating Procedures
(“SOPs”), strict Capital Expenditure (“CAPEX”) control, and
periodic internal audits.

Energy-Efficient Office Practices:

e Office equipment is turned off or set to power saving mode
after work hours;

J Air conditioning and lights are turned off when not in use;
lights are also switched off during lunch hour; and

o Daily or periodic checks by designated office security or
administration personnel.
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Travel and Meeting Policies: EMRERBE

e Written pre-approval required for all staff for air travel; and o FTA B T P A 22 R ZE M TE S T A

e s
. Encouragement of teleconferencing, video conferencing, ° o (56 R TR EE R~ SR U Sk
and virtual meeting tools such as Zoom, Microsoft Teams, T H (fliZoom ~ Microsoft Teams ~ l&&l
Tencent VooV, WhatsApp and WeChat to minimize travel. VooV * WhatsApp & f5) » 4% ¥ 2> 4b
i o
Types of Energy Unit 2024
BeREAR B 20244
Direct energy consumption
HiZRER
. Petrol MWh 123.11
o R JEFLIRE 123.11
o Diesel MWh 536.49
LI 3 JK B IR 536.49
Indirect energy consumption
R
. Electricity MWh 3,238.29
e EN JEFLIRE 3,238.29
Total Energy Consumption Mwh 3,897.89
BERURFERE KB 3,897.89
Energy Consumption Intensity MWh/employee 4.72
HRHERE KEREE 4.72
WATER RESOURCES CONSERVATION EI#IKE IR

The Group conducts its primary business activities within offices A AR ] 14 25 B SO B A RN R Sl AT -
and stores. A significant portion of our water usage costs is FAM KA ) — R R0 AL 4 A - A 4
covered by the rental fees, which only account for a fraction of B AEFE K TR —/INER2) o TEAS S B A8 48 T 7E 3 [
the total water consumption. The Group’s operations are situated SRIBCE 78 7K U8 7 T I 40 R PR o AR B At - R
in regions where there is no significant issue with accessing AT B 5% 3 el D VR B KR o 5 e fE S R R K
water suitable for use. Despite this, we actively strive to reduce ] T T A TAES BRI A B S K A 80R
water wastage. To promote water-saving practices among our 4 o

employees, we have placed educational posters about water

conservation throughout our workplaces.
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Indicators Unit 2024
BE By 202445
Water consumption m? 1,815.14
ok STHK 1,815.14
Water Consumption intensity m?/employee 2.20
FABE NFEKRE 2.20

Sewage Discharge

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, water consumption
is minimal. Moreover, water supply and discharge facilities are
predominantly managed by the property management team.
Consequently, our business activities do not generate a material
amount of water discharges.

USE OF PACKAGING MATERIAL

In the Group’s daily business operations, the use of packaging
materials is essential for watches packaging, as well as for
promotional and advertising purposes. Our dedication to
delivering the finest watches is matched only by our unwavering
commitment to sustainability and environmental stewardship.
Therefore, we place a strong emphasis on the responsible use of
packaging materials across all aspects of our daily operations,
including sales, promotions, and product dispatch.

T5IKBERR

R ASSE I 9 SE B AR B R K B AR D
BEAh > K B Pl K Bt T 2 p 4y 36 4 2 I B
B o R - FRAM Y 365 TE B AN & AR KRR TS5K
Priic -

ERafMR

TEASE B FOW SR A8 rp o (B4R R it
i ER AL DL R S TR 2 B T - ML
DI ZAT NG TS EE > [ RF B GE B8 M B8 W]
AREE R MR B o UL > RAMAE B R
A D5 T (RLAE S fEs R ) - EWERA
AT AL o

Types of Packaging Material Unit 2024
BEMEER By 20245
Boxes tonnes 42.87
'®T MR 42.87
Bags tonnes 5.44
FesE i 5.44
Tags and Cards tonnes 1.32
RS R Ui 1.32
Others tonnes 0.53
Hofth W] 0.53
Total Packaging Material tonnes 50.16
BEMERE L] 50.16
Packaging Material intensity tonnes/employee 0.06
BEMRBRE W, ES 0.06
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
Talent Attraction and Retention

Our employees are one of the Group’s most valuable assets,
and fostering harmonious employment relationships is a vital
foundation for the Group’s stable and forward progression. In
recognition of this commitment to fairness, we have established
an “Employee Handbook” coupled with comprehensive
remuneration frameworks and benefits policies to ensure that
all our staff members receive fair and equitable treatment. We
comply with all relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdictions
in which we operate.

Diversity, Anti-discrimination and Inclusion

The Group is firmly committed to an equal opportunity
employment policy. We ensure a non-discriminatory approach
toward all job applicants and employees, disregarding gender,
age, disabilities, ethnicity, race, religion, national origin, sexual
orientation, and gender identity. Discrimination and bias have
no place in our recruitment practices or work environment.
Only job-relevant qualifications, performance, experience,
and competencies are considered for hiring and promotions,
with personal circumstances such as marital status or health
conditions having no bearing. We hire and promote individuals
aligned with our values and work ethics, particularly those
showing initiative, responsibility and integrity.

We prioritize our employees’ work-life balance as it contributes
significantly to their well-being. Our efforts to provide a positive
working environment include a discrimination- and harassment-
free workplace, equitable opportunities for all staff members,
and competitive salary packages. Our remuneration and benefits
policies adhere strictly to legal standards and are in line with
current industry trends, reflecting an individual’s experience
and qualifications. Additionally, for certain roles, we implement
performance bonuses and commission structures to reward and
motivate our employees.

Fair Labour Practices and Employee Benefits

The Group takes care of its staff’s future with retirement benefits
and employee insurance, governed by regional requirements.
Furthermore, we offer an Educational Assistance Program for
employees who have served more than two years to enhance
their skills and capabilities, as well as medical benefits for all our
employees.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any ARSI > A5 NI AS R 2R A ] e o 2 S A g
material non-compliance with employment-related laws and AR RV T B BT m] R A 42 1 70 S 7] 3l [ 7r) 2
regulation that would have a significant impact on the business W5 K08 G R TS L

operations of the Group in different regions.

As at 31 March 2024, total employees of the Group was 825. 202443 A31H - AREFE BB BZ825 A -
The number of employees by gender, employment type, age FRVER ~ IR - A A A Kt e ) 23 ) 4R B
group and geographical region are as follow: N -
Total workforce by gender Total workforce by employment type
BURED NEEEE BEERLEDNESHEH
600 900
508 800 773
500
- w 700
o o
g 40 z 60
g5 317 £ 500
@ < 300 o <
S I, S 400
2" 20 2% 50
5 5
Z 100 Z 200
100 53
0 0
Male Female Full-time Staff Part-time Staff
2 z ERET RBET
Total workforce by age group Total workforce by geographical region
BRERAEDNEDNESHEE RitREDHNESHEE
400 600
350 500
@” 307 @
& 300 g 408 417
z 260 & 4
§-§ > %ﬁ 300
v v
s 2% 168 S I
2 # 150 2 # 200
5 100 79 5
z Z 00
50 i
0 0
18-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >=65 Greater China Rest of Asia
18-345%  35-443% 45-54%  55-64%  >=65i% KPEE SNEAE

B () A RA A
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The total turnover rate of the Group’s employees in Reporting RS ] - A G FR B BRI R LR S532%
Period is 32%?. The turnover rate by gender, age group and FEMER ~ A 1% 4H 1 B b I 353 ) R LU R AR
geographical region are as follows*:

Employee turnover rate by gender Employee turnover rate by age group
BHRIEID HIEER AL R RERAERZ D NEERALLE
50% 60%
45% 54%
40% 36% 50%
35%
30% 29% 40%
25% 30% 27%
20% 22% 20%
15% 20%
13%
10%
500 10 o .
0% 0%
Male Female 18-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >=65
] % 18-3455% 35-445%  45-545% 55-645  >=655%

Employee turnover rate by geographical region

BB WESRKLLR

40%
35% 349
30% 30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

Greater China Rest of Asia

RHERE DMEMEE
3. “Total Turnover Rate” refers to the ratio of the total number of 3. [ AL L3R 5 % S0 [ AR B A SR
employees who left the company during the Reporting Period to R AR B AR e o

the total number of employees at the end of the Reporting Period.

4. “Turnover Rate for each specific category” refers to the ratio of the 4. A5 BN A I 2 He 3 )R 0Tt 400 0 e R o e 5
total number of employees who left a specific category during the ST 14 AR 58 A SRR 7 S 25 30 T A R T ) f 5L A R
Reporting Period to the total number of employees in that category H L o
at the end of the Reporting Period.
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EMPLOYEES HEALTH AND SAFETY

Ensuring the health and safety of our employees is a top priority
for us. We are committed to maintaining a workplace where
safety is paramount, and we do this by providing a secure
environment and regularly updating our staff with important
safety information.

The Group has implemented “Security Policies” that outline
workplace safety procedures. These policies and their respective
instructions are accessible to all employees via the intranet. The
target audience for these policies includes drivers, warehousing
employee, office staff who frequently move between locations,
retail employees, and electricians. We have adopted the
following measures:

J Employees are provided with individual workstations and
necessary equipment to perform their duties safely and
efficiently;

. Our facilities are smoke-free, well-lit, ventilated, and
regularly cleaned, with clear aisles and access to first aid
and fire safety equipment;

J Regular maintenance is performed on office furniture and
equipment;

o Security measures are implemented to control access to our
premises, and we adhere to government safety guidelines;
and

J Staff wellbeing is supported through initiatives like free
annual flu vaccinations and regular health check-ups for
eligible employees.

Over the past two years, we have maintained a safety record.
During the Reporting Period, there was an instance where a
salesperson sustained an injury to their left knee after a fall
while working outdoors, leading to an eight-day absence from
their duties. Other than this, there have been no work-related
fatalities in the past three years, including the Reporting Period.
Furthermore, during the Reporting Period, our company did not
face any claims related to significant accidents that involved
personal injuries, fatalities, or property damage, nor did we
experience any events that adversely affected our business
operations, financial health, or operational results.

TR M B 110 f B B 22 2 JAM 19 1 AL » A
BUIHEE L2 ER ARG - fy 3R 4e
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HREEM o

ALE B2 R BUOR o R BOR ML T AR5 B i %
BRESF o R B 2T A A A A B % A R

FARBARI sz 5 BORK B R g alik - A
fiff i B~ K8 AE AR B 2 R B A E B

T ZHEEELEL - TS HRWLLT 157 -

o iR B ERAEAE N AR S Kb A o LA
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o PR fﬂTLﬁ%“%%%A
£ I ERSY ﬂfﬁi&ﬂ

o WAL A EARIE B SR B O M E
WEAT SR AR A > J B T R S 1 5

o

R AR - AN REMERR 2 AT Bk o WG

> — 8B NBTEF AN TARRRRRAE > 22
5 o EECLEE K o BRICLASE - % =4 (R

115 $ J03 TA) N7 90 % A AT o] T A% Bodm Sl o it
B > TR TR > A ) S 2 v A AT S N
BE - SE E R R F R - IR
RERAT AT AN R SEBS AL ~ A R A 36
RS FISS B A -

B () A RA A
2024 AR

198



199

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRiE - HEREARABS

Health and safety Unit 2022 2023 2024
RERZE B 20224 20234 20245
Work-related fatalities Cases 0 0 0
TAGE A o 0 0 0
Work injuries Cases 0 0 1
T o 0 0 1
Days lost to work injuries Days 0 0 8
BECIIEVSN K 0 0 8

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
health and safety-related laws and regulations in our business
region that would have a significant impact on the Group during
the Reporting Period.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Our customers value the personal touch we offer during their
shopping experience. Recognizing the link between high service
standards and well-trained employees, we put strong emphasis
on staff development and training. With a comprehensive
development plan in place, we aim to equip our staff with the
necessary skills to excel in delivering top-notch service.

We promote continuous learning through a variety of courses
that enhance not only job-related abilities but also personal
growth. Our training programs cover financial literacy, HR
management, data privacy, safety, operations, product insights,
sales strategies, interpersonal skills, and technology proficiency.

To optimize the impact of our training, we’ve implemented
a Development and Training Policy for oversight and
management. The on-the-job training is tailored to individual
roles and employees’ unique strengths, offering opportunities for
comprehensive growth. The Group is committed to employee
growth through a detailed training program as below:

J Regular and specialized training for all in-store staff to
address current needs;

. Detailed induction and orientation for new hires to establish
a solid foundation;
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o Training includes product knowledge, customer service,
effective sales techniques, and legal updates, drawing from
internal and external resources; and

J Post-training evaluations to assess effectiveness and
monitor employee development.

During the Reporting Period, 36.1%" of the Group’s employees
received training and the average training hours per employee
is 5.6° hours. The breakdown of staff members received training
and average training hours completed per employee are as

o FIHAHES K AN E IR ELHEE > A
FE i A~ P RE AR B T B
L HERLE © &

o IEAIRERAL o DLEEAS ORI B A R B R
J#2 o

R > AR EE B H36.1% 2211 &
T4 B 913 Bl e B2y 5. 0 /N RFe o %2
Bl B TR 4544 R B 58 B -3 B e ) B 4
e

follows:
Average Training
Breakdown of Hours per Employee®
Employee Trained” BEEEN
EiEHlES B FIgE IR B
(a) by Employee Level (@ RESER
Senior Management o AR B 1.4% 1.3
Middle Management AR G 22.8% 10.9
Supervisor T 19.1% 7.5
General Employee T g 5 56.7% 2.9
(b) by Employee Category (b) ZEEER!
Office Staff MAEHT 31.2% 4.5
Shop Staff JEEF R T 68.8% 6.0
(c) by Gender (c) 1R
Male T 40.9% 5.0
Female Lotk 59.1% 6.0
5. “Total percentage of employees trained” refers to the ratio of the 5. [CHIE B #7950 b 4R ORIl B

total number of employees trained during the Reporting Year to
the total number of employees at the end of the Reporting Period.

6. “Average training hours” refers to the ratio of the total training
hours for employees during the Reporting Year to the total number
of employees who participated in training during the Reporting
Period.

7. “Breakdown of employees trained” refers to the ratio of the
total number of employees in a specific category trained during
the Reporting Period to the total number of employees who
participated in training during the Reporting Period.

8. “Average Training Hours for each specific category” refers to the
ratio of the total training hours of employees in a specific category
during the Reporting Period to the average number of employees
in that category who participated in training during the Reporting
Period.

AR B HOR RO (8 B AR H o

6. [PPIEE IR 18 R A R B A8 Al R
SR H 1 TR 2 B ) 0 I 5 A Lo o

7. TR E DTN 36 10 B s R
P 1 4 BB 22 BB I i B
H% -

8. [ IRERIIE B -T2 35 R 48 T H J0 )
6 AU ) ATE 53 A0 3 1 I S B o 5 0 ) 22 B
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LABOR STANDARDS

The Group adopts a merit-based approach, valuing employee
competence to build an efficient team. We have clear staff
policies and management controls that ensure a fair workplace
with equal opportunities, prevention of sexual harassment,
prohibition of child and forced labor, grievance mechanisms,
anti-corruption measures and personal data confidentiality
protection.

HR departments must comply with national and local labor
laws, and we have regular compliance checks with HR heads.
To prevent child and forced labor, candidates must provide valid
identity documents, and we’ve employed no underage workers.
Any violations lead to immediate investigation and termination
of contracts.

Our “Employee Handbook” outlines working hours and
overtime policies to inform employees of their rights. The HR
Department reviews attendance records routinely and takes swift
action, including dismissal and legal reporting, on forced labor
incidents.

The Group strictly forbids child and forced labor among suppliers
and, during the reporting period, has seen no significant non-
compliance in our business regions. We avoid suppliers with
records of child or forced labor and regularly assess our measures
for continued effectiveness.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
The Group is committed to producing its house brand products

by collaborating with suppliers who uphold our values of
conducting business in a fair, honest, and responsible manner.
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Responsible Procurement

As part of our partnership criteria, we meticulously assess and
audit potential and existing suppliers based on a stringent set of
guidelines designed to evaluate everything from compliance with
international and local standards like RoHS, REACH, and CE, to
management support systems such as ISO and ERP. Additionally,
our evaluations consider factory conditions including size,
cleanliness, and safety features, environmental practices
regarding waste treatment and certification, and employee
welfare aspects like accommodation and compliance with
local labor laws. Any supplier failing to meet these standards
is either not selected or not renewed upon contract expiration,
emphasizing that these agreements are time-sensitive and
contingent upon satisfactory audit outcomes. Relevant policies
are reviewed at least annually to ensure their effectiveness.
During the Reporting Period, we have a total of 81 suppliers, as
detailed below:

BEENRE

VER B VERRIER —30 0 TRAMER T =25 A 2 5
5 RoHS ~ REACH K CE4F B [ K b 7 (23 > D)
J1SO K ERPEE 4 B 2 1Rl R M sl wt 1) — & Ak 35
Sl AT AN FEAL R s Ve AL R R S B A R - U
Ah > FRAM I FEAL B 25 R R A (B G BLA ~ h
R T AR EE) ~ BRI IR B L SRR T 1 B
PRAEA] > DL KR BAR A (i 1 S 28 <7 by 25 )
B2) o WAT AR L IRE P oK RERE B R S A > HIR@r
M e S RBIE AR TR o R RFIE PR R% S
o o B8 I PR BB > LR R S A 4 110 25 &
o MBHBUE B D ER A —IK > DR HA S
T o IR o R A 81 R ALRER > FEE
T

2024
Supply Chain by geographical region R EE o K e 20245
Greater China K [ 38
Rest of Asia B At 3 [a6 35
Others HoAth 8
Total et 81

The Group commitment to ethical practices extends to ensuring
our suppliers refrain from employing bonded or underage labor
and avoid using toxic materials in their products. We also
encourage our suppliers to align with our ethical framework by
adopting Standards of Engagement, which are integral to their
contracts with us. These standards underscore the importance
of freedom from forced labor, equality in employment without
discrimination, fair compensation, safe and healthy working
conditions, embracing sustainability in business decisions, and
fostering community involvement. The Group gives priority to
environmentally preferable product. Taking transportation cost,
environmental risks, social risks, raw material quality, and other
relevant factors into consideration, the Group chooses local
suppliers and selects the nearest suppliers as well as appropriate
transportation means to minimize associated carbon emissions.
Through these rigorous practices, the Group strives to maintain
its reputation for integrity and responsibility in every aspect of
our business operations.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

As a provider of high-quality products and services, we are
deeply committed to our responsibilities regarding what we
deliver. Ensuring customer safety is our top priority, and we
diligently monitor our quality control and assurance processes.
We strictly avoid any false advertising or labeling. Our products
typically include warranties, with clear warranty and exchange
policies stated on sales memos. We have standard operating
procedures (SOPs) for after-sales service, warranties, and product
exchanges. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with any laws and
regulations about the quality of products and services provided
that would have a significant impact on the business operations
of the Group in different regions.

Ensuring the Quality of Services

During the Reporting Period, our Customer Services department
recorded an average of approximately 2.2 complaints per month,
a year-over-year decrease of around 48%. In FY2023/24, we
successfully resolved nearly 100% of inquiries and complaints
within this timeframe.

e Customers are encouraged to share their feedback on our
products and services through various channels such as
service hotlines, letters, emails and social media;

e We are committed to addressing customer complaints
within three working days, following our standard
complaint handling procedures; and

o Our standard resolution process includes reviewing
product quality, customer service, and product repairs.
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Ensuring the Quality of Product

Our Quality Control Department is responsible for quality
control and assurance of our house brand products. A quality
assurance system and procedures are in place and these are
continually monitored and updated. In FY2023/24, none of our
sold or shipped products were subject to recalls due to safety or
health concerns. Our quality assurance system and procedures
include:

J Setting key performance indicators with clear inspection
guidelines and procedures for quality management, for
example, instructions for inspection of components,
reliability tests and procedures for water resistance; and

o Preparing inspection quality reports, reports on reliability
tests, statistical monthly quality reports and attending
monthly supplier meetings to ensure consistent follow-up
on improvement or corrective actions.

Recall procedures for our house brand products:

e Customer Services are responsible for monitoring customer
satisfaction levels by collecting customer comments and
analysing defective product return rates;

o Customer feedback on product quality and repair service
requests are recorded in our after sales service return and
repair job management system;

e Customer Services monitors the monthly defective product
return rate, analyses the results and regularly reports to our
Product Development and Quality Control Departments
and other relevant departments for possible product
problems or potential quality risks;

e  When defective products are found, the Product
Development and Quality Control Departments, Customer
Services and other relevant departments promptly
investigate, to find the possible causes of product
defects, discuss the solutions and identify any necessary
improvements in product development; and

J To evaluate and determine whether it is necessary to recall
the products and take any corrective actions. If products
are to be recalled, we will notify customers and offer either
a return or exchange of the products.
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Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

We protect and manage our intellectual property rights through
registration, maintenance, monitoring, and enforcement. An
external watching service, along with our local offices, conducts
the monitoring. Copyrights for designs of our house brand
products are systematically stored and, where applicable,
registered for protection. We respect third-party intellectual
property rights and avoid using them without authorization.
Before adopting potential brands or sub-brands, we perform
trademark searches to ensure availability and prevent
infringement of third-party rights. During the Reporting Period,
the Group obtained 770 trademarks.

Customer Information Protection

Consumer protection data policies and SOPs are established to
ensure compliance with applicable laws. Our PIC statements
detail our policies and practices regarding consumer data,
explaining the definition of personal data, as well as the
principles of its collection, use, retention, and disposal according
to local privacy laws. We ask consumers to review the PIC
statement and consent to the collection and use of their personal
data. Annual audits are carried out to ensure compliance.

The Group prioritises the confidentiality and proper handling
of consumer personal data. Employees found breaching these
policies or related guidelines may be subject to disciplinary
action. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive
any complaint about leakage of customer data.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has established anti-corruption policies in our
Employee Handbooks and Operations Manuals according to
applicable local laws and there are established internal controls
and systems to prevent or minimise the occurrence of bribery,
extortion and fraud. Integrity is one of the core principles which
underpins the way we conduct our businesses. Top management
sets the tone and all employees are expected to discharge their
duties with integrity and to comply with our policies and the
relevant local laws. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not observe nor receive any legal cases regarding corrupt
practices, bribery, conflicts of interest, extortion, fraud, money
laundering brought against the Group or its employees. The
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with any
laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering that would have a significant impact on the
business operations of the Group in different regions.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group has implemented an effective Whistle-blowing Policy
for reporting fraud and corruption with clearly stated reporting
procedures set out in Employee Handbook and the Group
intranet. We encourage the reporting of suspected business
irregularities and provide clear channels specifically for this
purpose. When suspected wrongdoings are identified, such as
breach of duty, abuse of power, receiving bribes, staff should
report to the Group for investigation and verification. The Group
will carry out investigation on the reported case and report to the
regulator and/or to law enforcement authority when necessary.
The Group is determined to protect whistle-blowers against
retaliation for reporting incidents in good faith. The Group will
also ensure the confidentiality of the identity of whistle-blowers.
Related measures will be reviewed regularly by the Group to
ensure their effectiveness.

The Group provides annual anti-corruption training to directors
and staff, referencing the local Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
and Anti-Money Laundering Laws. During the Reporting Period,
31 employees in Hong Kong completed a total of 62 training
hours on anti-corruption, while in Malaysia, 41 employees
completed 20.5 hours.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to enhancing its community relations,
believing firmly that success stems from supporting local
communities. This includes aiding vulnerable groups, engaging
in volunteer efforts, and backing charitable causes. During
the Reporting Period, we proudly contributed HK$192,500 in
donations to various organizations such as Oxfam (Hong Kong &
Macau), UNICEF, and Hong Chi Association, among others, and
dedicated 11.5 hours to volunteer work.
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In recognition of our continuous efforts, we’ve consistently
earned the Caring Company Logo from the Hong Kong Council
of Social Service over the years. For Stelux Holdings International
Limited, we have earned the Caring Company Logo for over 20
years while for the subsidiaries, City Chain Company Limited
and Thong Sia Watch Company Limited, we have earned such
logo for over 15 years. These recognitions underscore our
commitment to enriching lives and stands as a beacon of our
values in action.

Through community engagement, the Group aims to:

o show love, to give hope and to support the disadvantaged;
e encourage compassion and empathy in our employees;

e foster a sense of community within Stelux; and

o empower through education.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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With the above objectives in mind, we engage with those within
our communities with specific emphasis on:

o the elderly poor;

. the homeless;

J poor immigrant families; and

e children and youth

to provide them with:

o basic sustenance and daily necessities

e social interaction and integration with the wider
community; and

*  education
Our policies on giving are:

e to partner reliable registered charities. Partnerships are
reviewed annually;

o to adopt a “no frills” approach to maximise each dollar
donated;

e employee volunteering during work hours are capped at
6 hours per employee for each financial year. There is no
cap outside of work hours;

e activities and giving focus on target groups and their
identified needs; and

J receipts must be issued by a charity for the donations with
a breakdown of costs, where applicable.

Periodic appraisal meetings are held with the charities we
support to understand specific needs and to ensure contributions
are appropriately disbursed.
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BRAND OF THE YEAR AWARD FEREALE

City Chain was awarded with the “Brand of the Year” award Ry [ JBIG 7 T L B R i 8 e ) 9 o R K B8 v 4
(under the national brand for the “watches” category) in the B4R B S R & o 1H 5 s 1 A — (i A Bk Tk
World Branding Awards organized by the World Branding JERFIALR > B At [ R 2 3 0 A 5
Forum, a global non-profit organization dedicated to advancing PR pATE e o

branding standards for the good of the branding community as

well as consumers.

( ~ WORLD
; BRANDING
o AWARDS

FOLLOWING A RIGORQU:
EVALUATION AND JUDGI

CITY CHAIN

HAS BEEN AWARDED

BRAND OF THE YEAR
2023-2024
'WATCH RETAILER
HONG KONG

PRESENTED AT

KENSINGTON PALACE, LONDON
7 DECEMBER 2023

RICHARD ROWLES
CHARMAN
WORLD BRANDING FORUM
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to improve transparency and
protect the interests of shareholders in general. The Board
of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
making sure that effective self-regulatory practices exist to
protect the interests of its shareholders. These include a
Board comprising experienced and high calibre members,
board committees, and effective and sound systems of risk
management and internal controls.

This section describes the Company’s corporate
governance practices with specific reference to the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 of
the Listing Rules. During the financial year ended 31 March
2024, the Company complied with the provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code except for certain deviations.
These deviations with considered reasons are set out in this
Report.

DIRECTORS” AND EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in
Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has also made specific enquiry of all its
directors to ascertain whether they have complied with
or whether there has been any non-compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code.

In addition, the Board has established written guidelines
on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for relevant
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) in respect of these employees’ dealings in the
securities of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising its
affairs. Every director is expected to discharge his or her
duties in good faith and up to the standard of prevailing
applicable laws and regulations, acting objectively in the
best interests of the Group.

Proposals for appointments to the Board are based on the
Company’s board diversity and nomination policies.

The Board currently comprises of 6 members; three
executive directors and three independent non-executive
directors (with one female executive director and one
female independent non-executive director).

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
(“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Under the current organisation
structure of the Group, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is the
Chairman and CEO of the Group. The Board believes that
with Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong acting as both Chairman and
CEO ensures consistent leadership and further enables
better strategic planning for the Group. The Board also
believes that the non-separation of roles does not affect the
balance of power and authority within the Board.

The non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors are highly experienced individuals with a broad
range of expertise and experience including in areas such as
accounting, tax, law, risk management and compliance in
banks and financial technology. Together, they ensure that
the Board maintains high standards of financial accounting
and other mandatory reporting; providing adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders in
general and the Group as a whole.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has in place effective mechanisms to
ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board. The Board conducts a review on such mechanisms
annually and is of the view that the mechanisms have been
properly implemented and are effective. In particular, the
Company plans Board and Board committees meeting
schedules well in advance and provides remote facilities
for attendance, so as to facilitate active attendance and
participation in the meetings. Board members, especially
independent non-executive Directors, are welcome
and are encouraged to raise enquiries, suggestions and
views during the meetings. The Board process as stated
above, including agenda setting and provision of meeting
information, facilitates effective and active participation by
all Directors.

To assist the directors to discharge their duties, there are
established written procedures to enable the directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

The term of office of the Company’s non-executive
directors, including the independent non-executive
directors, is 3 years, subject to retirement by rotation
(pursuant to Bye-law 110(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws),
whichever is the earlier.

Under Code Provision B.2.2, every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Not
all directors of the Company retire strictly under Code
Provision B.2.2. The Company’s Bye-Laws 110(A) stipulates
that, one-third of the directors of the Company who have
been longest serving in office since their last election,
except the Chairman or CEO and the Vice Chairman,
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting (“AGM”).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Both the Board and management have clearly defined
roles and responsibilities. The Board is ultimately
responsible for establishing the overall long term strategic
direction and objectives of the Group, monitoring the
performance of senior management and oversees corporate
governance and risk management and internal control
systems. Management is responsible for formulating and,
implementing operational and business strategies and
plans to achieve the Group’s strategic direction. Directors
have access to management for enquiries, explanations,
briefings or informal discussions on the Group’s operations
and businesses.

The Board held a total of eight board meetings and passed
circular resolutions during the financial year ended 31
March 2024 and up to the date of this Report. At the board
meetings, different issues and matters were discussed and
reviewed including, approval of the Group’s FY2023/24
interim results and FY2023/24 final results; reviewing
financial and operating performances of the Group;
approval of new and/or renewals of borrowing facilities;
annual review of continuing connected transactions;
conducting an annual review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal controls of the Company and its
subsidiaries, reviewing risk management framework,
identifying top risks and corresponding mitigation actions
and evaluating and prioritising ESG related issues. Details
of the directors’ attendance at the board meetings during
the financial year and up to the date of this Report are set
out below. All businesses transacted at the board meetings
are well documented and records are maintained in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
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Total no. of No. of Directors

Directors present

Date of board meeting ExgeRETAY ESBA" HEESAR
27 April 2023 2023445270 6 6
27 June 2023 202346127H 6 6
23 November 2023 2023411 H23H 6 6
8 December 2023 202341218H 6 6
11 January 2024 202441 H11H 6 5
19 March 2024 202443 H19H 6 4
25 April 2024 20244F4525H 6 6
25 June 2024 202446 H25H 6 6
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3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 3. EZE@
No. of board meetings
attended/held during the
financial year ended
31 March 2024 and up
to the date of this Report
REZE20245
3A31ALLMBFER
Director BEEAHERBLE
= BHCESZSSEHE
Executive Directors THRES
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman and RIS 4/6
Chief Executive Officer) (CEME R AT B
Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas BB SR SE A (R T AT B o) 5/6
(Vice Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chief Financial Officer) BHi5ER5E4 (B i WA B 80 3/3
(resigned on 24 November 2023) (42023411 724 H BHE)
Ms. Kelly Liao Ching Mei (Chief Financial Officer) B {4+ (% i P15 484%) 3/3
(appointed from 24 November 2023) (7A20234E11 H24 HH#EZRAT)
Non-executive Directors FITHES
Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin (independent) (o] BB S A (g r) 6/6
Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming (independent) RIS () 6/6
Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling (independent) SR ¥ At () 6/6
During the financial year, the Company held its AGM A A B > AR R 20234F8 /1 29 H 42
on 29 August 2023 and a Special General Meeting on TP IR A K K 202442 H 20 H 8447 %
20 February 2024. No other general meetings were SRR G o JA AR B AR AR fi AT HL At
held during the financial year. Details of the directors’ JBHR KB o BRI AR R SRR
attendance at the AGM and Special General Meeting are FERIR & 2 FEE IR
set out below:
29 August 2023 2023 8H29H
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong BRI e
Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas B IRSEAE
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin BRR B AE
Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin T B S
Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming Bk
Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling R
20 February 2024 202452H20R
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong wAE A
Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas R R SEA
Ms. Kelly Liao Ching Mei Bkt
Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin (HES ¢3S
Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming Bt
Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling AT At
The Group’s auditor was present at the AGM and Special A B2 ] A R T L G SR AR K 8 B IR
General Meeting. FehlREr o
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board is supplied with relevant information by
management pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to internal
controls, risk management or financial performance of the
Group before each regular board meeting. At least 14 day’s
notice of a regular board meeting is given to all directors
giving them the opportunity to attend. Board papers are
despatched to directors generally at least 3 days before
the meeting and in any event as soon as practicable, in all
instances, ensuring that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and are adequately prepared for the meeting.
At the time when papers are sent to the directors, they are
requested to contact the Company Secretary or the Group
CFO, where applicable should they have any questions.

The proceedings of board meetings are generally conducted
by the Chairman of the Company who ensures that
sufficient time is allocated for discussion and consideration
of items on the agenda and also ample opportunities are
given to directors to speak, express their views and share
their concerns. The Chairman values insightful and strategic
advice from other directors and further promotes a culture
conducive to the exchange of constructive communication
within the Board. The Chairman held a meeting on 25
April 2024 with the independent non-executive directors
without the presence of other directors.

Under Code Provision C.1.4, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. As such
the directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development. Courses have been regularly
circulated to directors for their selection and materials are
circulated for their reading. E-training on the website of the
HKEX was also made available to the directors.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 3. EBEg@
Summary of Directors’ training records for the year is set FENEF RIS SRS R
out below:
Director Training Areas (note)
= 355 50 (My=E)
Mr Joseph C.C. Wong A EA a
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (LR RATECAEFE)
Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas B H R E A b
(Vice Chairman) (& %)
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin B AR B ab
(Chief Financial Officer) (B B 4
(resigned on 24 November 2023) (72023411724 H GHF)
Ms. Kelly Liao Ching Mei Bt ab
(Chief Financial Officer) (B RIS 3 )
(appointed from 24 November 2023) (742023411124 H H#EZ(F)
Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin (independent) (A A () a,b
Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming (independent) B S ()
Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling (independent) SRAT ¥ A () 7)
Note: Bt
a Attending courses/seminars relevant to the business or a H R B 5 BT TR T sl T N AR A Y
directors' duties or professional knowledge AR/ 6
b Reading materials relating to technical knowledge in b BV 55 s T 1 TR 14 i R s A o] kg B AR
finance or law or relevant to the Company's business N SES A B B R R R

B () A RA A
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms that it has received from each
of its independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

BOARD DIVERSITY
(1) Board Diversity Policy

*  We believe that board appointments should
first and foremost be based on merit

J We embrace diversity by being inclusive and
support gender, ethnic, cultural, generational
and geographical diversity, amongst others

J We believe that an optimal and balanced
board should comprise of both male and
female members with an appropriate balance
of different skills, educational and industry
background, experience, knowledge and
independence

(2) Objective and Benefits of Board Diversity

We believe in diversity and inclusiveness as these
bring to the boardroom a spectrum of perspectives
and opinions, necessary as we navigate our
businesses through a more complex market place and
as our customers’ aspirations grow in sophistication.

Regarding the Board’s current composition, the Board
comprises four male and two female Directors which
represent 67% and 33%, respectively, of the total members
of the Board, with different age, experience, background
and diversity perspectives, which have been disclosed in
biographical details of Directors and Senior Executives in
Report of the Directors.

The Nomination Committee will continuously monitor
and review the implementation and operation of Board
Diversity Policy, and also review this policy annually to
ensure its effectiveness.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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6. NOMINATION POLICY

Nomination Committee to consider director
retirements, re-election and eligibility within a
reasonable time before proposing to the Board

To review and assess proposed candidates’
backgrounds, experience, expertise according to a)
Board diversity policy of the Company; b)current
board composition of the Company and c) Group's
strategic objectives

To consider how a proposed candidate (whether new
or seeking re-election) can contribute to and support
or has in the past contributed to and supported the
Board

For directors considering re-election, to review and
assess if they have attended board, committee and
general meetings, and frequency of attendance

To consider if a proposed candidate can devote
sufficient time to discharge his/her duties and
responsibilities

If the position is for an INED, to ensure listing rules
requirements on independence are met

7.  PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Refer/propose name to Company Secretary who will
inform the Nomination Committee with CV of the
proposed candidate.

Presents candidate and his/her CV and where
possible, other relevant background information
to the Nomination Committee for consideration
according to the Nomination Policy.

Where necessary, the Nomination Committee or the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee meets the
proposed candidate to assess suitability.

Nomination Committee confirms or rejects proposed
candidate with proper reasons.

To restart process when a proposed candidate is
rejected.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day to day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. She
reports to the Chairman and CEO. The Board has access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations, are followed.

The Company Secretary attended various professional
development seminars and read materials on legal,
business and corporate secretarial updates, receiving more
than 20 hours of training during the financial year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
preparation of the Group’s accounts and has delegated
this responsibility to the Group CFO. The Group CFO
and her team are responsible for preparing interim and
annual financial statements based on Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) ensuring that the financial
statements present a true and fair view of the results and the
financial position of the Group and that they comply with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations. The Group CFO maintains regular
communications with the external auditors. She also plays
a role in reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the Group's financial risk management. During
the fiscal year, the Group CFO was also responsible for
overseeing the Group's investor relations activities.

A statement by the Group’s external auditors, RSM Hong
Kong about their reporting responsibilities on the Group’s
financial statements are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 33 to 44.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company and its subsidiaries ability to
continue as a going concern. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis (see notes to financial statements “2. Basis of
Preparation” on pages 51 to 53).
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10.

11.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board appointed RSM Hong Kong as the external
auditor of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries at
the 2023 AGM until the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting. During the year, HK$2,121,000 was paid
or payable to RSM Hong Kong for the provision of audit
services.

The Group also engaged other auditors in overseas for
auditing and miscellaneous services and total fees paid
amounted to 83,000.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by four board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on
matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

All businesses transacted at board committee meetings are
recorded and minuted with copies provided to the Board.
Full minutes of Board Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft and final versions of the minutes
are sent to all committee members for their comments and
records within a reasonable time (generally 14 days) after
the committee meeting.

(1)  Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of four non-
executive directors; Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin (independent)
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) Mr. Suriyan
Joshua Kanjanapas (ceased on 25 April 2024), Ms.
Honnus Cheung Ho Ling (independent) and Mr.
Ricky Lai Kai Ming (independent).
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11.

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(1

Audit Committee (Continued)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
available on the Company’s website (www.stelux.com)
and HKEXnews website (www.hkexnews.hk)
respectively.

The terms of reference of the Committee are aligned
with the recommendations set out in the Listing Rules
and the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code. The Committee provides advice
and recommendations to the Board and oversees all
matters relating to the external auditors, thus playing
an important role in monitoring and safeguarding the
independence of the external auditors.

The Committee met five times during the financial
year and up to the date of this Report (together with
the external auditors, in two meetings) to discuss
matters, including, the Group’s audit service plan,
the review of accounting standards and practices
adopted by the Group and other financial reporting
matters; to ensure the completeness, accuracy and
fairness of the financial statements of the Company;
to discuss the effectiveness of the systems of
internal control throughout the Group including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget, ESG related issues and risks on the
Group’s businesses (if any); to review all significant
business affairs managed by the executive directors in
particular on continuing connected transactions and
to review the Group’s interim results for FY2023/24
and results for the year ended 31 March 2024 before
they were presented to the Board for approval.
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11. BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) 11.

(1

(2)

Audit Committee (Continued) 1)

Attendance of directors at the Audit Committee
meetings held on:

27 April 2023

20 June 2023

21 November 2023

25 April 2024

21 June 2024

Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin

Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas
(ceased on 25 April 2024)

Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming

Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling

Remuneration Committee (2)

The Company’s Remuneration Committee comprises
of Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho
Ling and Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin (all independent non-
executive directors of the Company) and Mr. Joseph
C.C. Wong (Group Chairman and CEO).
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11.

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(2)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the Company’s website
(www.stelux.com) and HKEXnews website
(www.hkexnews.hk) respectively.

Code Provision E.1.2 deals with the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee. The Company has
adopted the terms of reference under Code Provision
E.1.2 except that the terms of reference do not
include reviewing and determining the remuneration
packages of senior management. The Company
believes that the remuneration packages of senior
management should be the responsibility of the
executive directors as they are in a better position to
appraise the performance of senior management. The
Remuneration Committee determines with delegated
responsibility the remuneration packages of its
individual executive directors.

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong did not participate in the
Group'’s executive bonus scheme for FY2023/24, and
further waived his entitlement to his basic salary for
part of FY2023/24.
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11. BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(2)

3)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Attendance of directors at the Remuneration
Committee held on:

27 June 2023

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (abstaining with respect to
his remuneration)

Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin

Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming

Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling

25 June 2024

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (abstaining with respect to
his remuneration)

Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin

Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming

Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of Mr.
Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, Group Chairman and CEO), Mr. Suriyan
Joshua Kanjanapas (Vice Chairman and Executive
Director) and three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin, Ms. Honnus
Cheung Ho Ling and Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

3)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available on the Company’s website (www.stelux.com)
and HKEXnews website (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively.

Code Provision B.3.1 deals with the terms of
reference of a Nomination Committee. The Company
has adopted the terms of reference under Code
Provision B.3.1. During the financial year, and up to
the date of this Report, the Committee met twice. The
Committee considered the independence of its retiring
independent non-executive director and confirmed
having received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his/
her independence. On the meeting held on 25 June
2024, Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin (“Mr. Ho”) and Ms. Honnus
Cheung Ho Ling (“Ms. Cheung”) are due to retire at
the forthcoming 2024 AGM, Mr. Ho and Ms. Cheung
have decided not to put themselves forward for re-
election. In the nomination process for the new
independent non-executive directors to take the
place of Mr. Ho and Ms. Cheung, the Committee
proposes the most appropriate individuals with the
right balance of skills, experience, and industry
background for the position based on the Company’s
board diversity policies and nomination processes for
appointment or election/re-election of directors.

Attendance of directors at the Nomination Committee
meetings held on:

27 June 2023

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas
Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin

Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming

Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling

25 June 2024

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas
Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin

Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming

Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

11.

BExZEE W)

3)

REZEE W)

P42 2% B o I BB R 1 2 4 A A AR
A4 (www.stelux.com) K % 75 5 44

vl (www.hkexnews. hk) & #

PRGBS KA RS ZH
B B HE AR B - AN B PR AR ST R
SCEEB.3 AT A R RERE & o AR B
B R E AR A - ZEEY
BATMIR Gk - ZEGHRBENE
SEIRATECE AL > SRR E IR
1| 4598 57 FE 17 B 10 AT 5 4 5Lk
FREK o 1A2024%46 H 25 H BT 1) ik
b AT EUER SR R sR AT e A - iR
JE120244F B A AE R - ARAT > i[5t
A Rl e 4 B AR AT o
P4 B 8 5 AT 8O S DA AN 1Y)
RSP > & B GERRIEAL A
G A 2 e L BUR DL N B AT 50
BT RIS B A BT
P FERE ~ EER RATET RN AEA
;g °

EHR T AMRTHRAZEGE
AR R

2023F6H27H
HORG e
W SRR
EE S
BRI S
sRA BT+

2024F6H25H
ORGSR
SR AR
EE S
B
sRuj BT+



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERRE

11.

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

4)

Corporate Governance Committee

Stelux recognises that adopting proper systems,
running our businesses within a strong legal
framework of rules and procedures, underpinned
by sound business ethics are essential to
safeguarding the performance of the Group
and our shareholders’ interests in a sustainable
manner. The Corporate Governance Committee
comprises Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chairman
of the Corporate Governance Committee and
Chief Financial Officer) (resigned on 24 November
2023), Ms. Kelly Liao Ching Mei (Chairman of
the Corporate Governance Committee and Chief
Financial Officer) (appointed on 24 November 2023)
and three independent non-executive directors,
namely, Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin, Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming
and Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance
Committee is available on the Company’s website
(www.stelux.com) and HKEXnews website
(www.hkexnews.hk) respectively.

Code Provision A.2.1 deals with the terms of
reference of a corporate governance committee. The
Company has adopted the terms of reference under
Code Provision A.2.1. The Corporate Governance
Committee held a meeting to review the Company’s
compliance with the Code Provisions and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report. Since the
implementation of the statutory disclosure regime for
inside information under the Securities and Futures
(Amendment) Ordinance 2012 on 1 January 2013,
systems are in place on reporting and dissemination
of inside information.
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11.  BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) 1. BEEZEE@#)
(4) Corporate Governance Committee (Continued) @) DEBTRZEESHE)
Attendance of directors at the Corporate Governance HEHER T HRTNEEEIRRA
Committee Meetings held on: EER D
27 April 2023 2023%4H27H
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin B B e
(resigned on 24 November 2023) (1A20234F11 H 24 H BHT)
Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin LE: G
Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming B Sk
Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling ATt
25 April 2024 202454 H25H
Ms. Kelly Liao Ching Mei Bkt
(appointed from 24 November 2023) (1A20234-11 24 H#RAT)
Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin iy S LS
Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming RSk
Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling WAL
12.  RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 12. EBRERERAIDERE
The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility RN A AT R AR 4R ) A
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o BT I A6 3 2 PR o

for ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate risk management and internal control systems
and for reviewing their effectiveness. The Group's risk
management and internal control systems are designed
to manage and minimise risk of failures in the Group’s
operational systems, and to achieve our objectives. Such
systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

227

During the year, the Group has complied with all the code
provisions on risk management and internal control under
the Corporate Governance Code.

The main features of the Group’s Risk Management and

Internal Control Systems, include:

(1

Risk Management

The Group's risk management process is a four-step
process involving identifying, assessing, responding
to and monitoring risks which could affect the Group
from achieving its strategic or business objectives.
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

(M

Risk Management (Continued)

In order to ensure the risk management process is
executed effectively and as an integral part of our
business, the Board has established the following
risk management and reporting framework which
specifies the responsible parties and their roles and
responsibilities for managing risks of the Group.

The Board

e oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems

J evaluate and determine the Group’s key risks
which would significantly affect it achieving
strategic or business objectives

o review the Group’s key risks and mitigation
actions and ensure the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems

Audit Committee

o oversees design and operating effectiveness
of the Group’s underlying risk management
process and internal control systems

J review effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal controls with support
from the Internal Audit Function and reporting
to the Board

Risk Steering Committee

J members comprised of key executives of the
Group

e assess and determine the Group's key risks and
ensure appropriate mitigation actions/controls
are in place

e track progress of mitigation actions/controls
over identified key risks and report to Audit
Committee

o provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems annually
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 12. BRMREERANIEE )

(Continued)

(1)  Risk Management (Continued) 1) BRREEE

229

Business Units and Functional Support
Management

management meets periodically to identify
new and review existing risks

design, implement and monitor mitigation
actions and internal control activities in their
day-to-day operations

ensure risk management process and
mitigation actions and internal controls follow
guidelines or recommendations provided
by the Risk Committee and Internal Audit
Function

Internal Audit Function

carry out analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control
systems

support the Audit Committee in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems

(2) Internal Control

Internal control is a process for the Board and

management to assure achievement of the Group’s

objectives in operational effectiveness and efficiency,
reliable financial reporting, and compliance with

laws,

regulations and our internal policies.

The Group has the following major internal controls

in place:

Policies and SOPs are in place set to govern
staff in shop operations, integrity of trading
practices, compliance on handling personal
data of customers, acquisition and disposal of
capital assets, financial reporting, etc.

Authorisation and approval matrix are set based
on nature and type of transactions.
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 12.
(Continued)

R E TR R R EREEE (A7)

(2) Internal Control (Continued) 2) RWEPEE ()

Employees’ Code of Conduct is available on the
Company’s intranet, Employee Handbooks and
Operations Manuals. Employees are required
to strictly follow the Code of Conduct to ensure
the Group operates to the highest standards of
business behaviour and ethics.

Business plans and budgets of individual
business units are prepared and regularly
monitored by management.

Regular management meetings are held to
review business updates, cash positions and to
monitor operating performance against budgets
and relevant KPlIs.

Regular reviews on store portfolio.

Information access to Accounting, Human
Resources, CRM and other IT systems are
restricted and managed on a need-to-know
basis in order to protect data and ensure data
integrity.

Major or material connected transactions
require pre-approval of independent non-
executive directors and all continuing
connected transactions are reviewed on an
annual basis pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

The Group has a Whistle-blowing Policy to
allow staff to anonymously report any suspected
fraud or employee’s misconduct to the Head
of Internal Audit who will refer the report to
the Audit Committee and the Board for further
investigation and/or actions. The Whistle-
blowing Policy is periodically monitored and
reviewed by the Head of Internal Audit.
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

(2) Internal Control (Continued)

The Company has a system which sets out the
requirements and procedures for handling and
disseminating inside information to the public.
Any material information which comes to the
knowledge of one or more officers should be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated,
where appropriate, to the attention of the
Board.

Our internal audit function conducts regular
reviews and ad hoc engagements which cover
risk assessment and monitoring operational,
financial and compliance (including ESG)
aspects.

(3) Internal Audit

Under Code Provision D.2.5, an internal audit
function should be in place. The key tasks of the
Group’s Internal Audit Function include:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

provides independent and objective assurance
to the Audit Committee and the Board with
respect to the Group's risk management and
internal control systems;

conduct independent audits on the Group’s
financial, operational and compliance controls
and make recommendations on improving
work flow efficiency and effectiveness;

conduct special reviews on areas of concerns as
identified by senior management or the Board;

conduct investigations on business ethics,
employee misconduct, fraud cases and other
violations of the Group’s policies practices and
standards; and

oversee the “whistle-blowing” policy.

The internal audit function also conducts audits on
ESG related systems and practices implemented by
the Group to monitor compliance and to minimise
risks to our businesses.
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

“)

Annual Review by the Board

Under Code Provision D.2.1, the directors should at
least annually conduct a review of the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal controls system reporting
to the Company’s shareholders in the Corporate
Governance Report. The review should cover all
material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

Under Code Provision D.2.2, the Board’s annual
review should, in particular, consider the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

The Board through the Audit Committee, reviews the
overall effectiveness of the Group'’s risk management
process and internal control systems annually. During
the current financial year, the reviews covered the
following:

(i) any significant change in the nature and
extent of significant risks and in the control
environment of the Group;

(i)  the significant control weaknesses (including
financial, operational and compliance controls)
as identified by the Internal Audit Function
and the consideration of effectiveness over
its recommendations on improving internal
business environment;

(iii)  major investigation findings on internal control
matters as presented by the Internal Audit
function;

(iv) the effectiveness of the Group’s financial
reporting and listing related compliance
processes;
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12.

13.

14.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

(4) Annual Review by the Board (Continued)

(v) the Group’s risk management system, key
risks and corresponding mitigation actions
which were summarized by the Risk Steering
Committee and the Internal Audit Function
based upon discussion with senior management
of different business units and functional
supports; and

(vi) the performance, staff qualification and
experience, training and adequacy of the
Group’s accounting, financial reporting and
internal audit functions.

The Board and the Audit Committee respectively,
conducted an annual review of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 March 2024 on 25 April 2024 and concluded
that adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are being maintained.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company’s decision to pay dividends to its
shareholders is based on a combination of factors
including, the financial performance of the Group, its
future developments and capital investments, its liquidity
requirements for business operations and external market
conditions, like the general operating environment.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

We welcome dialogue with existing and prospective
investors as a way to promote a greater understanding of
the Group’s business model and the way we conduct our
businesses.

Consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional
documents is available on the website of each of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.
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15.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

(1

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Shareholders may request to convene an
extraordinary general meeting in accordance with
section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981:

i.  The directors of a company, notwithstanding
anything in its bye-laws shall, on the requisition
of members of the company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital
of the company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the company, or, in the case of a company
not having a share capital, members of the
company representing not less than one-tenth
of the total voting rights of all the members
having at the said date a right to vote at general
meetings of the company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene a special general meeting of
the company.

ii.  The requisition must state the purposes of
the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the company, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.

iii.  If the directors do not within twenty-one days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.
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15. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS (Continued)

(1

2

3)

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (Continued)

iv. A meeting convened under this section by the
requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by directors.

v.  Any reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionists by reason of the failure of the
directors duly to convene a meeting shall be
repaid to the requisitionists by the company,
and any sum so repaid shall be retained by the
company out of any sums due or to become
due from the company by way of fees or other
remuneration in respect of their services to
such directors as were in default.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
board and sufficient contact details to enable these
enquiries to be properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary in
writing to:

the Company’s principal office, 27/F, Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong; or by email to ir@stelux.com.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders may, subject to (1) above, by way of
request in writing request a shareholders’ meeting to
be convened for the purpose of considering a certain
matter, addressing the request to the Company
Secretary at:

the Company’s principal office, 27/F, Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

15.

BREREERI (A7)

(1

(2)

3)

RRERBHARRERIAERT ()

iv.  TESRRRGIT ezt 2R H B
4 K & 78 2 W] AE B iy # 2 B
REWHEA 1K -

v.  WHEFRAEABEKE  ALA
A PN R RS
Mo AR ARAEERFEA - B
AT BN A AR
JE AT BT B T AY M 4 Bt 3R
[ INER] 7

BRRAUTOESSRHEANESF A
RUEHNBSENURERERT
EhRERE

e SR AT A 2 Ty A A 2 R R 6]
HE R o AL

A s SURE Bl [ K 728 698 SR E L
P02 7R A A B 5 5

B 2 ir@stelux.com °

ERRASRHEZEBNEFREZAN
BaaEs

TEZ BRI BRI (D RAITE UL > JBOR
T[] 2% F RS B L T R > EOR
IR & L5 e T3 H - A it
AR

F s JUBE T K P 6989 E L
FSE 2 7A N 7] F B IR R -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERRE

16.

17.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great importance to communication
with its shareholders and investors. To foster effective
communications, the Company provides extensive
information in its annual report, interim report and also
publishes information relating to the Group and its
businesses on its website: www.stelux.com.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide
an important opportunity for direct communications
between the Board and the Company’s shareholders.
All directors and senior management will make an effort
to attend. External auditors will also attend the AGM.
However, due to COVID-19 restrictions, a hybrid AGM
was held, with certain directors attending the AGM by
virtual conferencing and physical attendance by staff and
other services providers were kept to the minimum. The
Chairman of the Audit Committees were virtually present
at the Company’s AGM held in 2023. Shareholders are
given at least 21 days’ notice of the AGM. The Company
encourages shareholders’ participation.

In addition, the Company’s website (www.stelux.com)
contains company information which is easily accessible
for investors and shareholders. Mechanisms for enabling
shareholder participation is reviewed annually by the
Board.

Shareholders may send any enquiries they have by
addressing them to the Company Secretary in writing to:

(i) the Company’s principal office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong; or (ii) by email to ir@stelux.com.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the ethical standards of employees, the
Company has an Employee Handbook, setting out the
Group's requisite standards and an ethical code of conduct
for all employees of the Group. Employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

16.

17.

HERRzENER

AR\ 43 T AR B RORN B R Y
W oo S ARHEA SO > AN A AR AR BE TR
o IR R R A A R B R
I35 3 H A v www . stelux. com B8 £ B ik A
SE 1 L HEETS I R o

7R AL I R AR R 7 B S B
Rt i E R R o 2R

e AR BN BB A R R RO 4R
KAE o SIS A BRI € i AR 4R
oo SR p R R R TR SR S B T YRR
il o FAMERAT T — R S R U AR R
& o R DU 07 2 R i AR AR
B o T8 TR A B A A B R
RARFFIE I AR AKF - T2 B & 09 F % LA
i B8 77 2 R A8 IR 202 34 847 1 IR
BAERE o A0 w G RETIRAEFRE
i fe 21 H 1) RS B ald A o AN F
S0 FBEAR R ek

BEAb > AN T A (www.stelux.com)Ei A 24
A ERDERSEE LR ER - EHe
B 2 B ) -

I SR G A AT o] A ) o R DL Ty oK AR
E~NN

(VA2 7 32 2 e 3 i (b ik 25 2 v JURE B il
il K F 36985 B R 0274%) 5 5
(i) B Eir@stelux.com ]2y T AR AT o

B®BIFA

PR B BT AXFESRA R T
T - RS A B T O WA G 1 iy
SREHEAE [ 4 sy <y R SC - T B8R A
TILUGE - M B B R T R

B () A RA A
2024 AR

236


www.stelux.com
www.stelux.com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

18. CONCLUSION 18. #i
The Company recognises that adopting good corporate AN F R PR AN BRI Y A SR TR R A
governance principles and practices are important for 36 AR SR B Y R ) R B > R AR A
the success of the Group and as such we will continue to S A SN R B o A AR T AR R I KR
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the FER -

Group’s corporate governance.
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Registered Office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office

27th Floor, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East
San Po Kong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers
Hang Seng Bank Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Auditors
RSM Hong Kong

Share Registrar

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Ltd.
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Room 1712-1716

17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

Audit Committee

Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin (Chairman of Committee)

Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming

Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling

Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas (ceased on 25 April 2024)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Chumphol Kanjanapas (aka Joseph C. C. Wong)
Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin

Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chumphol Kanjanapas (aka Joseph C. C. Wong)
(Chairman of Committee)

Mr. Suriyan Kanjanapas (aka Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas)

Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin

Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming

Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling

Corporate Governance Committee
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chairman of Committee)
(resigned on 24 November 2023)
Ms. Kelly Liao Ching Mei (appointed from 24 November 2023)
Mr. Jeff Ho Chi Kin
Mr. Ricky Lai Kai Ming
Ms. Honnus Cheung Ho Ling

Company Secretary
Ms. Kelly Liao Ching Mei (resigned on 24 November 2023)
Ms. Carrie Hui Ka Wai (appointed on 24 November 2023)
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COMPANY DIRECTORY
AFERRG

MAINLAND CHINA AND HONG KONG

Equity Investment, Property Investment, Retail, Trading,

Wholesale and Supply Chain Management
o Stelux Holdings International Limited
J Stelux Holdings Limited
J Stelux Properties Limited

. Stelux Trading (International) Limited
27/F., Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

e City Chain Company Limited

. Stelux Watch Limited
27/F., Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

6/F., Continental Electric Building,
17 Wang Chiu Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, HONG KONG

o Thong Sia Watch Company Limited

e Thong Tai Watch Company Limited
21/F., Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

J Stelux Thong Sia (Guangdong) Trading Limited

28th Floor, Xinde Business Building,

246 Zhongshan 4th Road, Yuexiu District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, China
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COMPANY DIRECTORY
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MACAU

Retail
o City Chain (Macau) Co Limited
Rua de S. Domingos,
n’s 1G, TH, 11, R/C,
Lojas D&E, em
Macau

MALAYSIA

Retail and Wholesale Trading

e City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd
Stelux No. 8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A
Bandar Puteri
47100 Puchong
Selangor Darul Ehsan
MALAYSIA

o Thong Sia Sdn Bhd (87055-A)
CP 27, Suite 2601-04,
26th Floor, Central Plaza
34, Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

THAILAND

Retail and Wholesale Trading
e City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited

o Thong Sia (Thailand) Limited
347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bond Street Road
Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District
Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND
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Stelux No. 8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A
Bandar Puteri

47100 Puchong

Selangor Darul Ehsan
MALAYSIA

° Thong Sia Sdn Bhd (87055-A)
CP 27, Suite 2601-04,
26th Floor, Central Plaza
34, Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA
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SINGAPORE

Retail and Wholesale Trading

o City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited
31 Ubi Road 1, #02-08
Singapore 408694
SINGAPORE

o Thong Sia Company (Singapore) Pte Ltd
31 Ubi Road 1, #02-06
Singapore 408694
SINGAPORE

SWITZERLAND

Watch Supply Chain Management and Trading
o Catena SA

o Solvil et Titus SA
. Pronto Watch SA
o CYMA SA
J Lissignol Sarl
38, chemin du Grand Puits

1217 Meyrin 1
SWITZERLAND
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City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited
31 Ubi Road 1, #02-08
Singapore 408694

SINGAPORE

o Thong Sia Company (Singapore) Pte Ltd
31 Ubi Road 1, #02-06
Singapore 408694
SINGAPORE
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
g J ki

Latest time for lodging transfers of Shares for EXROEEST M
registration in order to qualify for LEERHERR
attending and voting at the BFEAEIRELRE
Annual General Meeting ZBREKE
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 14 August 2024 20244814 H (BH=) TR =+
Latest date and time for return of proxy RERRBAFAEAREEREZHE
form for the Annual General Meeting B HA % R R
not less than 48 hours before the time of the Annual General J SR AR 1 B R [ 4.8 /)N i
Meeting
Closure of the register of members of the EEMERMBFECURETER
Company for determining the identity of HEREYNELREZRREH
Shareholders who are entitled to attend 202448 415 H (B HIm) &
and vote at the Annual General Meeting 202448 420H (B H1)
Thursday, 15 August 2024 to (EIFERmMH)

Tuesday, 20 August 2024 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting RERBFRE
3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 20 August 2024 202448 H20H (B =) R4 =KFiE
Email Contacts BARE
Investor Relations: ir@stelux.com BEH BIFR  ir@stelux.com
Shareholder Enquiries: ir@stelux.com A © ir@stelux.com
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